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Aprl 1, 2011

" Orangeburg County Council and
Citizens of Orangeburg County
Orangeburg, South Carolina

We are pleased to submit this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Orangeburg .County
‘government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. State statutes require Orangeburg County -
government to issue annually a report on its financial position and activities, and that this report be
audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants. Responsibility for both the accuracs
of the presented data and the completeness and faimess of this presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the County’s management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is
accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly both the
financial position, results of operation and cash flow of the various funds and component units oi'
Orangeburg County. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of th

County’s financial activities have been included.

=

generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as set forth by the (Government

This report presents the financial activity of the County in conformity‘ with accournting principle%F ’
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other recognized authoritative sources.

1373

The County is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of th
Single Audit Act, as amended by the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Managemer)
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizdtions.
Information related to this smgle audit, including a schedule of expenditures of federal awards and thy

- independent auditor’s reports on internal comtrols and compliance with applicable laws an
regulations, and schedule of findings and questioned costs are included in the single audit sectlon af
this report. : -

—

ot

The Reporting Entity

The ﬁnanclal reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds of the prlmary government, i.ej,
Orangeburg County, as well as all of its component units, Component units are lega]ly separate
entities for which the primary government is financially accountable and exclusion of which woulg
render the financial statements incomplete or misleading. Orangeburg County, under a Counci
Administrator form of govemment provides a broad range of services which include:

. 1
BUILDING A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR OUR CITIZENS






e Public Safety — Law enforcement, emergency preparedness plans, jail facilities, and fire
protection

Veterans Assistance

Voter Registration

Roads and Bridges Maintenance

Waste Disposal

Planning/Community Development

Criminal, Civil, Probate and Family Court Administration

Public Defender Assistance

Tax Collection and Dispersal

Health Services — Emergency medical services, indigent health care, and social services
Economic Development

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance, part of the primary
government’s operations and are included as part of the primary government. Accordingly, the
Orangeburg County COP’s (certificates of participation) have been shown in the Debt Service Fund and
the Capital Projects. Fund. Discretely presented component units are reported separately on the
combining balance sheet to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to
differentiate their financial position, results of operations, and cash flows from those of the primary
government. The Orangeburg County Public Library, the O_rangeburg.-Calhburi' Regional Detention
Ceater, and the Orangeburg County Fire District are being reported as discretely ‘presented component
umis.

Governmentél' Structure, Local Economic Condiﬁdn and Outlook

Orangeburg-At-A-Glance — Orangeburg County is located in the south central part of South Carolina,
approximately 41 miles south of Columbia, the State Capitol. The County covers approximately, 1,106
square miles and is home to seventeen municipalities including the county seat, the City of Orangeburg.
Orangeburg County ranks first in the state in cash receipts from sales of crops and livestock. Principal
farm commodities include corn, cotton, dairy products, peaches, wheat and soybeans. The populatidn of
Orangeburg County is currently 91,509. Orangeburg County is beautifully landscaped with natural
beauty, numerous historical buildings, churches, moderate climate and a coveted quality of life. Although
once. a largely rural and agricultural county, Orangeburg County’s investments in infrastructure, and
strategic location near .the Port of Charleston are bringing about significarit levels of economic
development and industrial growth. , ‘ C ' S

Orangeburg .Cpunty énjoys the availability of four 'institutic'ms‘ of higher educé:tic'm: Claﬂm University,
Orangeburg-Calhoun Technical Education Center, South Carolina State University, and Southern
Methodist College. ' ’ N ‘ ’

The County is served by Interstate Highways 26 and 95, five U.S. highways, and by a network of South
Carolina highways. ' '
Orangeburg County’s public services are provided by a Council-Administrator form of government, with
seven Council members elected by district with a residency requirement. Council members serve four-
year staggered terms of office. The County Administrator is résponsi'ble' for carrying out the policies and
ordinances of the governing council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for
appointing the directors of the government’s departments not under the control of elected officials.
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Economic Condition  and_Outlook — There are over one hundred industrial facilities locatec
Orangeburg County which include plants manufacturing lawn equipment, hand tools, garments, n

bearings, organic chemicals, Teflon tubing, processing systems, fabric printing, chemicals, elects
assembly components, undergarments, wooden products, bakery products, heating wire, cement, vari

in
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ous

lumber products, power cable, shipping containers, knitting machines, diesel engines, air conditio

ing

units, and numerous other items. The largest industrial facilities in Orangeburg County include the plants
of Husqvarna (2,000 employees), Koyo Corporation of America (600 employees), Sara L.ee Balery

Group (550 employees), Food Lion Distribution Center #3 (518 employees), Zeus Industrial Prod
Inc. (450 employees), and Allied Air Enterprises, Inc. (450 employees). :

The Town of Santee, located south of Lake Marion, has developed into a resort community. The tow
situated adjacent to Interstate 95, and a number of motels, restaurants and other comme
establishments are located around it.

_ Orangeburg Couﬁty continues to recruit industry placing a strong emphasis on buyer/supplier netwc

retention of existing industries, and recruitment of new industries. A sophisticated marketing
concentrating on the new County/City Industrial Park was introduced in 2000.. Lennox Internati
became the Park’s first tenant in July 2000 with more than 65 employees. Operating as Allied!
Enterprises, the company has erected a $19,000,000 building and has 400 employees. Other additior
the Orangeburg County/City Industrial Park include the DANA Corporation (150 employees
manufacturer of automobile parts; H.T. Hackney, a distributor of wholesale grocery products

. employees); QM Plastics, a Canadian based manufacturer of plastic ‘components (75 employees),

Monteferro USA, a -manufacturer of elevator rail guides. In 2007, Allied Air Enterprises complet

. $21,000,000 expansion that created an additional 250 jobs in Orangeburg County.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Orangeburg County/City Industrial Park — This joint initiative between the County of Orangeburg
the City of Orangeburg cost approximately $9,000,000, with the total cost being shared equally by
County of Orangeburg and the City of Orangeburg. Assistance has also been received from the Econg

cts,
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Development Administration in the form of a $1;500,000 grant to assist in the water and Sgw wer

.infrastructure development at the three quadrants of Interstate 26 and US Highway 301 located adja

to the park.. This greatly augments the industrial park will allow for commercial development along;
busy interstate, and will also promote the economic development scheduled. for the park. We
attracting many inquiries from businesses about locating in the park. As a result of.the initial succe
within the Park, a Phase I expansion was completed in 2009 that added approxmlately 220 acres
industrial development

Lake Marion Regional Water Authority — This joint municipal water system is a regional con

involving five counties along the 1-95 Corridor in South Carolina. More than 50,000 citizens wil
served with potable water as well as replacing individual well systems throughout this region. To ¢
the regional water authority has been awarded approximately $50 million in federal grants to assist in
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development and construction of the water treatment plant and transmission lines.. The water

| became operational on April 28, 2008.

Matthews Industricl Park — The Matthews Industrial Park is being developed on' approximately
acres located at the intersection of US Highways 301 and 176. In addition, an adjacent prop
consisting of approximately 250 acres will be the site for a regional wastewater treatment facility that

- serve the growing demand for wastewater service in thlS rapidly developmg area. The park is expecte

be completed in 2011.
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Other Developments — In 2007, Jafza International, a subsidiary of Dubai World, acquired approximately
1,300 acres in Orangeburg County near the Town of Santee and the intersection of Interstate Highway 95
and US 301. -Jafza International announced plans to develop a $600 million regional logistics and
distribution center that will serve the Southeastern United States. Construction on the initial facility
within the Park is scheduled to be completed during the first quarter of 2011. T

‘On November 2, 2010, Orangeburg County citizens voted in a referendum to extend the one-cent Capital
Projects Sales Tax for an additional seven years. The referendum was approved by a 66%.1to 34% margin.
Collection of this one-cent sales tax will begin in May 2013 and is expected to generate approximately
$84 million for the construction of more than 100 capital and infrastructure projects. o

' FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Controls — Orangeburg County Council and Management are responsible fo.r-establishihg and
‘maintaining internal control designed to ensure that the assets of Orangeburg County, are protected from

floss,- theft, or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the .

 preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
The internal control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived. The valuation of costs and
ibenefits requires estimates and judgments by Management. .

As' a recipient of federal, state and local assistance, the County of Orangeburg, is also responsible for
ensuring that adequate internal control is in place to guarantee and document compliance with applicable
laws and regulations related to these programs. This internal control is subject to.periodic evaluation by
Management and contracted services on as as-needed basis with outside audit firms.

As a part of the County of Orangeburg’s'single audit process, described earlier; tests were made of our
internal control and of our compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including those related to
federal financial assistance programs. . o

Budgeting Controls — In addition to the aforementioned internal control, Orangeburg County government
maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these controls. is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Orangeburg County Council.
Activities of the general fund, eight of the twenty special revepue funds, the debt service fund, and one
capital projects fund are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (i.e.,
the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is the departmental level
within-each fund. The government also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one method of
maintaining budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year end. However, outstanding
encumbrances are re-appropriated as part of the following year’s budget. -

As demonstrated by: the statements and schedules ipchided in the financial section of this repo;rt,l the

County of Orangeburg continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Cash Management — The management of cash and investments is the responsibility of the "County
Treasurer. A negotiated rate of interest is paid daily on cash held in checking accounts. . Other
investments are made in U.S. Government Agency Securities and/or certificates of deposit. All
investments are made in compliance with S.C. Codes 6-5-10 and 12-45-220.

.'Risk_Management — The County is exposed to various risks, of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets, errors and omissions as well as job-related illnesses and accidents. The County
pays premiums to a public entity risk pool for workers’ compensation insurance and to the State Insprance
Reserve Fund for all other forms of coverage. The County employs a full-time Risk Manager to

administer its workers’ compensation and loss prevention programs.
p
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 OTHER INFORMATION

~ both .accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal
. requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our,

" nationwide received this award.
- and the special assistance provided by our independent audit firm, McGregor & Company, LLP. We|

- operations of the government in a responsible and progressive manmer,

Independent Audit - South Carolina’s state statutes require an annual audit by independent certified
public accountants. The firm of McGregor & Company, LLP provided audit services for the County of
Orangeburg for the fiscal year ended.June 30, 2010. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in| -
state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act of| -
1984 and the related U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-133. Generally accepted
auditing standards and the standards set forth in General Accounting Office’s Governmental Auditing
Standards were used by the auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditor’s reports on the basic
financial statements and combining of individual fund statements and schedules are included in the|.
financial section of this report. The auditor’s reports on internal control and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations can be found in the single audit section of this report.

Awards — The Government Financial Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County of Orangeburg
for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended June 30, 2009. This was the
twenty-second Certificate of Achievement awarded to the County of Orangeburg, This report satisfied)

current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements.

In addition, the County was selected to receive two prestigious civic awards for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2010. The County was honored by the National Association of Counties with a 2009 Achievement
Award and was also recognized by the South Carolina Association of Counties with the 2010 J. Mitchell
Graham award for excellence in governmental service. The County also received the prestigious All-
American City designation from the The National Civic League in 2005. Only ten communities

Acknowledge — The timely preparation of the CAFR could not have been accomplished without the
efficient services of the entire staffs of the Finance Department, the County Treasurer, the Administration,)
would like to express our appreciation to all staff members of those departments who assisted and!

contributed to the preparation of this report. Due credit also should be given to the Chairman and|
members of the Orangeburg County Council for their interest and support in planning and conducting the;

T (Val

illiam Clark
County Administrator
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

County of Orangeburg
South Carolina

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2009

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Assaciation of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting

and financial reporting,.

Executive Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the County Council
County of Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the County of Orangeburg, South Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the County of Orangeburg, South Carolina’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based onlour
audit. '

—

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with audi ing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to finangial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurapce
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finangial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. :

Because of the unknown effect of the unrecorded prior years’ activity of the Sheriff's office bank
accounts and uninventoried capital assets thereof, we were unable to form an opinion regarding any
" potential unirecorded assets or liabilities of the Sheriff’s sub-finds or the potential unrecorded capital
assets of the Sheriff’s office in the accompanying statements.

~In our opinion, except for the effect of such adjustments, if any, as might be determined to|be
necessary had the Sheriff’s office bank accounts been previously audited and its capital agset
purchases thereof been inventoried, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in|all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the aggreghte
discrétely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund informatjon
of the County of Orangeburg, South Carolina as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes| in
financial position thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States| of
America.

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL CLUMEBIA
1190 Boulevard Street {803) 259-1163 (B03) 787-0003
15 Crangeburg, 5C 28115 {ax (803) 253-5469 fax (803) 787-2299
(803) 536-1015
fax {803) 536-1020 . W Megregorcpa. com






INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 1,
2011, on our consideration of the County of Orangeburg, South Carolina’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results iof that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting! or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, on pages 17 through 23, and the Required Supplémental
Information on page 67 (Schedule of Funding Program for the Retiree Health Plan) be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who consxde’rs it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic, financial statements in.an appropriate
operatlonal economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited proceduresito the
required supplementary mformatlon in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparmg the information and comparing the: information for. consistency with manageiment 5
responses to our mqumes the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or prov:de any assurance. . , N ’ |

Our andit was conducted for the purpose of forming_ opmlons on the ﬁnanc1al statements that
collectively comprise the County of Orangeburg, South Carolina’s financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section, combining and individual fund statements and schedules, and statistical
section are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the ﬁnanCIal
_statements. The combmmg and individual fund statements and schedules and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the ﬁnanmal
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such mfonrnatlon
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other addional procedures in accordance with audltmg
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information, i 1s fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The mtroductory and
statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it,

: G vlpy A

Orangeburg, South Carolina
April 1, 2011
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

This section of Orangeburg County’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the-

County’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Please read it in conjunction
with the transmittal Jetter at the front of this report and the County’s financial statements, which follow
thig section. ‘

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
» | The County’s assets exceeded its liabilities at Tune 30, 2010 by $93 million (net assets). Of this

¢ ['The County’s repaid $10.6 million of bond, note and capital lease obligations during the year.

» [The County’s total net assets increased $4.2 million over the course of this year’s operations.

* [During the year, the County’s general fund balance decreased $133,698.

e [The general fund actual revenues were $305,040 less than budgeted; however, general fund
expenditures were $1.6 million less than budgeted.

 [At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved general fund balance was $1.9 million or 5.6 percent
pf general fund expenditures and other uses for the financial year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Thig|annual report consists of four parts — management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
ﬁnaA cial statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that presents
combining statements for nonmajor governmental funds, The basic financial statements include two
kindg of statements that present different views of the County:

e The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and
short-ferm information about the County’s overall financial status.

¢ The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the County
overnment, reporting the County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.
¢\ The governmental finds statements tell how general government services like public safety were
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending.

o Fiduciary fund statements provide information about resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial

programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that of the proprietary funds.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statenfents and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.
In addjtion to these required elements, we have included a section with combining statements that provide
detailg about our nonmajor governmental funds, each of which are added together and presented in single
columps in the basic financial statements.

Figure|A-1 summarizes the major features of the County’s financial statements, including the portion of
the Cqunty government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of tius
overvigw section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of
the statements. '
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amount $678,976 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations.

statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own






Scope

[

Required financial
statements

Accounting basis and
measurement focus

Type of asset/liability
information

Type of inflow/

ocutflow information

The govemment—\mde statements report imformation about the County as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes alf of the
government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenucs and expenses are accounted for in

Figure A-1
Major Features of County of Orangeburg’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide
Statements

__Fund Statements

Governmental Funds

Fiduciary Funds

Entire County government
(except Fiduciary funds)
and the County’s
component units

« Statement of net assets
« Statement of activities

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term

All revenues and expenses

during year, regardless of
when cash is received or
paid

The activities of the County
that are not proprietary or
fiduciary, such as police,

Instances in which the
County is the agent
for someone else’s

fire, and parks

TeSOUICeEs

« Statement of
fiduciary net assets

Balance sheet

Statement revenues,
expenditures, and changes
in fund balances

Modified accrual accounting  Accrual accounting
and current financial and economic
resources focus resources focus

All agency assets
and liabilities, both
short-term and
long-term

Only assets expected to be
used up and Habilities that
come due during the year
or soon thereafter; no
capital assets inciuded

Revenue for which cash is

received during or soon after
the end of the vear;
expenditures when goods or
services have been received
and payment is due during
the year or soon thereafter

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The tv.fé government-wide staterments report the County’s nef assets and how they have changed. Net
assets — the difference between the County’s assets and liabilities — is one way to measure the County’s

financial health, or position.

» Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net assets are an indicator of whether its financial

health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

» To assess the overall health of the County you need to consider additional non-financial factors such

as changes in.the County’s property tax base and the condition of the County’s roads.

federal grants finance most of the activities.

18

Governmental activities — Most of the County’s basic services are included here, such as the police,
fire, public works, and parks departments, and general administration. Property taxes and state and'
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

The fund firancial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s most sngmﬁ cant,
Junds — not the County as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the County uses to keep track of

spemﬁc sources of fundmg and spending for particular purposes

e Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.
o The County Council established other funds to control and manage money for particular purpos
to show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants.

The County has two kinds of funds:

focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and
and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmd

funds statements provide a detailed short- term view that helps you determine whether there are ]Eore
I

a fewer financial resources that can-be spent in the near future to finance the County’s prog

5 ar

_* Governmental funds — Most of the County’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which

out
ntal

ms.

Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-jvide
statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statemen, or

on the subsequent page, that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

¢ Fiduciary funds — The County acts as agent, or fiduciary, for other entities’ resources. The County is

responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purps

S€s.

All of the County’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary. net asgets.

We exclude these activities from the County’s government-wide financial statements because
County cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

the

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE
Net assets
The County’s net assets increased by $4.5 million or 5.1% between fiscal years 2009 and 2010 enditje at
approximately $93 million. (See Table A-1.)
Table A-1
County of Orangeburg’s Net Assets
(in thousands of dollars)
Total
Governmental Percentage
Activities Change
2010 2009 A 2009-2019
Current and other assets” $ 84,889 £110,209 T (23.0)%
Capital assets ‘ 90,037 80.416 12.0%
Total assets : " 174,925 190,625 " : T (8.2)%
Long-term debt 64,553 83,835 (11.0)%
Other liabilities 16.626 17.600 (42.4)%
Total liabilities - 81,179 101,435 (20.00%
Net Assets :
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 38,042 37,883 A%
Restricted 55,026 46,931 17.2%
Unrestricted 679 4376 (84.5)%
Total net assets $ 93747 $ 89190 5.1%
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Changes in net assets. The County’s total revenues decreased by-1.3 percent to $62.8 million. (See
Table A-2.) Approximately 49 percent of the County’s revenue comes from property taxes and 14
percent comes from capital projects sales tax. Approximately 16 percent comes from fees charged for
- services, and 15 percent is from state and federal aid. o .

The total cost of all programs, services and capital improvements increased approximateiy $3 million or
4.3 percent. The County’s expenses cover a range of services, with about 22 percent related to public
safety and 19 percent related to public works, ' -

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Table A-2
Changes in County of Orangeburg’s Net Assets
' (in thousands of dollars) .
- Total

Governmental =~ Percentage
. Activities . . Change
T . 2010 2009 2009-2010
"Revenues
Program revenues . .
'Charges for services o $10,1i3 $10,026 09%
Grants'and contributions ' 1,632 . 7 1345 . 213%
Capital grants o . 1,849 - 1,730 ' 6.9%
General revenues =~ ' _ o ) L
Property taxes 30,675 29,716 3.2%
Other taxes . . 9,267 . 9,698 . (4.4)%
Intergovernmental 5,910 5,701 (13.4)%
Other 3.393 4,308 21.2)%
Total revenues , 62.839 63,650 (1.3)%
Expenses : ‘ .. ‘ . . -
Gieneral government 17,223 18,503 ‘ {(6.9)%
Judicial 3,424 3,714 (7.8)%
Public works 8,763 12,502 (29.9%
Public safety ' 15218 14,701: 3.5%
Social and health ' 1,945 ° 2,131 (8.77%
Sanitation 5,076 5,348 (5.1)%
Culture and recreation 3,422 4174 (18.0)%
Interest and fiscal charges ' : 2,703 3,270 (17.3)%
- Allocation to library - 901 1,103 (18.3)%
Total expenses 58.675 65,446 : - (10.3)%
Increase (decrease) in net assets 3 4164 $ (1,796) (331.8)%
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending ifund
balances of $79 million, a decrease of $12.8 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
10.9 percent of this total amount ($8.6 million) constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is avaijable

is not available for new spending because it has already been committed to pay debt service ($10.1

for spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate Llat it

million) or to fund capital asset projects for County facilities or infrastructure improvements (

02

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County.. At the end of the current fiscal year, ‘

unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $1.8 million. As a measure of the general fﬁd’s

liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance to total fund expendi
Unreserved fund balance represents approximately 5.4 percent of total general fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the County’s general fund decreased by only $133,698 during the current fiscal
primarily due to a decrease in revenue. - .

res.

ear,

The debt service fund had a total fund balance of $1.1 million, all of which is reserved for the p'aymémt of

debt service. The net increase in fund balance during the current year in the debt service fund was
thousand. '

The County’s two capital projects sales tax funds had a total combined fund balance of $70.4 mil
Approximately $9 million of this amount is reserved for the payment of debt service. The remai
$54.4 million is reserved to improve, repair and construct infrastructure in the County. The net comb
decrease in fund balances during the current year was $8.3 million. o

i

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

$87 -

ion.
rng
ned

lion

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were approximately $2 mi
increase in appropriations:

Actual general fund expenditures were $1.6 million legs than budget amounts. This is primarily the re
of prior year unspent project funds being carried forward as budget amendments,

Resources available for appropriation were $305,040 less than budgeted amounts as follows:

sult

Other revenues were $530 thousand less than budgeted.
» Property taxes were $567 thousand less than budgeted.
e Intergovernmental income was $839 thousand more than budgeted.
“»  Charges for services were $672 thousand more than budgéted.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

At the end of 2010, the County had invested $90 million (net of accumulated depreciation) in a broad

range of capital assets. (See Table A-3.) This amount represents a net increase (including additions and .

deductions) of $9.6 million, or. 112 percent, over last year,

_ 1 Table A-3 .
County of Orangeburg’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation, in theusands of dollars)

: . Total
Governmental . Percentage .
Activities . - __Change .
2010 2009 _-2009-2010

Land . . ‘ . - §, 5764 5401 5.4%
Construction in progress 8,357 11,074 (24.5%)
Buildings and improvements 62,246 47,813 30.2%
Fumiture, fixtures and equ.lpment - 43,842 43,730, ' 3%
Infrastructure . . 43,511 - 41,266 5.4%
Accumulated deprccmtlon (73,683) (68,938) 6.9%

. $ 90,037 '$ 80416 12.0%
Thls yéar’s major capital asset addiﬁoﬂs’ included: . |

e $10.5 million in additions of buildings and improvements.
e  $2.2 million in net additions related to infrastructure.

More detailed information about the County’s capital assets is presented in Notes 1 and 2 to the financial
statements. ‘

. Long-term Debt

At year-end the County had $65.7 million in bonds, notes, and capital lease obligations outstanding — a
decrease of 13.9% over last year — as shown in Table A-4. More detailed information about the County’s
long-term liabilities is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements.

The state limits the amount of general obligation debt the County can issué to 8 percent of the assessed

value of all taxable property within the County’s legal limits. Our outstanding debt is below this limit —
which is currently $20.9 million as reflected in Table 12 of this report.

22 .
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Table A-4
County of Orangeburg’s Outstanding Debt
(in thousands of dollars)

Total

Governmental Percentage
__Activities Change

~ 2010 2009 200_9—2019
General obligation bonds $15510 . $16,965 (8.6)%
~ Revenue bonds 44,048 52,252 (15. 7%
Note payable C . 534 569 (6.2)%
Capital lease obligations 5,637 6.556 (14.00%
Total $ 65,729 $ 76,342 (13.9)%

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

* Unemployment now stands at 17.8 percent, compared to 14.5 percent a year ago. This compares
unfavorably with the state’s rate of 11 percent and the national rate of 9.5 percent.
» Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

- These indicators were taken into account when adopting the general fund budget for 2011. Amounts

available for appropriation in the general fund budget are at nearly $31.6 million, a decrease of about 4
percent over the final 2010 budget of $32.8 million.

Budgeted expenditures are expected to decrease approximately 3 percent to $32.1 million over the actual
2010 expenditures and other uses of $33.1 million. The largest increments again are wages and other

- related employment costs.

If these estimates are realized, the County’s budgetary general fund balance is expected to increase

slightly by the close of 2011.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Courity’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,

- contact Gloria Breland, Finance Director, or visit the County website at www.orangeburgcounty.org.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit A-1
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010
" Primary Government
Governmental Component
Activities Units
ASSETS
(Cash and cash equivalents 17,526,294 b 218,447
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agent 1,120,169 -
Investment with fiscal agent 55,559,588 -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Taxes 2,388,215 177,870
Other _ 2,976,990 22,174
Due from primary government - 530,430
e from other governments 4,655,973 507,612
Due from component unit 330,906 -
Inventories 32,233 -
Other assets- . . 82,019 -
Due from fiduciary funds 216,815 -
Capital assets: -
Land and construction in progress 14,121,174 -
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 75,915,428 -
Total assets 174,925,804 1,456,533
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,772,401 106,677
Accrued salaries and benefits 1,120,235 117,553
Due to component units 530,430 -
Due to primary government - 330,906
Accrued interest payable 696,198 -
Revenue received in advance 280,212 -
Nouncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 12,226,282 115,333
Dug in more than one year 56,556,635 154,109
Net OPEB obligation 7,996,716 1,240,649
" Total liabilities 81,179,109 2,065,227
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 38,042,095 -
Restricted for:
Debt service 10,145,647 -
Capital outlay 44,879,977 -
Unrestricted 7 678,976 {608,694)
Total net assets b 93,746,695 $ (608,694)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
26
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit A-3
. ~ BALANCE SHEET '
. ) GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
| ‘ JUNE 30,2010
Capital Nonmajor Total
Projects. Governmental Governmental
‘ General - Sales Tax 11 Funds Funds
] ASSETS o
Cash and cash equivalents 17,257,251 3 - 269,043 $ 17,526,204
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agent - 1,120,169 < 1,120,169
Investment with fiscal agent - 55,559,588 - 55,559,588
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Taxes 1,694,339 . Co- 693,876, 2,388,215
Intergovernmental 1,114,587 2,298,622 1,242,764 ’ 4,655,973
Other 1,989,303 - 987,687 2,976,990
Due from other funds 5,689,687 - 22,995 887 28,685,574
Due from agency funds 207,072 - 9,743 216,815
Due from.component unit 330,906 - - 330,906
Prepaid expenditures - - 20,000 20,000
Inventories 32,233 - - 32,233
Other assets . - - 62,019 62,019
Total assets . - 28,315,378 $ 58,978,379 26,281,019 3 113,574,776
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES .
Accounts payable 439,606 $ 266,331 1,066,464 ~ % 1,772:401
Adécrued salaries and benefits 961,893 8,087 150,255 1,120,235
Due to other funds 22,995 887 1,692,833 3,996,854 28,685,574
Due to component units 530,430 - - 530,430
Deferred revenues: ‘
Property taxes 1,521,666 - 624,594 2,146,260
Other - - 280,212 280,212
Total liabilities 26,449,482 1,967,251 6,118,379 34,535,112
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 50,406 - 18,693 69,099
Inventories 32,233 - - 32,233
Debt service - 9,000,000 1,145,647 10,145,647
Capital outlay - 48,011,128 12,207,251 60,218,379
Unreserved
Undesignated reported in:
General fund 1,783,257 - - 1,783,257
Special revenue fund - - 6,791,049 6,791,049
Total fund balances 1,865,896 37,011,128 20,162,640 79,039,664
Total liabilities and fund balances 28,315,378 $ 58,978,379 26,281,019 3 113,574,776

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stafements.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit A-4
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT FUNDS BALLANCE SHEET '
TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30,2010
Total fund balances - Governmental funds -$ 79(039,664
Amounts repdrted for govemmentél activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
funds. These assets consist of:
Land 50764,441
Construction in progress 81356,733
Infrastructure 431511,050
Buildings and improvements 624246,078
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 431841,932
Accumulated depreciation (731683,632)
Total capital assets 90 036,602
Some revenues will be collected after year-end but are
not available soon enough to pay for the current period's
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.
Deferred property taxes 20146,260
Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:
General obligation debt - (15{510,000)
Capital leases payable (51637037
Revenue bonds (441048,257)
Notes payable (534,101)
Accrued interest (696,198)
Landfill closure and post closure costs * £30,418)
Premium on revenue bonds (11612,935)
Compensated absences (1,210,169)
Net OPEB liability (71996,716)
Total long-term liabilities (77,475,831)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 93,746,695
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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REVENUES

Property taxes

Sales tax
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines, fees, and forfeitures
Investment income

Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Judicial
Public works
Pui:!ic_: safety
: Social and health
Sanitation
Intemal services
" Culture and recreation
Allocation to Library
Allocation to others
Non-budgeted expenditures
Delit services:
I'rincipal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Proceeds from sale of capital assets
‘. Transfers in
TFransfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year

Prior petiod adjustment - Note 15

Fund balances, beginning of year as restated

Fund balances, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

Exhibit A-5
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010
Capital Nonmajor Total
Projects Governmental Governmental
General Sales Tax IL Funds.. Funds

$ 21,904,252  § . - % . 8537862 % 30,442,114
( 9,073,201 ) - 9,073,291

5,909,632 - 3,675,109 9,584,741

591,366 - - 591,366

v L, 2471395 - 4,921,772 7,399,167
1,483,022 - 639,086 2,122,108

20476 2,603,178 30,851 2,663,505

389,463 - - 394410 783,873

32,784 606 11,676,465 18,199,090 62,660,165
10,173,401 993,344 4,809,867 5,976,608
2,914,878 z 135,235 3,050,113
1,034,864 6,420,963 5,804,427 . 13,260,254
10,190,057 1,325 2,062,87{3 12,254 260
1,316,414 - 1 526,440 1,842,854

- B 4722235 4,722,235

532,236 - - 532,236

224639 793,148 2,786,814 3,804,601

- - 900,931 900,931

5,408,096 - - 5,408,096

952,316 - - 952,316

220,000 8,200,000 1,235202 9,659,202

48,265 2,494,750 653,240 3,196,255

33,015,166 18,903,526 23,641,269 75,559,961
(230,560) (7,227,057) (5,442,179) ©(12,899,796)

41,285 - - 41,285

126,932 - 71,355 198,287
(71,355) - (126,932) (198,287)

96,802 - (55,571 41,285
{133,698) {7,227,057) (5,497,756) (12,858,511)

1,999,594 64,351,579 25154418 91,505,591

- (113,394) 303,978 392,584

™
1,999,594 64,238,185 25,660,396 91,898.175
$ 1,865896  § . 57011128 § 20,162,640 § 79,039,664
t
30.





COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

Net change in fund balances - Total government funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

_However, in the statement of activities, the cost of capital assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlay

Capital disposals, net of accumulated depreciation

Depreciation expense

Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense

Because some revenue will not be collected for several months after the
County's fiscal year ends, they are not considered "available" revenues
and are deferred in the governmental funds. Deferred property tax revenues
increased by this amouat this year,

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental
funds. But the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement
of net assets. In the current period, these amounts
consisted of:

Bond principal retirement
Note payable retirement
Capital lease payments
Total long-term debt repayment

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds
Change in compensated absences
Change in postclosure care costs
Amortization on bond premium
Change in OPEB obligation

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds,
whereas in governmental funds, interest is expensed when due.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(12,858,511)

§5,494)

15,222,404
(6,105,959)

9,620,951

W]

33,295

9,659,202
34,559
919,401

10,613,162

2,071)

7,101
379,515

(3,952,803)

(3,548,258)

—

3,564

4,144,203






COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANS CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GENERAIL FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Exhibit A-7

Encunbrance for capital outlay and supplies ordered but not received is reported in the
year the erders are placed for budgetary purposes, but are reported in the year
‘the capital items and supplies are received for GAAP purposes

Prior year encumbrances as restated
Current year encumbrances

Net deerease in fund balance - GAAP to budget

b 95,765
(50,406)

M 45,359

GAAP to Actual Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Budpet Amounts Final Budget
Amounts Differences Budgetary Positive [
Original Final GAAP Basis Over (Under) Basis (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taxes 5 22470759 § 22,470,759 $ 21,904,252 b3 - $ 21,904,252 b3 (566,507)
latergovernmental revenue 5,070,830 5,070,830 5,909,632 - 5,909,632 838,802 [
l.icenses and permits 657,500 657,500 591,366 - 591,366 (66,134)
Charges for services 1,805,000 1,805,000 2,477,395 - 2,477,395 672,395
T'ines, fees and forfeitures 1,665,930 1,663,930 1,483,022 - 1,483,022 (182,968)
Investment income 500,473 500,473 29,476 - 29,476 {470,997) r
(ther 919,154 919,154 389,463 - ] 389.463 (528,691)1
Total revenues 33,089,646 33,089,646 32,784,606 - 32,784,606 (305,040}
EXVENDITURES
(ieneral government 11,143,089 13,155,478 10,173,401 (81,328) 10,092,073 * 3,063,405
. Jndicial 3,062,428 3,061,675 2,914,878 - 2,914,878 146,797
Public works 1,092,771 1,095,140 1,034,864 10,796 1,045,660 49,480
Public safety 9,784,293 9,724,408 10,190,057 29,802 10,219,859 (495,451)
Social and health 1,398,573 1,389,802 1,316,414 (5,082) 1,311,332 78,470 [
Internal services 556,557 556,557 532,236 453 532,689 23,868
Culture and recreation 216,781 . 215,181 224 639 - 224,639 (9,458)
Allocations to others 5,315,419 5,420,039 5,408,096 - /5,408,096 11,943
Non-budgeted expenditures - - 952,316 - 952,316 (952,316} (
Debt service
Principal retirement - - 220,000 - . 220,000 (220,000)
Enterest and fiscal charges - - 48,265 - 48,265 (48,265)
Total expenditures 32,569,911 34,618280 33,015,166 {45,359) 32,969,807 1,648,473 [
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under expenditures) 519,735 (1,528,634) (230,560) 45,359 (185,201) 1,343,433 [
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 41,285 - 41,285 41,285
Transfers in - 2,048,369 126,932 - 126,932 {(1,921,437)
Transfers out (519,735) (519,735) (71,355) - (71,355) 448,380 [
Total other financing sources (uses) (519,735) 1,528,634 96,862 - 06,862 (1,431,772)
Net change in fund balance 3 - $ - {133,698) 45,359 (88,339) % 88,339
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,999,594 (95,765) 1,903,829 [
Fund balances, end of year $  1,865896 b (50,406 § 1,815490 {

The acd>mpanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterments. - ’





COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCTARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (
Property taxes receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to General Fund

Due to Special Revenue Fund
Due to taxing units |

Due to others

Total liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASICF INANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the County of Orangeburg, South Carolina (the County), have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and fi nancxal prmmples The more
significant of the County’s accounting policies are described below.

. A. 'Reporting entity

Orangeburg County, South Carolina is governed by an elected seven-member council. - As
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the

. financial statements present the government and its component units, although legally separate
entities, are, in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are
combined with data of the primary government. A discretely presented component unit, on the
other hand, is reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize
that it is legally separate from the government. All of the County’s component units report
financial data using June 30 year ends.

~ Blended component unit

The Orangeburg Joint Governmental Action Authority Corporation (the Corporation) was
formed primarily to construct capital projects under the second penny sales tax referendum.
The Corporation is governed by a board composed of the County Council Chairman and the
Orangeburg County Administrator. The Corporation financed its projects by issuing revenue
bonds which are being retired exclusively by the County’s rental payments for property
owned by the Corporation. The Corporation is presented as a governmental fund type.

Discretely presented component units

Orangeburg County Public Library — The Orangeburg County Public Library (the Library)
provides library services to County residents. Orangeburg County Council appoints all the
members of the Library’s Board of Trustees and provides the majority of the Library’s funds.
The County also owns all of the Library’s capital assets. Accordingly, the Library is fiscally
dependent on the County.

The Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center — The Orangeburg-Calhoun
Regional Detention Center (the LEC) houses prisoners for Orangeburg and Calhoun
Counties. The LEC is governed by a board composed of seven members, five of whom are
appointed by Orangeburg County Council, and two of whom are appointed by Cathoun

County Council. The LEC is fiscally dependent upon the County because its budget must be

approved by the Orangeburg County Council and the County provides the majority of its
funding. The LEC is presented as a governmental fund type.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. Reporting entity (Continued)

B. Basis of presentation

The Orangeburg County Fire Commission — The Orangeburg County Fire Commis
(the Commussion) was created in 1997 to provide coordinated fire protection throug

Orangeburg County. The Commission has either bought or leased the equipment used b}f the

twenty-three volunteer fire departments which previously provided fire protection in
County. The Commission is governed by a board composed of seven members, all of w
are appointed by the Orangeburg County Council. The Commission’s budget and the SPS
millage rate to fund it must be approved by County Council. In addition, the Coun
wholly responsible for the Commission’s debt and owns all the Commission’s capital as
Accordingly, the Commission is fiscally dependent on the County.

Complete financial statements for the Orangeburg County Public Library may be obtaine
the Central Library Office located at 510 Louis Street N.E., Orangeburg, South Caro
Complete financial statements for the LEC may be obtained at its office, 1520 Ellis AW
Ext. N.E., Orangeburg, South Carolina. Complete financial statements for- the
Commission may be obtained from the Orangeburg County Administrator, 1437 An
Street, Orangeburg, South Carolina.

The County’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, inc]udill
statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements w
provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide financial statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about
County as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the prin
government, except for fiduciary funds. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity,
been removed from the statements.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental activities
the County at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between di
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expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the County’s governmental

activities of the County. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated wi
service, program or department and therefore, clearly are identifiable to a particular funct
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient for the goods or servicés offered
the program, grants, and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or ca
requirements of a particular program and interest earned on grants that is required to be
to support a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues
presented as general revenues of the County, with certain limited exceptions.

comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which &
governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the County.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Fund financial statements

During the year, the County segregates transactions related to certain County functions or
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the
County at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental financial statements is on
major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column; Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

C. Fund éccounting

The accounts of the government are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts: Fund accounting
segregates funds according to their intended purposes and is used to aid management in
demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum
number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

The government has the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The capital project sales tax fund accounts for the sale tax revenues that are restricted to
improve, repair and construct infrastructure for the County.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

The Specia_l revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than special assessments, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

The capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on general Jong-term debt associated with equipment and facilities

owned by the County.

The agency funds account for monies held on behalf of schootl districts, special districts and
other agencies that use the County as a depository or property taxes that are collected on
behalf of the other governments.

Measurement Focus ,

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the County are

included on the statement of net assets.
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I- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund financial statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resoufces

measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabil
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures

ties
and

changes in fund-balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sourtes)
and uses (i.c., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. [This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-
wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements thergfore

include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship betweer
government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

the

Fiduciary funds generally are reported using the economic resources measurement fopus,

except agency funds, in which assets equal liabilities and there are no “operations™ to reg
All of the County’s fiduciary funds are considered agency funds.

Basis of accounting

ort.

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records [and
reported on the. financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basik of
accounting. Fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accfual

and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recor
of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues — exchanges and non-exchange transactions

ing

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives

essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. (
modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources
measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be colle
within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter tq

used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the County, available means expectchi

be received within sixty days of fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the County receives value without directly giving eg
value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an acc

na
are
ted
be
to

tal
ual

basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes|are

levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year i
e

which ail eligibility requircments have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include ti

requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year

when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the County must provide |

resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which Jthe

cal

resources are provided to the County on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis,

revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied.

Property taxes receivable for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2010

have been recorded as deferred revenue. Grants and entitlements received before the

eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that Wi]l not be collected within the
available period have also been reported as deferred revenue.

.

Expenses/expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized- in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations
of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

Encumbrances

Encumbrances accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General
Fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances
and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be
reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.

Cash and investments

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the government and its component units to invest in (1) obligations of
the United States and its agencies, (2) general obligations of South Carolina and its political
subdivisions, (3) financial institutions if their deposits are insured by an agency of the federal
government, and (4) certificates of deposit which are collaterally secured by securities of the

.type described at (1) and (2) above which are held by a third party. :

Investments, consisting of repurchase agreements and mortgage-backed securities, are stated
at fair value. No investments are stated at amortized cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

" Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangem

 Comipensated absences

rand sick pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave sinceJnhe

Receivables and payables

nts
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “interfund
receivables/payables” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from dther
funds” {i.c., the non—current portion of interfund loans). AIl other outstandmg balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from funds.”

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible taxes.
Taxes on real property are assessed as of January 1, levied the following September,‘due
January 15, and become delinquent March 15. Liens are attached to the property at the time
the taxes are levied. The levy date for motor vehicle taxes is the first day of the month in
which the motor vehicle license expires. These taxes are due' by the last day of the s
month.

Property tax receivables and allowances by majof and other governmental funds ag of
June 30, 2010 were as Tollows:

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds . Funds
Property taxes receivable - $ 1,882,599 $770,973 ' $2,653,57;
Less: Allowance’ ' (188.260) (77.097) (265,357)

Net 81,694,339 $.693.876 $2,388213
Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costy of

~ governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than

when purchased.
Intergovernmental receivable
Amounts due from federal grants represent reimbursable costs, which have been incurred by

the County but have not been reimbursed by the grantor agency. Costs under grant programs
are recognized as expenditures in the period in which they are incurred by the County.

ion

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacat

government does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate fi
service with the government. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-

- wide and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in

governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of emplorvee
resignations and retirements. The general fund is used to liquidate any liabilities [for
compensated absences.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Use of estimates

. The financial statements include estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures. Actual results could difter from these estimates.

Interfund transactions
Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or

expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as

. expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in
- the fund that is reimbursed. .

All other interfund transactions, except interfund services provided and used, are reported as

transfers. |
Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges and similar items), are reported in the governmental activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. The amounts reported include infrastructure acquired
prior to the County implementing GASB Statement No. 34. Capital assets are defined by the
County as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,500 and an estimated useful
life in excess of three years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation. \
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. -

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as the projects are
constructed. .

All reported capital assets are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining

~useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
" method over the foillowing usefu] lives:_.

Land improvements . . 15 years
Buildings 30 years
Building improvements e 15 years
Vehicles L ‘ 5 years
- Furniture and equipment S S 3 to 10 years
Machinery and equipment - . , - . 5tol0-years
Infrastructure . . S L 25 to 30 vears
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II__‘

Lighting Tax District, Victims’ Assistance, Brookdale Lighting Tax District, and Special Educa

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

“ Net assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets investeﬁ in
capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciatlion,

reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the ‘acquisition, construct
or improvements of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the Cos
" or through external restrictions 1mposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of ot
governments.

The County applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for w
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary information — Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accoun

fon
are

]

1ch

ing

principles generally accepted in the United States of America for the general fund, the debt seryice

fund, and various but not all special revenue funds. The County has no major special revenue fi

nds

that would require legally adopted budgets. The capital improvements capital projects fund also

adopts an annual budget consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the Un
States of America, and the two sales tax funds adopt project-length budgets. All an
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

In February of each year, all agencies of the County submit requests for appropriations to
County Administrator so that a budget may be prepared. By the end of March, the proposed bus
is presented to County Council for review. The Council holds public hearmgs and a final bu
must be prepared and adopted no later than June 30.

ited
ual
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The appropriate budget is prepared by fund, function and department. Line item transfers within

operating departments may be approved by the County Administrator. Transfers from
contingency account in excess of $2,000 must be approved by County Council. Thelegal leve
budgetary control is the department level. Budget amounts reflected in the accompanying finar
statements represent the original budgets and any revisions.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purct
orders, contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do
constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be re- approprlated and hone
durmg the subsequent year.,

Deﬁc:t fund equity —'As of June 30, 2010, Roads and Bridges Maintenance, New Brook
special revenue funds had deficit fund balances of $365,245, $24,939, $53,402, $18,574,

51,466,740, respectively. As of June 30, 2010, Economic Development Tobacco and Edisto SeL
Capltal Projects funds had deficit fund balances of $79,820 and $628,591 respectwe]y
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- STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

Excess of expenditures over appropriations — For the year ended June 30, 2010, expenditures in the

following general fund divisions exceeded appropriations:

Public Safety ] . Co
Sheriff | . : - $ 243,888
E-911 Communication Center o . 21,869
Emergency Medical Service : _ : : 266,877
Social and Health : . .
Allocations to social agencies o 20,283
Culture and recreation 9,458
Capital assets purchased through .
Library L : .. - ‘ 9,149
Law Enforcement Center - 5,598
Fire District 937,569
Debt Service D o o
Principal retirement 220,000
Interest and fiscal charges . 48,265

Available fund balance was sufficient to provide for the excess eégpenditures.

Il - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS .

NOTE 1 -

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

At June 30, 2010, the carrying amount of the County’s. deposits was $34,259,991 aud the
bank balance was $34,896,835. State law requires that all of the County’s deposits be
covered by FDIC insurance or by collateral held in the pledging financial institutions’ trust
departments in the County’s name. At June 30, 2010, the County’s bank deposits were
either fully insured or collateralized. . . ;

As‘of June 30, 2010, the County had the following investments: ‘
S Ihvésf:mént Maturities {in years)
Fair value Less than 1 1-5 More than 5

U.S. Treasuries $ 6,601,946 § 6,601,946 $ . - 8 -

U.S. Agencies | . 6,780,378 . 6,780,378 . - : -

Guaranteed investment . L
confracts 42.177.264 - 42.177.264 -

$55559,588 313,382,324 $42,177,264 . § -

* Interest rate risk

The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to tair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

As of June 30, 2010, the County held $42,177,264 in fixed rate guaranteed investment
contracts with maturities ranging from one to approximately four years. The long-term
maturities of these investments may expose the County to significant interest rate risk
arising from potential fair value losses in a period of increasing interest rates.
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III - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE1-

NOTE 2 —

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Credit risk

The County has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices g

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

$_16544939 § 1548428 $¢3,972,193) $14,121,174

43

ther
than state law.
The County’s investments in U.S. Treasuries and U.S. Agencies were rated AAA by
Moody’s Investors Services and AAA by Standard & Poor’s. Of the County’s investments -
in guaranteed investment contracts, underlying securities exceeding $42,177,264 are held
by the investment’s counterparty, in the name of the County.
Concentration of credit risk
The County’s policy places no limit on the amount the County may invest in any [one
issuer.
A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and investments as shown on|the
government-wide statement of net assets and the statement of fiduciary net assets is as
follows:
Reported value of deposits $ 34,259,991
Cash on hand 1,608
Fair value of investments 55,559,588
589,821,187
Primary Government:
Cash and cash equivalents — Exhibit A-1 $ 17,526,294
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agent — Exhibit A-1 1,120,169
Investments-with fiscal agent — Exhibit A-1 55,559,588
Cash and cash equivalents — Exhibit A-8 15.615.136
$ 89,821,187
CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:
Balance Reductions/ Balance
June 30, 2009 Additions Transfers June 30, 2010
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being
depreciated
Land § 3471440 § 293,001 § - $ 3764441
Construclion in progress 11,073,499 1,.255.427 (3.972,193) 8.356,733






HOI - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 2 -

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balance Reductions/ Balance
June 30, 2005 Additions Transfers June 30, 2010
Capital assets being depreciated
Infrastructure $ 41,265,792 $ 2,245258 $ - § 43,511,050
Building and
improvements 47,813,327 10,460,558 3,972,193 62,246,078
Furniture and
equipment 43,729,486 1.568.160 (1,455.714} __ 43.841.932
Total capital assets .
being depreciated 132,808,605 14.273.976 2.516.479 149,599,060
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure (7,253,077)  (1,274,634) - (8,527,711)
Building and '
improvements (28,074,520}  (1,208,146) - (29,282 666)
Furniture and
equipment (33.610,296) _ (3.623.179) 1.360.220 (35.873.259)
Total accumulated
depreciation (68,937.893) _ {6.105,959) 1,360,220 {73.683.632)
Total capitai assets being
depreciated, net 63.870.712 3.168.017 75.915.428

Governmental activities
capital assets net

3,876,699

Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General government
Judicial

Public works

Public safety

Social and health
Sanitation

Culture and recreation

Total

44

3 80415651 § 9,716,445 5 {95494y § 90,036,602

$ 734,367
60,449
2,502,591
2,621,461
29,422
39,822
117.847

$6.105.959
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11~ PETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE_3 — COMPONENT UNIT INFORMATION

Reconciliation of total component unit fund balances to net assets of component [unit

activities. :
: Regional Total
Fire Public " Detention Component
Commission Library Center __Units

Total Fund Balances — Component .
Units $ 453,860
Some revenues will be collected
after year-end but are not available
soon enough to pay for the current
period’s expenditures and therefore

. $ 204463 S 84,694 $ 743017

- - 158,380

are deferred in the funds 158,380
Some other liabilities are not due

and payable in the current period

and therefore are not reported in

the funds , - ' (87.789)
Net assets of component units’

activities $ 524 451

(349.911)  _(1,072,391) {1.510.091)

S(145448) S (987.607) m&'&z

Reconciliation of the-Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changgs in

Fund Balances of Component Units to the Combining Statement of Activities.

Fire
Commission

Net change in fund

balance — Component units $ (242,348)
Becanse some revenues will not
~ be collected for several

months after the County’s

fiscal year ends, they are

not considered “available”

revenues and are deferred

in the governmental funds.

Deferred property tax

revenues decreased by this

amount this year. 9,752

Some expenses reported in the
statement of activities do
not require the use of current
financial resources and
therefore are not reported

‘ -Regional Tagal
Public Detention Component
Library Center Units

$(118,817) S 21270  $(339/895)

- - 952

(146017) _ (446,664) _ (619]606)

as expenditures (26.925)
Changes in net assets of
component units” activities $.0259.521)
45
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Il - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 3 -

NOTE 4 -

COMPONENT UNIT INFORMATION (Continued)

The County maintains all capital assets of.the three component units on its capital asset
listing. Also, the related general obligation bond for the purchase of Fire District capital
assets is in the name of and reported by the County. Therefore, as the three component
units acquire capital assets or pay debt obligations, these transactions are reflected in the
operating activity of their respective financial statements as payments to reimburse the
County. The County includes these reimbursements as intergovernmental revenue and then
the' capital asset purchase or debt principal and interest expenditures. The following
transactions occurred during the fiscal year 2010: '

The Orangeburg County Fire District reimbursed $268,265 to t‘}'le Couhty for payment of
principal and interest on a general obligation bond held by the County for Fire District
related assets and $937,569 for capital asset acquisitions maintained by the County on its

- capital asset listing.

The Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center reimbursed $5,598 to the County for
capital asset acquisitions maintained by the County on its capital asset listing.

The Orangeburg County Public Library reimbursed $9,149 to the County for capital asset
acquisitions maintained by the County on its capital asset listing. *
INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

The balances of interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2010 were as follows:

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund : B Amount
General Fund Nounmajor Governmentaf ~§ 3,996,854
General Fund Capital Project Sales Tax IT : 1,692,833
Nonmajor Governmental General Fund - ' 22.995.887

.- $28,685574

*

All of the above balances are scheduled to be collected in the. subsequent year. The
balances at June 30 resulted from the time lag between the dates that interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions-are recorded in the
accounting system and payments between funds are made.. c

Any transactions to transfer revenues from the fund budgeted to receive them to the fund
budgeted to expend them are reported as transfers from and to other funds. Total transfers
during the year ended June 30, 2010 consisted of the following individual amounts:

Transfer In Fund Transfer Out Fund -~ . Amount

Nonmajor Governmental Fund  General Fund . $ 198,287
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NOTE 5 -

Il - PETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
LEASES
Capital leases — The County has entered into lease agreements as lessee in order to finance
acquisition of various vehicles, radio equipment, heavy equipment and fire trucks. |The
lease agreements include a bargain purchase option and qualify as capital leases for
accounting purposes.
The following is an analysis of equipment leased under capital leases as of June 30, 201)0:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment : _ ¥ 8,629,316
Less: accumulated depreciation : - ‘ (6.017.142)
Carrying value ST 8261214
The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of the minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2010 were as follows:
2010 - $ 1,181,641
2011 . 3,148,358
2012 ' 300,347
2013 _ 384,834
2014 _ ‘ 384,834
Thereafter 865,875
Total minimum lease payments " 6,265,889
Less, amount representing interest ' 628,832
Present value of minimum lease payments : $ 5,637,087
Capital leases payable at June 30, 2010 are comprised of the following individual leases
Lease purchase agreement with a commercial credit
corporation entered into October 2007 for $2,256,689,
collateralized by communication equipment. Monthly
payments of $20,000, including principal and interest -
at 5.17%. This agreement matures in September 2017. - $ 1,973,134
Lease purchase agreement with a commercial credit
corporation entered into September 2006 for
$4,262,034, collateralized by heavy equipment.
Monthly payments of $52,145, including principal and
interest ranging between 3.96% and 5.97%. The
agreement matures in September 2011, 2,474,624
47






Il - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE5- LEASES (Continued)

Lease purchase agreement with a commercial credit

" -corporation entered into October 2006 for $1,100,651,

NOTE 6 -

collateralized by heavy equipment. Monthly payments
of $12,157, including principal and interest ranging
between 4.40% and 5.85%. The agreement matures in
October 2011.

Lease purchase agreement with a bank entered into
December 2006 for $327,425, with a down payment of
$81,856, collateralized by communication equipment.
Annual payments of $57,207, including principal and
interest at 531%. The agreement matures in

. .D_er':ember 2011..

Lease purchase agreement with a commercial credit
corporation entered into January 2007 for $667,516,
collateralized by heavy equipment. Monthly payments
of $9,401, including principal and interest ranging
between 4.32% and 5.08%. The agreement matures in
January 2012.

LONG-TERM DEBT

717,062

105,906

366,311

$5.637,037

General Obligation Bonds — The County has issu,ed"general obligation debt to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. General obligation
bonds payable at June 30, 2010 are composed of the following individual issues:

Balance

June 30, 2009 Additions

" Retirements

Balance Amount due
June 30, 2010 in one year

General obligation bonds
of 1999 due in anmual
_installments ranging from
3165000 to  3$275,000
through January 1, 2014;
interest at 4% to 6% -
original issued was
$2,900,000. These bonds
are excluded from the legal
debt margin calculation by
referendum.

$ 1,235,000

$ N
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$ 220,000 § 1,015,000

$ 235,000
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IIT - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

A

Balance Balance Amount due
June 30, 2009 Additions Retirements June 30, 2010 _.in one vear

General obligation bonds.
of 2003 due in annuval
installments ranging from
$345.000 - $635,000
through April 1, 2023;
interest at 2% to 5% -
original issue was
$9,133,000. ) 6,853,000 - 380,000 6,475,000 390,000

General obligation bonds
of 2008 due in annual
installments ranging from
$840,000 - $1,145,000
through April 1, 2018;
interest at 3.75% to 5.0% -
original issue was

$9,715,000. 8.8735.000 - 855.000 8.020.000 880,000
Total $16.965,000 $ - $1,455.000 $.15.510,000

The County issued $11,185,000 general obligation bonds, Series 2003 A & B fof an
advance refunding of the $2,000,000 outstanding balance of general obligation bofids,
Series 1998. The refunding was undertaken to reduce future debt service payments. [Ihe
reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $154,164. This
amount is being netted against the new debt and being amortized oveér the new debt’s Jife,
which is the same as the refunded debt. The transaction also resulted in an economic gain
of $61,120 and a reduction of $76,400 in future debt service payments.

Annual requfrements to amortize general obligation debt outstanding at June 30, 2010,
- excluding arbitrage rebate liabilities, if any, are summarized as follows:

Y

Year ended .
June 30, Principal Interest Totals
2011 $ 1,505,000 $ 638913 $ 2,143,913
2012 1,560,000 579,957 2,139,957
2013 1,625,000 520,717 2,145.717
2014 1,690,000 457,300 2,147,300
2015 1,465,000 391,325 1,856,325
2016 - 2020 5,845,000 1,089,670 6,934,670
2021 -2023 1.820,000 184,750 2.004.750
$15,510,000 53,862,632 $19.372,632
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Il - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) -

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Revenue Bonds — The County and Orangeburg Joint Governmental Action Authority (a
blended component: unit) have issued revenue bonds to fund the construction of various

infrastructure and large-scale building and improvement projects.

Sales tax collections

have been designated to re-pay the bonds. Revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2010 are

composed of the following individual issues:

Balance

June 30, 2009 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2010

Amount due
in_one year

: ’ County:

Revenue bond, Series
2002, due in monthly
installments  of  $1,496
through November 135,
2042; interest at 4.5% -
original issue was
$343,805. $ 307459 $ - $ 4202 %

Orangeburg Joint Governmental Action Authority:

Revenue bond, Series
2007, due in semiannual
installments ranging fom
$3,345,000 to $5,600,000
through October 1, 2014;
interest at 3% - original : ) ' :
issue was $64,245.000. 51.945.000 . 8.200.000

5 4,394

9.000.000

Total $52252450 8 - §8204200 $44048257 $9.004394

On February 1, 2007, the Orangeburg Joint Governmental Action Authority (a blended
component unit) issued $64,245,000 in revenue bonds with an interest rate of 5%. The net
proceeds were $67,154,611 including a premium of $2,909,611 after payment of
$1,077,049 in issuance costs. The premium will be amortized evenly over the life of the

bond.
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IH - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Annual requirements to amortize revenue bond debt outstanding at June 30, 2010

summarized as follows:

are

Year ended
June 30, Principal Interest Totals
2011 $ 9,004,394 $ 2,088,307 $ 11,092,701
2012 9,004,596 1,638,106 10,642,702
2013 11,204,808 1,160,394 12,365,202
2014 11,205,028 600,174 11,805,202
2015 : 3,350,260 96,318 3,446,578
2016 - 2020 30,150 59,610 89,760
2021 - 2025 37,742 52,018 89,760
2026 - 2030 47245 42,515 89,760
2031 -2035 59,141 30,619 89,760
2036 - 2040 74,033 15,727 89,760
2041 - 2042 30,860 1,220 32.080
$ 44,048 257 § 5,785,008 $.49,833 265
Notes Pavable — Notes payable at June 30, 2010 are composed of the following:
Balance Balance Amount due
June 30, 2009 Additions Retirements  _ June 30, 2010 in one year _

Loan from Lower Savannah

Regional Development Cor-

poration. The note is to be

repaid over 120 monthly

principal and interest pay-

ments and a halloon pay-

ment due at the end of the

tenth year; intcrest at 2.5%. $ 34,359 $534.101 $35.83¢

Annual requirements to amortize notes payable debt at June 30, 2010 are summarize

follows:

Year ended
June 30,

2011
2012
2013

3568660 S

Principal

$ 35,836
35,641
462,624

$534,101
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Interest Totals
$ 11,855 $ 47,691
12,050 47,691
4757 467,381
$28.662 $562.76
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III - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 6 —

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

There are a. number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond and
certificate indentures, such as type of authorized investments, promise to levy tax sufficient
to cover debt service, and establishment of sinking fund, if necessary. The County is not in
compliance with the sewer rate covenant pertaining to the Revenue Bond, Series 2002 with
USDA Rural Development.

The revenue bond has an outstanding balance of $303,257. The bond was issued to
construct sewer infrastructure and the County was to assess user fees to cover the costs of
operations and repayment of bond principal and interest. Per the bond covenant, these fees
are to be adjusted to ensure the costs are covered. The fees are insufficient to cover current
year costs by $98,335 and the total deficit fund balance of that account is $628,591 at
June 30, 2010. The County is reviewing the current rate schedule and operational
expenditures to determine a course of action to implement.

Changes in general long-term labilities — The following is a summary of debt transactions
of the County for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Balance Balance

Amount due
June 30, 2009 Additions Retirements ~ June 30, 2010 ]

in one year

General obligation

bonds - § 16,965,000 5 . -+ % 1,455,000  $15,510,000 $ 1,505,000
Revenue bonds 52,252,459 - 8,204,202 44,048,257 9,004,394
Premium on revenue

.bonds ) 1,992,450 - . 379,514 1,612,936 379,514
Notes payable 568,660 - 34,559 334,101 35,836
Capital leases 6,556,438 - 919,401 5,637,037 927,675
Landfill closure and

post-closure costs 247519 - 17,102 230,417 14,633
Compensated E

absences 1,208.098 718,460 716.388 1.210.170 359,230

$79,790.624 3718459 311726166 568782918  §12.226,282

The County boundaries also include additionai (unauditéd) overlapping débt of other
political subdivisions not administered by the County Treasurer, The extent of overlap is
100%.
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III — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 7 -

- the landfill with a minimum cover of certain permeability.

NOTE 8 -

CLOSURE AND POST CLOSURE COSTS OF MUNICIPAL SOLID WA
LANDFILL

The County operated a solid waste landfill, which it closed in July 1995. On July 1, 1
the County adopted GASB Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid W
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Costs, to account for closure and post closure ¢
associated with this landfill. The South Carolina Department of Health and Environme

»TE

D94,
Kiste
0sts
ntal

Contro! (DHEC) requires landfill operators to"provide for inspection and maintenanda of

the physical characteristics of the site, as well as monitoring and maintenance o
groundwater and gas monitoring systems and the leachate collection and treatment sys!
for a period of thirty years following the closing. DHEC also requires that operators ¢

the

em,

"The County liability for closure and postclosure care costs is based on landfill cap Jdty

used to date. Since the landfill was closed as of July 1995, the County considers it to Be at
100% capacity. The County pald to cover the landfill in fiscal 1996. Accordingly, long
~term liabilities reflect a $230,417 liability for estimated postclosure care costs. [This
amount includes a reduction of $17.102 during fiscal year 2010 to reflect one year’s
expenditures for postclosure care. Postclosure care costs are based on cngineering
estimates and are subject to change due to inflation, deflation, technology and/or applicable
laws and regulations. Payment for these costs is beihg made from special revenue funds in
the solid waste fund on a a pay-as-you go basis.
NET ASSETS
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities and were as follows:
Net Assets
- Invested in capltal assets, net of related debt: : ’
Net cap1tal assets ' 3 90,036,692
Less: Revenue bonds : (44,048,257)
Premium on revenue bonds o (1,612,936)
General obligation bonds © (15,510,000)
Capital leases ~ - (5,637,037)
Notes payable : (534,141)
Add: Unspent debt proceeds - 15.347.824
38,042,095
Restricted for capital activity and debt service:
Restricted cash and recelvables
Debt service ' 10,145,647
Capital proceeds - ‘ i T 60,227,801
Less: Unspent debt proceeds ‘ 15,347.824)
- o - : T 55,025,624
Unrestricted ‘ 678.976
Total net assets - $.93,746,695
53
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IIf - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 9 -

NOTE 10 —

NOTE 11 —

CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

From time to time, the County has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial

. assistance to private. sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and

commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the
property financed and .are payable .solely from payments received on the underlying
mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the.acquired facilities
transfers to the private sector entity served by the bond issuance. - Neither the County, the
State of South Carolina, nor any, political : subd1v1510n thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as-liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30,2010, the aggregate principal payable
on these bonds was approximately $16,155,000. ‘

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County .is, exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of damage to and
destructlon of assets, errors and omissions, and job related illnesses and -accidents. The

County pays premiums to a public entity risk pool for workman’s compensation insurance
. and to the State Accident Fund for all other forms of coverage. The public entity risk pool

and the State Accident Fund promise to pay to or on behalf of the insured for covered
economic losses sustained during the policy period in accordance with insurance policy and
benefit program limits. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any
significant uninsured losses for the covered risks. There has been no significant reduction
in coverage and amounts of settlements have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three
years.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

The majority of employees of the County are miembers of the South Carolina Retirement
System (SCRS) and Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), cost sharing, multi-
employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the South Carolina Retirement
Systems, a division of the State Budget and Control Board. The State Optional Retirement
Program (ORP) is a defined contribution plan that is offered as an alternative to certain
state, public school, and higher education employees. State ORP. participants direct the
investment of their funds into a plan administered by one of four investment providers.
The SCRS assumes no liability for State ORP benefits, as they are the liability of the
investment providers.

Both the SCRS and PORS offe; retirément, disability, survivor and death benefits to
eligible members or beneficiaries. Death benefits are also available to active State ORP

. participants. The Plans’ provisions are established under Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws.

Provided that the actuarial assumed rate of investment return adopted by the Budget and
Control Board is at or above 8%, each July I, eligible SCRS retirees should receive an
automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) equal to the percentage of the annual increase
in the CPI-W as of the previous December 31, up to an increase of 2%. If the CPI-W is
less than 2%, the COLA should equal the percentage of the actual increase in the CPI-W,
COLAs are awarded only during times of inflation, so no COLA will be awarded if the
CPI-W is negative. ,
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NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RET]REMENT PLANS (Continued)’

- Employees are eligible for full service retirement upon reaching age 65 or completion qf 28

years credited service under SCRS or upon reaching age 55 or completion of 25 years
credited service under PORS. The benefit formula effective July 1, 1989 for the System is
1.82% of an employee's average final compensation multiplied by the number of yea%:t; of

creditable service under SCRS or 2.14% of an employee's average final compensation
multiplied by the number of years of creditable service under PORS . An early retirement
option with réduced benefits is available as early as age 60 or at age 55 with 25 yeajs of
service under the SCRS. Employees are vested for a deferred annuity after 5 yea
service. Disability annuity benefits are -payable to employees totally and permanéntly
disabled provided they have a minimum of 5 years of earned service, unless the injufy is
job related. A death benefit equai to an employee’s annual rate of compensation is payable
upon the death of an employee with a minimum of one year of credited service.

- Teacher and employee retention incentive (TERI) is a deferred retirement option progtam. -
- Upon meeting normal retirement eligibility, a member can elect to retire and contjnue

working under the TERI program for a maximum of five years, after which employment
will cease. During the TERI paiticipation, the retirement annuity is not paid to the T[ERI
retirees, but monthly benefits are accumulated in TERI accounts and are distributed tq| the
members upon termination of employment. For members retiring after June 30, 2005, a
payment for annual leave is not included in calculating benefits. Upon terminatjon,
however, benefits are increased prospectively to include paymént for up to 45 days anitual
leave paid at termination of employment. No interest is credited to the TERI acconnt,
TERI participants who entered the program after June 30, 2005, must’ continué to
contribute at the same rate as active members. Those who entered prior to July 1, 2005, -
make no employee contributions while participating in TERI. No additional service ctedit
is earned during this period and participants are ineligible for disability retirement benetits.

Both employees and employers are required to contribute to the Plan at rates established
under authority of Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws. Employees are required to contribute
6.5% of all earnings under both Plans. The County's liability under the Plans is limited to
the amount of contributions (stated as a percentage of covered payroll) established byjthe
State Budget and Control Board. The County has contributed 100 percent of its required
contribution for the current year and each of the preceding two years. Effective Jul{ I,
2009, the employer confribution rate is 9.24% to SCRS and 10.65% to PORS. '[l"he
contribution requirements by the County for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2009, and 2010
were as foIlows :

2008 - 2009 — 2010

SCRS PORS SCRS . PORS - SCRS PORS
Employer E .
- contributions § 1,122,442 $667,955 $1,373,790 $723,181 $1,382,324  §729,544
Group Life '

contribution-sr $21,796  $25940  $22302  $27.162 '$22,440  $27,4(

—

The County’s 2009 — 2010 contributions :.'epresented less than one percent of tiptal
contributions’ required of all participating entities. All employefs contribute at |the
actuarially required contribution rates.
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NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) ' - s

. The amounts paid by the County for pension, group-life, and accidental death benefits are
: reported as employee benefits. ' .

‘The System do_es not make separate measurements of assets and pension benefit obligations

for individual employers. Accordingly, information regarding the excess, if any, applicable
. to the County of the actuarially computed value of vested benefits over the total of the
+ pension fund and any balance sheet accruals, less any pension prepayments or deferred
. charges, is not available. By State law, the County's liability under the retirement plan is
.- Jimited to contributions for the applicable year. Accordingly, the County recognizes no
. contingent liability ‘for -unfunded costs associated with participation in the Plan. All
- actuarially required contributions due to the Plan were paid.

Information concerning the authority under which benefit provisions and employee
- obligations to contribute are established, the significant actuarial assumptions for the Plan,
an explanation of the pension benefit obligation, the pension benefit obligation for the
System,. the total net assets available for benefits, and ten-year historical trend information
1. showing the System's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is
presented in the System's June 30, 2010 separately issued report.

A Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) containing financial statements and
required ‘supplementary information for the South Carolina Retirement System is publicly
‘available on its website at www.retirement.sc.gov, or a copy, may be obtained by
_submitting a, request to the South Carolina Retirement Systems, P.O. Box 11960,
Columbia, South Carolina 292.11-1960. . ' ,

NOTE 12— OTHER POSTEN[PLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN S

Back g_r_ound

v Beginning in fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, Orangeburg County and its component units
implemented prospectively Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
- No. 45 for other, postemployment benefits (OPEB) offered to retirees. This standard
addresses how local governments. should account for and report their costs related to
postemployment health care and other non-pension benefits, such as the County’s retiree
health benefit subsidy. Historically, the County’s subsidy was funded on a pay-as-you-go
basis but GASB 45 requires that the County accrue the cost of the retiree health subsidy
- and other postemployment benefits during the period of employees’ active employment,
while the benefits are being earned, and disclose the unfunded actuarial accrued liability in
order to accurately account for the total future cost of postemployment benef ts and the
financial impact on the County -

PIan Deserlption

The County of Orangeburg’s postemployment benefit plan is a single employer defined
plan that is self funded The three component umts are rncluded under this plan.

Other postemployment beneﬁts provided under the plan include a retirec health and dental
insurance premium contribution plan that covers retirees.
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1 DETATLED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continied)

" NOTE 12 —. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS (Continued)

. An employee must meet the following criteria to be eligible for retiree health and d¢ntal
insurance. The employee must have 15 years of service with the County and must qualify
for retirement under the South Carolina Retirement System or Police Officer Retirefient
System guidelines. For any employee retiring with less than 15 years of service withl the
County, no health and dental retirement benefits will be provided.

The County will pay the full cost of single retiree medical and dental insurance premjium
costs. Coverage for thé spouse is the responsibility of the retiree.

Fund_ihg Policy

The County has elected not to pre-fund OPEB llablhtles and to fund healthcare benefit
a pay—as you-go basis.

V}
o
=}

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obllgatlon

The annual cost of other postemp]oymeni; benefits (OPEB) under GASB 45 is called the
annual required contribution or ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year plus an-amount to amoftize -
any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to ex¢eed
thirty years. The current employer contribution rate for the County is 3.3 percent.

The County’s annual OPEB cost and the net OPEB obligation is calculated using a 4,0%
discount rate, which is based upon the anticipated long-term rate of return of the general
funds of the employer used to pay the plan benefits and an annual healthcare cost trend|rate
of 10% reduced by decrements of .5% to an ultimate rate of 6% and amortizing| the
unfunded actuarial liability over 30 years using the level dollar method as follows:

Componenf Units

Primary . Fire : Detentipn
Government Commission  Library Center
Annual required contribution $4,153,213 $29372 $ 158,609 $ 452,330
Interest on net OPEB obligation 136,662 966 5,219 14,484
Adjustment to annual required ‘ ‘
contribution (201,166} (1.423) (7.682) (21,909) -
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 4,088,709 28,915 156,146 445,305
Estimated pay-as-you-go annual )
employer contributions (135.906) - __(12.706) (4.490)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB - . :
obligation 3,952,803 28,915 + 143,440 440,415
Net OPEB obligation,
beginning of year 4,043913 29,191 153232 445.056

Net OPEB obligation, end of year  $.7,996,716 $.58,106 $296,672  $.885,471
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IH - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 12— OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS (continued)

., Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on-the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employee and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The Projected Unit Credit, Level Dollar actuarial cost method has been used to calculate
.. the GASB ARC for this valuation. Using the plan benefits, the present health and dental
premiums and a set of actuarial assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected.
The projected unit credit method then provides for a systematic funding for these
anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of benefits being
carned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued
* liability. The unfunded liability is amortized over thirty years using, the level dollar method
.. .. which divides the liability into equal dollar.amounts over the selected-number of years;
each payment is part interest, part principal. This is both an accepted and reasonable cost
method S : _ : :
. 1
Trend Information:

. ; ' .o

The County’s and its component units” annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB

cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obhgatlon for the years ended June 30, 2010
.+ and June 30, 2009 were as follows:, :

Percentage
of Annual
Fiscal Year ) Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended . OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
Primary Government
i June 30, 2009 $ 4,127,651 21% $ 4,043,913
" June 30,2010 $ 4,088,709 3.3% $ 7,996,716
Discfetely presented Componen‘f units:
Fire Commission : : :
June 30, 2009 $29,191 . 0% $ 29,191
June 30, 2010 $28915 0% : $ 58,106
" ‘Library T : :
June 30, 2009 $ 157,633 29% $ 153,232
June 30, 2010 $ 156,146 8.1% . - $ 296,672
Detention Center
June 30, 2009 $ 449,546 1.0% $ 445,056

June 30, 2010 § 445,305 , 1.0% $ 885,871
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M1 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 12— OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS (continued)

'NOTE 13 -

NOTE 14—

Funded Status and Funding Progress:

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date,’
was as follows: ' ‘
Component Units
Primary Fire Detention
Government Commission  Library Center
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL). $33,440,356  $236,495 $1,277,072 $3,642019
Actuarial value of plan assets L - - , - -
Unfunded Actuarial accrued .
liability (UAAL) $33,440,356 $236,495 $1277.072 $3,642019
Funded ratio (actuarial value
of plan assets (AAL) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Covered payroll (active plan :
members) $12924640 $ 91405 § 493586 §$1.407.634
UAAL as a percentage of
covered payroll 258.7% 258.7% 258.7% 258.7fa
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts

Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare
trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual req
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revisions as actual results
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the ﬁiEre.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The County provides accounting, payroll and cash management service to alf three OT its

component units. These services are provided at no charge.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Grant Programs — Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subjea
audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of]
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
grantor cannot be determined at this time although the County expects such amount
any, to be immaterial. ;

Litigation — At June 30, 2010, the County was the defendant in several lawsuits invols

various types of claims. Althpugh the outcome of most of these lawsuits is not presently
(determinable, it is the opinion of the government’s counsel that resolution of these matT

will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the government.
settlement on one case pending at year-end has been fully executed and was covered by,
insurance carrier. i
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Il — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 14— CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

NOTE 15—

There are several lawsuits against the LEC pending with each involving inmates at the
Detention Center. In all cases, the legal proceedings are ongoing and are being handled by
the Office of Insurance.Reserve Fund whose position is to defend the LEC’s case
vigorously. It is too early in the proceedings to determine any potential outcome but all
should be covered by the Insurance Reserve Fund.

Additionally, the County received notice that certain persons working at the Detention
Center may be due compensation for what is commonly referred to as “Off the Clock™ time
under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). The County has assisted the LEC in
reviewing the matter. At this time it appears that the FLSA claims are limited to two types
~and involve 13 employees over a period of two years. On March 22, 2011, the Detention
Center Commission voted to pay out $28,225 on the first type of claim and to have counsel
for the relevant parties review the calculations and work on a resolution of the second type
of claim as weil as attorneys fees. As these amounts are an estimate and subject to change,

an amount has not been accrued or recorded on the financial statements as of June 30,

2010. The estimated range of loss as discussed above is $28,225 - $87,000.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

"Net Fund

Assets - Balance
Fund Bala:nce as previously reported : Cw
June 30, 2009 : $ 89,189,908. - $91,505,591
Capital Projects Sales Tax II
Sales tax projects were charged to Capital o
Improvement Fund in prior year (113,394) (113,394)
Capital Improvement Fund - . Co
Sales tax projects were charged to Capital
Improvement Fund in prior year 113,394 113,394
Grant Subfunds
Reclassed Multi Jurisdictional fund to : ‘
Sheriff’s Subfunds (6,323) (6,323)
Sheriff’s Subfunds .
Reclassed Multi Jurisdictional fund
from Grant Subfunds 6,323 6,323
Reclassed four funds previously
recorded as agency funds® . ) 84,083 . o 84,083
- Unrecorded bank aecounts of : , '
the Sheriff’s office T 308501 308,501
Fund Balance, as restated, : ‘ : T o .
June 30, 2009 89,582,492 $91,898,175
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Il — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) '

Agency Funds’ beginning balances were restated at June 30, 2009 as follows:

Clerk of Court Trust Fund
Assets:
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to General Fund

- NOTE 15— PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (continued)

As Previously

" Due to General Fund — overage/(deficit) 115,605

Due to Special Revenue Fund
Due to (from) other Agency Funds
Due to others

Total Liabilitics
OADC Trust Fund
Assets:
Cash

Liabilities
Due to others

The Clerk of Court Trust Fund and the QADC Trust Fund were restated by $25,643
- $6,070, respectlvely, to adjust for existing bank accounts being properly included in th

funds.

Sheriff-Federal Seized Property
Assets:
Due from General Fund

Liabilities
Due to others.
Sheriff-State Seized Property
Assets:
Due from General Fund
Liabhilities
Due to others
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Stated Restate-
June 30, 2009
$ 8%2.798 $ 25.643
$ 882798  §$25.64
$ 19,530 $ -
2,528 -
28,422 -
716,713 25.643
$ 882.798 $25.643
3 - $ 6,070
$ - $ 6070

$ 55885  §(55.885)
$ 55885 $(55.885)
$ 1385 S (1.385)
$_ 1385 § (1,385)

As restate
ment ~ June 30, 2?09

$ 908.44

d

$_908.4;

$° 19,53
115,64

28,4:

742,35

S 9084

=

/==

and
Ose

N

n






Il{ — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 15—~ PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (continued)

NOTE 16 -

NOTE 17 -

Sheriff-Abandoned Property

Assets:.

Due from General Fund

Liabilities

Due to others

Sex Offender Régistry

Assets:

Due from General Fund

Liabilities

Due to others

- As Previously

Restate-

Stated As restated
June 30, 2009 ment June 30, 2009
$ $(17,170) 3 -
$ 17,170 §QIZ;IZQ; 3 -
$ 9643 $(064 5 -
"5 o613 $ (9643) 8 _

The three Sheriff Funds and the Sex Offendef Régistry Fund were réstated to reclass from
Agency Funds to Special Revenue Funds for a total of $84,083.

CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The County was committed under construction contracts at June 30, 2010 as follows:

Edisto Sewer Phase 111
Edisto Sewer Phase II
Transit Facility
Broadband Project
Neeses Storage Building

NEW GASB STANDARDS

Contracted
Price

§ 414343

536,453
3,500,000
18,950,000

34,491

$ 23,435,287

Costs Incurred -

through
June 30, 2010

' §141,161
104,226

23289

Balance
to
Comniplete

3 273,182
342,227
3,500,000
18,950,000
11,202

$23,076.611

In fiscal year 2010, the County implemented or considered qualifications of the following

(GASB statements:

Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets: -This
statement established accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets
to reduce inconsistencies in reporting of these types of assets. This statement requires that
all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope and provisions be classified as
capital assets. There was no change in current practice as a result of implementing this

Statement.
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IIT - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 17- NEW GASB STANDARDS (continued)

NOTE 18 -

~ petitioned for protection from creditors by filing for bankruptcy under Chapter 9 of;

Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. [[his
statement addresses the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of information regartling
derivative instruments entered into by state and local governments. The County had no .
investments in derivative instruments at the time of implementation. Therefore, there|was

no current effect on the financial statements as a result of implementing this statement.

Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurement by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple Emplpyer
Plans. 'This statement addresses issues related to the use of the alternative measurement
method and the frequency and timing of measurements by employers that part_icipat'. in
agent multiple-employer other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans (that is, agent
employers). The County’s OPEB plan is a single employer plan and the County’s fotal

Statement No. 58, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies.
statement provides accounting and financial reporting guidance for governments that

United States Bankruptcy Code. It required governments to remeasure liabilities that
adjusted in bankruptcy when the bankruptcy court confirms (that is, approves) a

" plan members exceed the number to qualify for the alternative measurement metfrod.
" Therefore, this statement does not apply to the County.

Fhis

ave
the
are
ew

payment plan. Since the County is not in bankrupicy status, this statement has no effect on’

the financial statements.

The GASB has issued the following statements which will become effective in future y
as shown bhelow: : U

2Ars

Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. [The

objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information
providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and
clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. This statement will bec
effective for the County in fiscal year 2011. Management has not yet determined
impact of this statement on the financial statements. '

by
by .
me
the

Statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus. This statement updates and impraves

existing standards regarding financial reporting and disclosure requirements of cert
financial instruments and external investment pools for which significant issues have h
identified in practice. This statement will become effective for the County in fiscal y

ain
een
ear

2011. Management has not yet determined the impact of this statement on the finangial

statements. ’

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In June 2010, the County approved to extend sewer lines and service which will be parti
funded through a USDA loan of $8,492,100 with an interest rate of 2.5%.
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Il - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 18 -

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

In September 2010, the County entered into an agreement with JAFZA to act as a conduit

to allow JAFZA access to favorable borrowing terms and grant funds from UDSA through .
~ alocal electric cooperative company whereby, the County would be the grant subrecipient
- and incur the loan. The loan would be repaid by JAFZA who is leasing a building in the

County’s industrial park. The leased structure would gnarantee the loan. USDA will fund
the interest-free loan of $647 360 and the $300,000 grant.

A $4,000,000 line of clredit from a local electric company has Be;én accepted if needed for
any project related to the economic development needs of the County.

‘ In September 2010, the County was awarded and appfoved accéptaﬁce of a grant/loan from

Rural Development for construction of water services in the County. The County would
receive a $2,571,000 grant and incur a $2,830,000 loan with a match of $300,000 being
funded through Capltal Sales Tax funds for the project. User rates would be established
sufficient to cover the costs of operations and debt service. .

In Sepfember 2010, the County approved incurring a loan/grant agreement from USDA for
water services for the Vance area. The County would receive grant funds of $820,000 from
USDA and incur $632,400 in debt which would be repaid over 40 years at 2.375%. User

~ rates would be established sufficient to cover the costs of operations and debt service.

In September 2010, the County accepted a grant/loan agreement from USDA Rural Utilities
for a Broadband initiative program. The agency would provide a $13,987,499 grant and a
low interest loan of $4,662,501 for the project. User rates would be established sufficient
to cover the costs of operations and debt service.
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GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resource;
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The capztal project sales tax fund accounts for the sales tax revenues that are restrlcted to impr
repair, and construct infrastructure for the County.

The following Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
the General Fund and the CapltaI Project Sales Tax IT Fund are presented.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes
Intergovernmental revenue - Note 4
Iicenses and permits
Charges for services
Emergency Medical Services
Other
¥ines, fees and forfeitures
Investment income
(Hher
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

(jeneral government
Executive
Administrater
County attorney
Personnel
Vaoter registration
Election Commission
Delinquent tax collector
Treasurer )
Finance
Auditor
Tax assessor
Data processing
Plannmg and building inspections

Orangeburg County Development Commission '

Purchasing
Register of deeds
Other
Total general govemment

Judigial

" Clerk of court
Magter-in-equity
Probate Court
Magistrates
Public Defender
Solicitor

Total judicial

Public works
Building and Grounds

Sign shop
Total public works

Public safety
Sherift’
E-911 communications cenier
Emergency Medical Services
Coroner
Total pubiic safety

Souial and hezlth
Health services
Animalcontrol
Allocations to social agencies
Total social and health

Exhibit B-2 [

[

GAAP to Actual Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Budget Amonunts Final Budget
Amounts Differences Budgetary Positive
Original Final GAAP Basis Over (Under) Basis egﬂe)
$ 22,470,759 § 22,470,759 $ 21,904,252 3 - $ 21,904,252 $ (566,50'.’)r
5,070,830 5,070,830 - 5,909,632 - 5,909,632 838,302
657,500 657,500 591,366 - 591,366 (66,134}
1,600,000 1,600,000 2,361,602 - 2,361,602 761,602
205,000 205,000 115,793 - 115,793 {89,207)
1,665,930 1,665,930 1,483.022 - 1,483,022 {182,908)
500,473 500,473 29,476 - 29,476 (470,997)
919,154 919,154 389,463 - 389,463 @9,691)rl
33,089,646 33,089,646 32,784,606 - 32,784,606 @S,(MO)(
301,421 295,116 284995 .- 284,995 10,121 [
955,843 950,749 852,739 .- 852,739 98,010
325,175 325,175 238216 . - 238216 86,559
313,573 313,573 262,221 - 262,221 51,352
172,032 173,136 149,706 ' ] ' - 149,706 23,430 [
175,411 203,533 143,134 - 143,134 60,399
306,028 306,078 266,653 (5,211) 261,442 44,636
353,624 350,306 328,148 - - 328,148 22,158
400,724 398,685 324,532 246 324,778 - 73,807
240,619 241,175 235,225 2 235,229 5,946
706467 - 705,367 621,822 CL Tt 621,822 83,545
1,091,869 1,089,329 1,043,818 (54,265) 989,553 99,776
700448_ 693,118 622,802 . a7 623,839 69,279
'§25,737 825,737 824,804 - 824,804 933
153,535 152,677 - 120,027 ' - 120,027 32,650
297,542 297,463 294,806 - 294,806 2,657
3,823,041 5,834,261 3,559,659 -, (23.,045) . 3,536,614 2,297,647
_E1,143.089 13,155478 10,173,401 (81,328) 10,092,073 3,063,405 [
322,391 321,458 263,088 - 263,088 58,370 u
144,122 148,846 147,981 - 147,981 865 [
337,224 336,050 314,092 - 314,092 21,958
1,270,655 1,267,285 1,201,681 - 1,201,681 65,604
458,395 458,395 458,395 - 458,395 -
529,641 529,641 529,641 - 529,641 -
3,062,428 3,061,675 2,914,878 - 2,914,878 146,797
1,029,307 1,032,445 983,339 13,204 996,543 35,502
63,464 62,695 51,525 {2,408) 49,117 13,578
1,092,771 1,095,140 1,034,864 10,796 1,045,660 49,480
5,891,658 5,853,697 6,097,583 - 6,097,585 (243,888) [
600,233 600,018 603,940 17,947 621,887 (21,869)
2,588,969 2,973,617 3,220,468 11,026 3,240,494 (266,877)
303,433 297,076 259,064 829 259,893 37,183
9,784,293 9,724,408 10,190,057 29,802 10,219,859 {495,451) {
841,610 841,659 831,433 (2,335) §29,098 1,961
352,663 344,443 260,398 @747y 257651 86,792
204,300 204,300 224,583 - 224,583 (20,283)
1,398,573 1,389,802 1,316,414 (5,082) 1,311,332 78,470
{continued)
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R GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
! BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2(H0

Exhibit B-2

Net decrease in fund balance - GAAP to budget 5 45,359
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) GAAP to Actual Variance with
! Budgeted Amounts : Actual Budget _ Amounts Final Budget
’ ’ Amounts Differences Budgetary, Positive
Original Final GAAP Basis  ~ Over (Under) Basis (Negative)
EXPENDITURES, Continued "
Internal services - .
Vehicle maintenance ' 556,557 ' 556,557 532,236 453 532,680 23,868
Total internal serviees 556,557 . 556,557 532,236 453 532 689 23,868
Culture and recreation .
" Recreation . 't . 216,781 215,181 224 639 .. - 224,639 (9,458)
Total culture and recreation 216,781 215,181 224,639 - 224,639 (9,458)
Allocations to others
Law Enforcement Center 4,374,387 4374387 4,374,387 - 4,374,387 -
Others 941,032 1,045,652 1,033,709 b 1,033,709 11,943
Total allocations to others ) 5,315,419 5,420,039 5,408,096 - 5,408,0% 11,943
Non-budgeted expenditures
Capital assets purchased through:
Library : . - 9,149 . - 9,14 (9,149)
Law Enforcement Center ] - - 5,598 ' - 5,59 (5,598)
Fire District 3 - - 937,569 - 937,56 (937,569)
Total non-budgeted expenditurcs . . - - 952,316 ) - 952,31 {952,316)
Debt service
Principal retirement o - - 220,000 - 220,00 (220,000}
Interest and fiscal charges ; - - . 48,265 : - 48,264 (48,265)
Total debt service - - 268,265 - 268,26 (268,265)
Total ci;penditurcs . : 32,569.911 34,61’8,280 33,015,166 ' (45,339) 32,969,80 1,648.473
Excess (deficiency) of revenues : )
over {under expenditures) ’ 519,735 (1,528,634) {230,560) 45,359 (185,20 1,343,433
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) i .
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 41,283 - 41,28 41,285
Transfers in - 2,048,369 126,932 - 126,932 (1,921,437)
Transfers out ‘ (519,735} (519,735) {71,355) - (71,355] 448,380
Total other firaicing sources (uses) . (519,735) 1528634 96,862 - 96,862 (1,431,772)
_Net change in fund balance . - - 3 - (133,698) 45,359 (88,339 3 (88,339)
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,999,594 (95,765) 1,903,829
Fund balances, end of year . 3 1,865,856 § {50406 § 1,815,49(
" Encumbrance for capital outlay and supplies ordered but not received is reported in the
year the arders are placed for budgetary purposes, but arc reported in the year
the capital items and supplies are received for GAAP purposes
Prior year encuinbrances as restated . § 1935765
Current year encumbrances ' {50,406)





ORANGEBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA - Exhibit B-3 [
MAJ OR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
CA_PITAL PROJECTS SALES TAX I '
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From inception and for the year ended June 349, 2010 [
As Restated
Project Prior Current Total
_ Authorization _ Years Year : : to Date [
REVENUES :
Sales tax . v $ . 71,088,020 $ 29,916,396 $  9073291. § 38,989,687 [
Investment income .- - . - 8,203,012 * L2;603,178 10,806,190
Total revenues 71,088,020 38,119,408 11,676,469 49,795,877 [
EXPENDITURES , o _. . [
General government 11,034,512 4,419,289 993,340 5,412,629
Public works 45,007,208 12,612,383 . 6,420,963 19,033,346
Public safety X . . 807,376 639,866 1,325 - 641,191 T
Culture and recreation " 14,238,924 - 4,390,132 793,148 5,183,280
Principal retirement . - 12,300,000 8,200,000 . 20,500,000
Interest and fiscal charges - 6,674,164 2,494,750, - 9,168,914 [
Total expenditures ) 71,088,020 41,035,834 18,903,526 59,939,360
. ! ‘ ' ' : ! ' ]
Excess (deficiency) of revenues . )
~over _(undger) expenditure_s ] L (2,916,426) (7,227,057) (10,143,483) -~
F
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) i
‘Capital project sales tax : - -
revenue bonds issued . S - 67,154,611 - 67,154,611
: N - e E ]
Total other financing sources (uses) - 67,154,611 - . o= 67,154,611 L
Net change in fund'balances $ - $ 064,238,185 (7227057 '$ 57,011,128 |
Fund balances, beginning of year . 64,351,579 .
Prior period adjustment . S (113,394)
Fund balances, beginning of year as restated 64,238,185
Fund balances, end of year s $ 57,011,128
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NONMAJOR FUNDS

The following nonmajor fund schedules include special revenue, capital projects, and debt service f

types.

Schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance — budget and actual have been prep
for those nonmajor funds with Councii approved budgets.

The special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
special assessments, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for speci
purposes.

nnd

ired

han
fied

The capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acqu151t10m or

construction of major capital facilities.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal
interest on general long-term debt associated with equipment and facilities owned by the County.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit B-6
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
ROADS AND BRIDGES MAINTENANCE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENBITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

GAAP to Actual Variance with
Actual Budget Amounts Final Budget
Amounts Differences Budgetary Positive

GAAP Basis_Over (Under) Basis (Negative)

$ 2,787.365 $ 2787365 % (458,635)

3,048,804 139 3,048,943 408,218

- - - (211,161)

- - - (211,161)

Original Final
REVENUES .
Charges for services 5 3,246,000 § 3,246,000
EXPENDITURES .
Public works : 3,457,161 3,457,161
Yixcess (deficiency) of revenues :
over (under) expenditures (211,161) (211,161
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in ) 211,161 211,161
Total other financing sources (uses) 211,161 211,161
Net change in fund balance 3 - 3 -

Fund balances, beginning of year
]
! Fund balances, end of year
, .

:Explanation of Differences:

Encumbrance for capital outlay ordered.but not received is reported in the year
‘the orders are placed for budgetary purposes, but are reported in the year
-the capital items are received for GAAP purposes

Prior year encumbrances
Current year encumbrances

Net decrease in fund balance - GAAP to budget

82

(261,439 (139) (261,578) § (261,578)

{(103,806) - (103,806)

$ (365245) § (139) $  (365384)

139

$ {139}

[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
[
|
|






REVENUES
Intergovernmental:
State
Charges for services

Total revenues

. EXPENDITURES

Public safety
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA ExHibit B-7
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND '
- E911 SURCHARGE FUND
SCHEDVULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budggt
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

5 - - § 194,110 b 194,110
520,000 520,000 383,726 (136,2[/4)

520,000 520,000 577,836 57,856
520,000 520,000 533,638 {13,658)
520,000 520,000 533,638 {13,628)

] _ | 44,198 44,198
b - - 44,198 $ 44,1L8 ‘

70,331
S 11450
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
NEW BROOKLYN LIGHTING TAX DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Exhibit B-8

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES o
Property taxes $ 13,537 $ 13,537 $ 6,163 $- (7,374)
EXPENDITURES ‘
I"'ublic works T 13,537 - - 13,537 12,419 - 1,118
Iixcess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expeflditu}es - - (6,256) (6,256)
Net change in fund balance $ -8 - (6,256) § (6,256)
Fund balances, beginning of year . . (18,683)
Fund balances, end of year : h) (24,939).
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Lixhibit B-9.
, . NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
" SOLID WASTE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
_ CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
. FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
GAAP to Actual Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actnal Budget Amounts Final Budget
Amounts Differences Budgetary Positive
Original Final GAAP Basis Over {(Under) Basis (Negative)
REVENUES .
Property taxes $ 3233150 $ 3233150 § 3,i88932 % - % 3,188932| 3§ (44,218)
Intergovernmental: i
State 30,000 30,000 38,733 - 38,733 8,733
-Charges for services 1,803,000 1,803,000 1,649,652 - 1,649,652 Q53,348)
Total revenues 5,066,150 5,066,150 4,877,317 - 4,877,317 (188,833)
EXPENDITURES ‘ ) ’ ]
Sanitation 5,066,150 5,566,150 4,720,786 7,081 4,727,867 838,283
Total expenditures 5,066,150 5,566,150 4,720,786 ~7.081 ) 4,727,867 838,283
Excess (deficiency) of revenues . ’
over (undér)-expenditures - (500,000} 156,531 (7,081) 149,450 649,450
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) )
Transfers in - 500,000 - - - {500,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) - 500,000 - - - (500,600)
Net change in fund balance $ -5 . 156,531 (7,081) 149450|| $. 149450
Fund balances, beginning of year 2,662,322 (2.051) 2,660,271 |1
Fund balances, end of year $ 2,818,853 $ (313§ 2,809,721
Encumbrance for capital outlay ordered but not received is reported in the year
the orders are placed for budgetary purposes, but are reported in the year
the ca_pital items are received for GAAP purposes
Prior year encumbrances $ 2,051
Current year encumbrances (8,132)
Net decrease in fund balance - GAAP to budget 3 (7,081)
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit B-10

'~ NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
VICTIMS' ASSISTANCE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUGAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
o Variance with
Budgeted Amounts . Final Budget

) Actual Positive
Original ~ Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES . ;o
Fines, fees, and forfeitures T $ . .99493 3 99,493 $ 122439 - § 22,946
-EXPENDITURES S - i
Public safety 160,467 160,467 151,110 - . 9,357
ixcess (deficiency) of Tevenues o _ _ L
over (under) expenditures ‘ (60,974) (60,974) (28,671) 32,303
i . 9q
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES o . ~ ‘ :
Transfers in 60,974 60,974 60,974 . -
| PR oI '
Total other financing sources (uses) 60,974 60,974 60,974 -
Net change in fund balance $ - 8 - 32303 _§ 32,303
Fund balances, beginning of year . < {85,705) -
Fund balances, end of year . $  (53,402) '
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COUNTY OF ORANGERURG, SOUTH CAROLINA ExRibit - 11
" NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND :
ACCOMMODATIONS TAX
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES 1IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
. . ] ) “Variancg with
Budgeted Amounts ' Final Bt|1dget
. ' Actnal Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES ,
Intergovernmental: :
' State $ 190,000 $ 190,000 $ 194,123 3 4,123
EXPENDITURES ‘
Culture and recreation 190,000 190,000 148,425 41,575
" Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - . - " 43698 (37,452)
Net.change in fund balance $ - $ - 45,698 5 (17,452)
_Fund balances, beginning of year . 657288 .
. Fund balances, end of year $ 110,986
87





* COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NONMAIJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
. BROOKDALE LIGHTING TAX DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
‘CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Exhibit B-12

Varianee with

Budgeted"Amounts Final Budget
. Actual Positive
Ox:iginal Final Amounts {(Negative)
'REVENUES | o
Property taxes S %, 10854 % 10,854 § 7324 § - (3,530)
EXPENDITURES . | o ,
Public works : 10,854 - 10,854 11,480 L 1626
L _lE)fces; _(deﬁcien_cy_) of revenues ) _
over (under) expenditures - - (4,156) (4,156)
Net change in fund balance $ -3 - 4,156) $ (4,156)
Fund balaﬂces,'-begiﬁning of year ' (14,41 8)
Fund balances, end of year $ (18574)
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SPECIAL EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Intergovernmental:
Property taxes -

State
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Allocation to Library

Total expendifures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

* Exhibit B-13

‘ Varia_n ce with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
: .- Actual Posjtive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,556,077 $ 2,556,077 $ 2,504,592 3 51,485)
22,813 22,813 22,813 -
2,578,890 2,578,890 2,527,405 51,485)
1,677,959 1,677,959 - 1,591,232 86,727
900,931 900,931 900,931 -
2,578,890 2,578,890 2,492,163 86,727
- - 35,242 35,242
$ - 5 - 35,242 $ 35,242
(1,501,982)

$  (1,466,740)
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
WHITAKER LIGHTING TAX DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Exhibit B-14

Variance with

" Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
, Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 51,660 $ 51660 $ 8380 § 32,200
EXPENDITURES _ ,
Public works ) " 51,660 51,660 - 28,158 23,502
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ,
over (under) expenditures - - - 55,702 . 55,702
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - 55,702 $ 55,702
~ Fund balances, beginning of year - o ' (43,046)
Fund balances, end of year o $ 12,656
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY,. SOUTH CAROLINA
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

CAPITAL PROJECTS SALES TAX |

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

From inception and for the year ended June 30, 2010

»

Exh

bit B-15

Project Prior Current “Total
Authorization Years Year to Date
REVENUES
Sales tax _ ’ $ 52,704,200 $ 53,914,066 - 53,914,066
Investment income - 5,900,723 755 5,901,478
Total revenues . 52,704,200 59,814,789 755 59,815,544
EXPENDITURES ‘

" General government. C 3,044,058 3,099,450 - 3,099,450
Public works T 37,833,221 33,049,250 174,125 33,223,375
Public safety : ‘ 2,422,000 2,413,398 - 2,413,398
Culture and recreation 9,404,921 - 9,249,851 775,157 10,025,008
Principal retirement - 8,435,000 - 8,435,000

-, Interest and fiscal charges ' - 388,244 - 388,244
Total expenditures ) 52,704,200 56,635,193 949282 57,584,475
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures ) - 3,179,596 (948,527) 2,231,069
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital project sales tax
revenue bonds issued - 35,689,347 - 35,689,347
Transfers in - 7,660,201 - 7,660,201
Transfers Qut : - {39,401,530) - (39,401,530)
Total other financing sources (uses) - 3,948,018 - 3,948,018
Net change in fund balances 5 - £ 7127614 (948,527) & 6,179,087
. Fund balances, beginning of year 7,127,614

Prior period adjustment -

Fund balances, beginning of year as restated 7,127,614

Fund balances, end of year 6,179,087
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REVENUES
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

“Public works
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures

"OTHER FINANCING SGURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Net other financing sources (usés)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year
Prior period adjustment
Fund balances,.beginning of year as restated

Fund balances, end of year

Explanation of Differences:

ORANGEBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Exhibit B-16

[
[
[

Encumbrance for capital outlay ordered but not received is reported in the year
the orders are placed for budgetary purposes, but are reported in the year

the capital items are received for GAAP purposes

Prior year encumbrances as restated
. Current year encumbrances

" . Net decrease in fund balance - GAAP to budget

92 -

GAAP to Actual Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Budget Amounts Final Bodget
Amounts Differences Budgetary Positive
Original . _Final GAAP Basis  Over (Under) Basis (Negative) m
3 832,835 8 832,835 $§ 825786 § - % 825,786 % (7,049)
17,165 17,165 45,396 - 45,396 28,231
- - 400 - 400 400
350,000 850,000 871,582 - 871,582 21,582 ~
850,000 6,313,573 1,478,548 9422 1,487 970 4,825,603
850,000 6,313,573 1,478,548 9,422 1,487,970 4,825,603
x {5,463,573) {606,966) {9.422) (616,388) 4,847,185
- 5,463,573 - - - (5,463,573)
- 5,463,573 - - - (5.463,573)
3 - 3 - (606,966) (9,422) (616,388) $ (616,388)
4,199,108 (110,628) 4,088,480
113,394 116,623 224,022
4,312,502 - 4,312,502
$ 3,705,536 S {3422) 3§ 3,696,114
5. .-
) ) (9,422)
$ (942D





COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Property taxes
- Intergovernmental:
State
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Principal retirement _
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances; end of year

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

~ Exhibit B-17

Vidriance with

- Budgeted Amounts FiLlal Budget
Actual Positive
Original _ Final Amounts Negative)
$ 1,765,005 $ 1,765,005 $ 1,921,205 b 156,200
40,000 40,000 39,977 (23)
1,805,005 1,805,005 1,961,182 156,177
1,210,000 1,210,000 1,235,000 (25,000)
595,005 595,005 639,490 (44,485)
1,805,005 1,805,005 1,874,490 (69,485)
- - 86,692 86,692
$ - $ - 86,692 $ 86,692
1,054,561
3 1141253
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The agency funds account for monies held on behalf of school districts, special districts and aother
agencies that use the County as a depository or property taxes that are collected on behalf of the ather
governments.






ORANGEBURG COUNTY Exhibit B-18
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ‘
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2009 Additions Deductions 2010
CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 3
Assets .

Cash $ 1,888,092 £ 36,461,307 $ 36,223,197 s 2,126,202

Froperty taxes receivable 966,971 14,761,534 14,699,496 1,029,009
Tutal Assets $ 2,855,063 g 51,222,841 $ 50,922,69.3 $ 3,155,211
Liahilities

Due to taxing unit $ 2,855,063 $  51,222.84] $ 50,922,693 5 3,155,211
Total Liabilities $ 2,855,063 3 51,222,841 $ . 50,922,693 3 3,155,211
CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 4
Assets . .

Cash $ 4,094,745 $ 36,886,007 $ 37,136,748 b 3,844,004

Property taxes receivable 555,733 12,087,087 12,120,382 522,438
Total Assets $ 4,650,478 $ 48,973,094 8 49,257,130 $ 4,366,442
Liabilities .

Due to taxing unit 5 4,650,478 $ 48,973,094 b 49,257,130 3 4,366,442
Total Liabilities 3 4,650,478 3 48,973,094 b 49,257,130 5 4,366,442
CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 5
Asuets

Cash b 5,518,341 $ 79,279,728 kY 79,189,474 8 5,608,595

Property taxes receivable 2,354,311 34,819,990 34,647,286 2,527,015
Total Assets § 7872652 § 114099718 § 113836760 § 8135610
Liabilities ‘

Due to taxing unit $ 7,872,652 $ 114,095,718 $ 113,836,760 by 8,135,610
Total Liabilities $ 7,872,652 $ 114,099,718 $ 113,836,760 3 8,135,610
COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Assets -

Cash Y 530,541 3 8,723,594 g 9,241,752 % ‘ 12,383 B

Property taxes receivable 569,808 8,592,349 8,570,732 591,425
Total Assets $ 1,100,349 § 17,315,943 $ 17,812,484 $ 603,808
Liabilities

Due to ‘taxi_ng unit . $ 1,100,349 3 17,315,943 $ 17,812,484 $ 603,808
Total Liabilities g 1,100,349 3 17,315,943 3 17,812,484 b 603,808

(continucd)
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TOWNS

Assets
Cash | . o
Property taxes receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to taxing unit

Total Liabilities

DELINQUENT TAX COLLECTOR
Assets

Cash

-Investments

Total Assets

Liabilities -
Due to others

Total Liabilities

SANTEE FIRE DISTRICT .
Assets

Cash

Property taxes receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to taxing unit

Total Liabilities

HOLLY HILL. HEALTH AND DRAINAGE
Assets

Cash

Préperty taxes receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to taxing unit

"T'otal Liabilities

. ORANGEBURG COUNTY ) Exhibit B-18
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
Balance Balange
July 1, June jl},
2009 Additions Deductions 201
$ - 169 % 1,806,472 1,760,832 45,809
175,771 - 1,782,115 1,780,318 17)7,568
3 175,940 8 3,588,587 3,541,150 223,377
$ 175,940 5 3,588,587 3,541,150 22B,377
5 175,940 8 3,588,587 3,541,150 228,377
3 1,173,819 $ 922,529 - 2,096,348
1,003,517 : - 1,003,517 -
3 2,177,336 8 022,529 1,003,517 2,005,348
5 2177336 $ 922,529 1,003,517 2,09 5,348
$ 2,177,336 3 822,529 1,003,517 2,096,348
8 - 5 3,588 - IEB,SSS
23,326 254,380 254,370 23,336
b 23,326 $ 257,968 254,370 2,924
3 23,326 $ 257,968 254,370 2,924
$ 23,326 $ 257,068 254,370 2p,924
% _ - 3 125 - 125
1,064 11,720 11,672 112
. 8 1,064 $ 11,845 11,672 237
8 1,064 3 11,845 11,672 ,237
5 1,064 $ 11,845 11,672 ,237
(continued)
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HBORSE RANGE WATER SHED
Assets

Cash

Property taxes receivable

Total Assets

Liabilitics
Due to taxing unit

Total Liabilities
COW CASTLE DRAINAGE DISTRICT
Assets

Cash

. Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to taxing unit

‘T'otal Liabilities
SOLICITOR'S FORFEITED BOND FUND
Assets

Cush

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to (from) other Agency Funds
Duie to others

Total Liabilities

FIREMAN'S INSURANCE PREMIUM FUND
Assets
Cash

Total Assets

Liahilities
Due to others .

Total Liabilities

ORANGEBURG COUNTY . Exhibit B-18
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
. ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2009 Additions Deductions 2010
$ 16,853 § - 94 16,759
, 1,895 18,282 17,913 2,264
$ 18748 § 18,282 18,007 19,023
$ 18748 § 18,282 18,007 . 19,023
$ 18748 § 18,282 18,007 19,023
$ 26840 S - - 26,840
$ 26340 & - - 26,840
$ 26,840 8 - - 26,840
$ 26840 § - - 26,840
$ 34747 8 8,491 3,846 39,392
$ 34747 § 8,491 3,846 39,392
$ (450) 2,598 3,846 (1,698)
35,197 5,893 . 41,090
$ 34747  § 8,491 3,846 39392
$ 1,456 8 164,719 162,055 3,220
$ 1456 164,719 162,955 3220
$ - 145 § 164,719 162,955 3,220
$ 1456 § 164,719 162,955 3,220
(continued}
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CLERK OF COURT BAIIL, BONDS
Assets )
Cash

Total Assets

Liakilities
Due to {from) other Agency Funds
Due o others

Total Liabilities

COURT FINES AND ASSESSMENTS
Assets
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due 1o (from) other Agency Funds
Due to others

Total Liabilities

SOLICITOR'S DRUG FUND
Assets
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities
Duc to others

Total Liabilities

CLERK OF COURT TRUST FUND
Assets
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to General Fund
Due to General Fund - overage / (deficit)
Due to Special Revenue Fund
Due to (from) other Agency Funds
Due to others

Total Liabilities

ORANGEBURG COUNTY Exhibit B-18
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES TN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES )
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
Balance Balange
July 1, June 3p,
2009 Additions Deductions 2010
b 49,170 4,540 - 38,710
3 49,170 4,540 - 58,710
$ - (720) - (720)
49,170 5,260 - 54,430
5 49,170 4,540 - 38,710
$ 32,838 2,187,008 2,16],989 57,857
§ 32,838 2,187,008 2,161,989- 57,857
& (98,904} 98,904 101,519 (10]1,51%)
131,742 2,088,104 2,060,470 159,376
by 32,838 2,187,008 2,161,989 5V,857
£ 26,977 7,180 6,758 27,399
$ 26,977 7,180 6,758 27,399
5 26,977 7,180 6,758 27,399
$ 26,977 7,180 6,758 2[7,399
As Restated
S 908441 2,535,156 2,199,091 1,244,506
£ l 908,441 2,535,156 . 2,199,091 1,244,506
$ 19,530 255,023 254,887 19,666
115,605 10 15,195 IO} ,420
2,528 34,410 35,180 1,758
28,422 273,818 274,067 28,173
742,356 1,971,895 1,619,762 1,094,489
$ 908,441 2,535,156 2,199,091 1,244 506
(continued)
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY . Exhibit B-18
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
' ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
: 2009 Additions Deductions 2010

MASTER IN EQUITY TRUST FUND
Assets

Cash b 19,706 1,152,924 1,135,790 36,840
Total Assets by 19,706 1,152,924 1,135,790 36,840
Liabilities

Due to General Fund 3 - 121,843 103,339 18,304

Due to others 19,706 1,031,081 1,032,251 18,536
Total Liabilities 8 19,706 1,152,924 1,135,790 36,840
PROBATE COURT TRUST FUND
Assets

Cush $ 104,925 34,361 6,431 132,855
Total Assets 3 104,925 34,361 6,431 132,855
Liabilities -

Due to General Fund - overage / (deficit) $ 262 - - 262

Duie to others 104,663 34,361 6,431 132,593
Total Liabilities by 104,925 34,361 6,431 132,855
FAMILY COURT TRUST FUND
Asscts .

Cash $ 62,486 12,291,475 12,352,410 1,551
Total Assets $ 62,486 12,291,475 12,352,410 1,551
Liahilities *

Due to (from) General Fund kY (21,511 101,487 90,968 (10,992)

Dus to others . 83,997 12,189,988 12,261,442 12,543
Total Liabilities $ 62,486 12,291,475 12,352,410 1,551
Register of Deeds
Assets

Cash 3 - - - -
Liabilitics .

Due to General Fund $ - - - -

(continued)
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY . Exhibit B-18
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
~ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
Balance Balange
July 1, June SP’
2009 Addifions Deductions 2010
MAGISTRATE'S TRUST FUND
Assets
Cash $ 209,662 2,039,006 2,013,763 231,905
Total -Assets 5 209,662 2,035,006 2,013,763 234 905
Liabilities
Due to General Fund $ 78,962 853,939 854,764 78,137
- Due to General Fund - overage / (deficit) 22 1,497 244 1,275
Due to Special Revenue Fund 6,806 87,974 86,795 7,985
Due to (from) other Agency Funds 70,932 891,746 886,914 75,764
Due to others 52,940 203,850 185,046 7‘1,744
Total Liabilities $ 206,662 2,039,006 2,013,763 234,905
OADC TRUST FUND As Restated
Assets
Cash s 6,070 15,518 19,340 2,248
Total Assets 3 6,070 15,518 19,340 D 248
Liabilities
Due to others s 6,070 15,518 19,340 P,248
Total Liabilities $ 6,070 15,5 18 19,340 P,248
TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
As Restated
Asscts
Cash $ 14,705,878 184,523,728 183,614,470 15,615,136
[nvestments 1,003,517 - 1,003,517 -
Property taxes receivable 4,648,879 72,327,457 72,102,169 4,874,167
Total Assets $ 20358274 256,851,185 256,720,156 20,489 303
Liabilities
Due to General Fund "8 76,981 1,332,292 1,304,158 105,115
Due to General Fund - overage / (deficit) 115,889 1,507 15,439 IOr ,957
Due to Special Revenve Fund 9,334 122,384 121,975 ,743
Due to (frem) other Agency Funds - 1,266,346 1,266,346 -
Due to taxing units 16,724,460 235,488,278 235,654,266 16,558,472
Due to others 3,431,610 18,640,378 18,357,972 3,714,016
Total Liabilities $ 20358274 256,851,185 256,720,156 20,489,303
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS

The County has three discretely presented component units.

The Orangeburg County Fire Commission — The Orangeburg County Fire Commission was createl in
1997 to provide coordinated fire protection throughout Orangeburg County.

The Orangeburg County Public Library — The Orangeburg County Public Library provides library
services to County residents.

The Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center — The Orangeburg-Cathoun Regional Deterltion
Center houses prisoners for Orangeburg and Calhoun Counties.






COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit B-19
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2010
Orangeburg-
Orangeburg Orangeburg Calhoun
County County Regional
Fire Public Detention
Commission Library Center Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents p 500 $ 160,980 % 56,967 $ 218,447
Vroperty taxes receivable 177,870 - - 177,870
Other receivables - 22,174 22,174
Intergovernmental receivable - - 507,612 507,612
IDue from primary government 476,680 53,750 - 530,430
Total assets 655,050 214,730 586,753 1,456,533
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 34,410 10,267 62,000 . 106,677
Accrued salaries and benefits 8,400 - 109,153 117,553
Due to primary government ‘ - - 330,906 330,906
MNoncurrent liabilities: ‘ _
Due within one year 15,435 23,425 76,473 115,333
Due in more than one year 14,248 29,814 110,047 154,109
Net OPEB obligation . 58,106 . 296,672 885,871 1,240,649
Total liabilities 130,599 360,178 1,574,450 2,065,227
NET ASSETS : ) : ‘
Unrestricted (deficit) 524,451 (145,448) (987,697) (608,694)

§ 524,451 $ (145448) § (987,697) § (608,694)
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
PROPRIETARY COMPONENT UNIT
ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER

Exhibit B-21

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Operating Revenues:
Canteen sales
Telephone revenue
Miscellaneous revenue

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses:
Work release
Administration
Benefits for inmates
Capital expenditures

Total operating expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

106

$ 58,468
40,430
6,737

105,635

23,591
27,515
38,553

1,250

" 90,909

14,726

14,726

63,424

$ 78,150
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
PROPRIETARY COMPONENT UNIT
ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers

Cash paid to suppliers

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents

Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivables

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

167

Exhibit B-22
$ | 104,200
| (89,659)
14,541
14,541
42,426
$ | 56967
$ || 14,726
(185)
$ | 14,541
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit B-23
: COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
~ JUNE 30, 2010
Governmental Funds Proprietary Fund
Orangeburg- Orangeburg-
Orangeburg Orangeburg Calhoun Cathoun
County County Regional Regional
Fire Public Detention Detention
Commission Library Center Center Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 500 $ 160980 § - - 56,967 0§ 218447
Property taxes receivable - 177,870 - - . - 177,870
Other receivables - - 991 21,183 22,174
Intergovernmental receivable - - 507,612 - 507,612
Due from primary government 476,680 33,750 - - 530,430
Total assets . $ 655,050 $ 214730 $ 508,603 78,150  $ 1,456,533
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
Accounts payable £ 34410 % 10,267 $ 62,000 - £ 106,677
Accrued salaries and benefits 8,400 - 109,153 - 117,553
Deferred revenue - Property taxes - 158,380 - o, - - 158,380
Due to primary government - - 330,906 - 330,906
Total liabilities 201,150 10,267 502,059 - 713,516
Fund Equity
Fund balances
Reserved for encumbrances 42,062 - - - 42,062
Unreserved, unrestricted (deficit) 411,798 204,463 6,544 78,150 700,955
Total fund equity 453,860 204,463 | _ 6,544 78,150 743,017
Total liabilities and fund equity $ 655,050 $ 214730 $ 508,603 78,150 $ 1,456,533
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REVENUE
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety
Culture and recreation

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year-

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA ~ Exhibit B-24
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
For the year ended June 30, 2010
: Orangeburg-
Orangeburg  Orangeburg Calhoun
County County Regional
Fire Public Detention
Commission Library Center Totals
§ 2336356 b - $ - % 2,336,356
- 1,060,283 5,245,928 6,306,211
4,633 178 - 4,811
- 63,440 - 63,440
2,340,989 1,123,901 5,245,928 8,710,818
2,583,337 - 5,239,384 7.822,721
- 1,242,718 - 1,242,718
2,583,337 1,242,718 5,239,384 9,065,439
{242.348) (118,817) 6,544 (354,621)
(242,348) (118,817) 6,544 (354,621)
696,208 323,280 - 1,019,488
$ 453,860 § 204,463 b 6,544 - § 664,867
109
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SCHEDULE REQUIRED
BY STATE LAW

The schedule of fines, assessments, and surcharges pertaining to court collections is presented as requ
by the State of Seuth Carolina.

red
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit B-25
SCHEDULE OF FINES, ASSESSMENTS, AND SURCHARGES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - VICTIMS' ASSISTANCE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
Clerk of Court Magistrates Total

Court Fines

Court fines collected $ 90,076 1,350,841 $ ,440,917

Court fines retained by County _ . 16,435 845,909 862,344

Court fines remitted to State Treasurer $ 73,641 504,932 $ 578,573

Court Assessments

Court assessments collected A 20,894 433,751 5 454,645
Court assessments retained by County 3,949 63,244 67,193
Court assessments rei*nitted to State Treasurer 3 16,945 370,507 3 387,452
Court Surcharges

Court surcharges collected . 3 30,461 24,785 $ 55,246
Court surcharges retained by County $ 30,461 24,785 % 55,246
Victims Services

Court assessments ailocated to Victim Services h 3,949 63,244 % - 67,193
Court surcharges allocated to Victim Services 30,461 24,785 55,246
Funds allocated to Victim Services $ 34,410 88,029 122,439
Victim Services expenditures I51,110)
Transfers in 60,974

$ 32,303
Beginning balance - July 1, 2009 (85,705)
Excess of revenues over expenditures
for current year 32,303
Ending Balance - June 30, 2010 (53,402)
113
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

This part of the County’s comprehensive annual financial report represents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,
and required supplementary information says about the County’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County’s
financial performance and well being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County’s most significant
revenue sources.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
County’s current levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ability to issue additional debt
w the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the County’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the County’s financial report relates to the services the County provides and
the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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: COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Table 10
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING T
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
General Bonded Debt Outstanding
General Percentage of
Obligation Actual Taxable Per
Fiscal Year Bonds Total Value of Property Capita

: 2001 $ 6,510,000 6,510,000 2.72% 71
: 2002 5,615,000 5,615,000 2.33% 61
2003 4,715,000 4,715,000 1.96% 51

2004 12,445,000 12,445,000 5.03% 135

- 2005 11,535,000 11,535,000 4.66% 125

L 2006 10,600,000 10,600,000 4.38%. 114
_| 2007 9,645,000 9,645,000 3.99% 104
2008 18,385,000 18,385,000 7.91% 199

2009 16,965,000 16,965,000 6.48% 189

2010 15,510,000 15,510,000 6.09% 173

Source: County Treasurer, J. Steve Summers





COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

As of June 30, 2010
Debt
Governmental Unit Qutstanding
Debt Repaid with Property Taxes
Orangeburg County ' 15,510,000
Orangeburg School District 3 34,185,000
Orangeburg School District 4 31,798,931
Orangeburg School District 5 40,074,370
Total direct and overlapping debt
Source: County Treasurer, J. Steve Summers
127

Table 11
Estiﬁnated
Estimated Share of
Percentage Overlapping
Applicable Debt
100.00% | 15,510,000
100.00% 34,185,000
100.00% 31,798,931
100.00% 40,074,370
121,568,301
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the fiscal year ended June 390, 2010

:
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Federal Entity
Federal Grant/Pass Through Grantor/ CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title/Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Passed through S.C. Law Enforcement Division:

2007 Public Safety - Orangeburg Radio _
Interoperable Communications 11.555 7PSICO8 $ 555,478
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed through S.C. Department of Commerce:
CDBG Edisto Sewer Extension Phase I11 14.228 4-CI-09-013 141,162
ARRA-CDBG Edisto Sewer Extension Phase II 14.255 4.5-08-010 194,226
Cluster Total 335,388
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE -
Fdward Byrne Memorial Grant/FY 2009 JAG
Magistrate Security 16.738 2009-DJ-BX-1469 39,532
ARRA-COPS Hiring Recovery Program 16.710 2009-RKWX0770 68,756
ARRA-Edward Byrne Memorial Assistance Grants 16.808 2009-SB-B9-3340 21,798
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Passed through S.C. Department of Social Services:

Office of Child Support Enforcement: :
Filing Fees 93.563 G-045C404 387,094
Federal Financial Assistance 93.563 G-045C404 19,107
Clerk of Court Incentive (IV-D) 93.563 G-048C404 85,691
Family Court Filing Fees 93.563 G-048C404 97,650
Sheriff's Department 93.563 G-048C404 1,122

Passed thfough S.C. Election Commission:

Help America Vote 93.617 12,738
DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Passed through S.C. Emergency Management Agency:

LEMPG/ FY 2010 97.042 10EMPGO1 6,157

LEMPG/FY 2009 97.042 9EMPGOL 38,459

Citizens Corps. 97.067 8CCPo1 2,165
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Passed through S.C. Department of Social Services:

At Risk After School Snack Program g 10.558 24,830
Rural Development - Loan 10.760 46-038-0576000775-92-01
Beginning Amortization Ending
Balance Additions of Principal Balance
$307,459 $ - $ (4,202) 303,257
$ 1,999,222

136





NOTE A-

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR END JUNE 30, 2010

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federa
grant activity of County of Orangeburg and is presented on the accrual basis o
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audit of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic
financial statements. ’
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

! To County Council
+  County of Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely [
presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
County of Orangeburg, South Carolina (the County) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010,
which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report [
thereon dated April 1,2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. [

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we 'do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and therefore, there
can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or materijal weaknesses have been
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statement will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of
tindings and questioned costs as 2010-6 through 2010-16 to be material weaknesses.

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL COLUMBIA
1180 Boulevard Street (803) 259-1163 {803) 787-0003
138 Orangehurg, SC 29115 £ax (2803) 253-5469 fax (303 787-2200
(803) 536-1015
fax {803) 536-1020 www megregorcpa.com





" COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
severe than a material weakness, yet impoitant enough to merit attention by those charged
governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings
questioned costs as 2010-1 through 2010-5 to be significant deficiencies.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are fi
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of |
regulations, ‘contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct

less
vith
_and

e of
I'Ws,
and

material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion

on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we dq
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance th
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is descrlbed in
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2010-9.

We noted certain matters that we- reported to management of the County of Orangeburg, S
Carolina in a separate letter dated April 1, 2011.

The County of Orangeburg, South Carolina’s responses to the findings identified in our audit
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit
County of Orangeburg, South Carolina’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on thy

This report is intended for the information of the County Council, management, others within|
entity and federal awarding agencies and pass through entities and is not mtended to be and sh
not used by anyone other than these specified parties. ,
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Orangeburg, South Carolina
Aprit 1, 2011
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- INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL
EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To County Council
County of Orangeburg, South Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the County of Orangeburg, South Carolina’s (the County) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2010. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the County’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the type of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s
compliance with those requirements.

As described in item 2010-9 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the
County did not comply with requirements regarding cost principles that are applicable to its Rural
Development Loan. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the County
to comply with requirements applicable to that program.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the County
complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended.June 30, 2010.

= = M~ ™
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Internal Contrel Over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal cofptrol
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing-our audit, we considered the County’s internal control pver
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion| on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of int¢rnal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness om-the
County’s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in| the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control gpver
compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there ca be
no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have heen
identified. However, as discussed below, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control pver
compliance that we consider to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control gver
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance. with a type of complidnce
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control fver
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of complignce
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely bjsis.
We consider deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying scheflule
of findings and questioned costs as items 2010-6 and 2010-9 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,|yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discrately
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information ofjthe
County of Orangeburg, SC, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, and has issued oui report
thereon dated April 1, 2011, which contained a qualified opinion on those financial statements. Dur
audit was performed for the purpose of forming our opinions on the financial statements as a whple.
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysiy as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Lgcal
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the financial statemepts.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to|the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements jand
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly tothe
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the finangial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standgrds
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stategl in
all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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The County’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the County’s response and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on it. : ‘ ‘

This report is intended for the information of the County Counci of Orangeburg Cdunty,
management, others within the entity and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Wdéﬁgﬁﬁq | @?/Apﬂ

Orangeburg, South Carolina : :
April 1, 2011 _ _ ',
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2010
I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements

(a.) Type of auditor’s report: Qualified

(b.) Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weaknesses identified: Ten

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not '
Considered to be material weaknesses: : - Five
(c.) Nencompliance material to financial statements noted: - Two

Federal Awards

(a.) Internal control over major programs:

1} Material weaknesses identified: A Two
2} Significant deficiencies identified that are not
Considered to be material weaknesses: ) . None
(b.) Type of auditor’s report issued on éompliance for major programs: Qualified

{c.) Audit findings that are required to be reported in -
accordance with Section 510(a) of CircularA-133: . Two

(d.) Identification of major program:

CFDA Numbers v Name of federﬁl program or cluster
10.760 Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communiti
11.555 : 2007 Public Safety :
14.228 CDBG Edisto Sewer Extension Phase ITI
14.255 ’ ARRA - CDBG Edisto Sewer Extension Phase IT
93.563 _ Child Support Enforcement
(e.) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $300,000
(f) Auditee qualified as low risk auditee? ‘ " No
{43






COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Il. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2010-1 Clerk of Court — Unknown Overages and Reconciliations

Signiﬁ.ca;llt Deficiency

Conditions: Many funds are held by the Clerk of Court’s office with no dacument’ation as to
whom they are due. Also, interest earned on funds not held under trust is to be remitted to the

Treasurer and bank charges are to,be reimbursed by the Treasurer. . The following is a summary
of unknown overages between reconciled bank balances and supporting documentation:

Trust account , . $..18,482
Condemnation account 2,775
2 Bond accounts 61,770
Restitution account 16,409
Restitution account _ _ . 592
Fine account 391

$-1 QQ,4 19

Criteria: All funds received by Clerk of Court are to be held in trust or remltted to Treasurer.
They should be documented as to whom they are owed.

Effect: Accounts are not being reconciled properly to determine funds held from unknown
sources. :

Recommendation: We recommend that the office research the accounts to determine the origin
of these funds and reconcile monthly the cash held to the listings of funds held. Any bank
charges should be reimbursed by the Treasurer and interest eamned not allocable to the individual
* cases should be remitted to the Treasurer.

Response: All efforts are being made to research these accounts to determme the origin of these
funds. Monthly reconcnllatmns will-be made once corrected. :

2010-2 Orangeburg Area Development Commission Program

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: The County has a contract with Department of Social Services for the benefit of the
Orangeburg Area Development Commission. The OADC purchases food and related supplies
from various vendors for their services under this contract and charges them to the County and
the County pays the invoices through a special revenue fund. The OADC files reimbursement
requests for these expenditures with DSS. The reimbursements come directly to the County and
are recorded in this special revenue fund in the County’s ledger system. The County does not
request a copy of these reimbursement requests from OADC to reconcile the food expenditures to
the reimbursement received. During the fiscal year, DSS denied payment for some program
applicants but they still received meals. Therefore, the costs exceeded reimbursements.
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the program.

"~ LEMPG Fund expenditures of $23,509 were recorded in the General Fund rather than in the f

Grant $2, 400 and Angle Tech $1,972.62.

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTEI

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2010-2 Orangeburg Area Development Commission Program (cohtinued)

Significant Deficiency '

Criteria: All program expenditures should be paid by the County and then received back from

DSS through reimbursement.

Effect: At June 30, 2010, the QOADC fund has a deficit of $10,524.63 whereby the County
borne the cost for expenditures not claimed under reimbursement.

Recommendation: We recommend the County reconcile the expenditures incurred to
reimbursements requested timely and determine applicants’ status prior to allowing benefi

Response: The program will be re-evaluated and only eligible appllcants will be givenl an

opportunity to participate.

2010-3 Grants
Significant Deficiency

Conditions: The COPS' Hiring Recovery (Fund 127) and the Edward Byrme Memorial (K

has

the
5 of

und

181) grants did not cover overtime but such was charged in the fund. Adjustments of $1,049.06

for Fund 127 and $1,162.63 for Fund 181 were made to move the overtlme back to Sher
Department of the General Fund. :

set up for these grant transactions.

The County spent $39,532 for JAG Magistrate Security Grant expenditures but only reque
$19,000 reimbursement.

County’s grant match at close of grant was not transferred to the Fund. Entries needed to re

matches: were CASA Emergency Shelter (Fund 119) $762. 50 and (Fund 117) $707.21;

Also, Funds 166 and 171 were closed grants with excess grant matches which requ|
adjustments to transfer back to general fund to close the fund.

s

und

sted

ord
RT

fred

Bowman Water Upgrade grant closed in prior year but $37,223.80 fund deficit remained. These

were old invoices improperly charged to this fund which should have been charged to the S
Tax II fund. An entry was necessary to correct.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

II.- FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2010-3 _ Grants (continued)

Criteria: All grant transactions should be recorded in its respective fund including County
matches. The fund activity should agree to grant reimbursement requests and should close out at
grant’s end. All reimbursements should be filed timely.

Effect: Grant fund expenditures are understated while General Fund eﬁpenditures are overstated.
County is carrying costs of grant expenditures rather than requesting reimbursement timely. At
grant’s closing, the funds are not closed out.

: Recommendation: Grants should be reconciled .with actual grant fund activity-priof to

requesting reimbursement. Reimbursements should be made timely. . |

Response: New grant software has been purchased and installed. This will help in keeping the

. grant-accounting on track and up-to-date.

2010-4 Allocations to Library

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: The Library’s appropriation is to be paid based on the approved budgét in Special
Education Fund for the expenditures of the Library. During audit procedures, a balance between
the budgeted amount for the Library and the actual expenditures paid for the Library or transfers

to the Library. was determined to be $27,114. -Correction was made to, record this amount as a
receivable from the Library.

Criteria: Approved .appropriations to component units are to be reviewed and recorded at actual
amounts.

Effect: Expenditures exceeded approved appropriations; therefore, a reccivable was due from the
Library. -

Recommendation: . We recommend the allocation paid to the Library be reviewed during the
year against the actual budget to ensure agreement at year-end. T

Response: Allocation to the Library will be reviewed during the year against the actual budget.
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II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTE]]

Conditions: The County did not record the following receivables at year-end:

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2010-5 Dawn Center Transactions

Significant Deficiency

-

Conditions: Due to issues the Dawn Center had with a federal grant in their name, the fe

ral -

government withheld federal funds from Orangeburg County’s revenues to recoup these -

questioned Dawn Center grant revenues. A total of $37,546 was withheld from County

nds

which was comprised of $26,311 from the Detention Center and $11,234 from the primary

government. Since the County had not recorded a receivable, the revenues were understated
these withheld funds.

The County is owed $526,056 from the Dawn Center for payrolls processed through the Counl
payroll system for the Dawn Center employees. We recommend the County cease processing

Om -

’s
the

Dawn Center’s payroll through their system. The Dawn Center employees are being includeq on

the payroll reports under the County’s federal identification number and therefore, W-2’s
issued to Dawn Center employees under the County’s federal identification number.
County’s cash flows are severely impacted due to carrying the costs of their payroll.

Criteria: The County is bearing the cost of Dawn Center transactions.

Effect: The County’s reveniues are understated diie to the Dawn Center’s. funds being withleld

and the County is reporting Dawn Center employees as County employees and carrying t
payroll costs. :

Recommendation: We recommend all funds withheld be followed up timely and effort
collect these funds be made. Further, we recommend the County cease running Dawn Ce
employees through their payroll system as County employees and enforce col]ectlon of amo
due from Dawn Center.

Resp(mse Efforts have been made to collect these funds from the Dawn Center. Pay
services for the Dawn Center will terminate following the last pay perxod in EY 2011
outstandmg payroll relmbursements will be made prior to July 1, 2011.

2010-6 Receivables

Material Weakness

Edisto Sewer-Capital Projects — June sewer fees ’ ) § 8314

E911 Surcharge -- state revenue 49,091

Radio Interoperable Grant reimbursement 555,478

SCDOT “C” funds . 425,041

PRT grant funds 9,600

LEMPG funds : 44,616
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
. For the year ended June 30, 2010

11. ‘FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2010-6 Receivables (continued)

The $44,616 of LEMPG unrecorded receivables above include two checks, each for $6,805.25,
which were not turned over in a timely manner to the Finance office for deposit. One was dated
November 23, 2009 and the other dated June 28, 2010 were turned over. to Finance on September
29,2010, . ‘ J

In thé School Résource Officer Fund, one school’s recei{fable was recorded twice and the original
receivable was for an incorrect amount, therefore, and adjustment of $(232,929).

Criteria: The County should have controls in place to record all receivables of the County.
When .payment of the receivables is received, effective procedures would facilitate the proper
recording of these revenues in the correct year.

Effect: Current year revenues in several funds along with the respective fund balance are
misstated and incorrect accounts receivables balance are being.carried on the County’s books.
Recommendation: We recommend as reccivables are identified by requesting grant
reimbursement or by some other means, the receivable be recorded in the correct fund and year.
As the revenue is received, these receivables should be reviewed to determine how to record the
_receipt properly. Accounts should be reviewed for reasonableness.

Response: The County has installed software to aid in effectlvely commumcatmg.recelvable
balances at year end between Grants and Finance. Monthly reviews of the accounts have been
_ implemented. .

2010-7 Preparation of Financial Statements |
Material Weakness

Conditions: The AICPA 1ssued Statement on Auditing Standards No. 115, Commun:catmg
Internal Control Related Maiters Identified in an Audit. This standard, emphasizes the need for
the County to have internal controls over financial reporting in place that will provide reasonable
assurance that the County’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). In order for these controls to be effective, County
personnel need to receive adequate training to allow them to prepare the County’s financial
statements in accordance with GAAP. '

Criteria: Internal controls over financial reporting should be in place to provide reasonable
assurance that financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Effect: Because County personnel have not received adequate training.in preparing financial
statements in accordance with GAAP, a material misstatement to the County’s financial
statements could occur and not be prevented or detected by the County’s internal controls over
financial reporting.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTEE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2010-7 Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)
Recommendation: Appropriate County personnel should attend training -courses that |will
enhance their ability to prepare the County’s annual financial statements and footnote disclospres

in accordance with GAAP.

Response: Training for all pertinent personnel will resume when resources become available

2010-8 Fund Balance Deficits
Material Weakness

Conditions: During 2010 expenditures exceeded the revenues in four funds which increased the
funds’ fund balance deficits. All funds should be reviewed routinely to ensure funds are available
prior to approval of expenditures. The County should consider means to fund these deficits|fand
cease increasing them: The funds are listed below: ‘

o 2010 Excess ~  June 30, 2010

of Expenditures Fund
Fund . over Revenues Deficit
Road and Bridges Maintenance $(261,439) $ (365,245
New Brooklyn Lighting Tax District - (6,256) (24,939
Brookdale Lighting Tax District (4.156) (18,574
Edisto Sewer Capital Projects ' (98,335) (628,591

In addition, the Special Education, Victim’s Assistance, and Economic Development Tobacco
Funds have fund deficits of $1,466,740, $53,402 and $79,820 respectively at June 30; 2010. [The
fund deficits in these three funds did décrease during the 2010 year, but a fund deficit [still
remains,

Criteria: Funds should be reviewed before-incurring expenditures to make sure funds|are
available.

Effect: When expenditures are incurred where revenues are not sufficient to cover them, then
fund deficits occur. -

Recommendation: We recommend all funds be reviewed before | mcumng cxpendltures Mgans
-of funding these fund balance deficits need to be addressed. :

Response: Implemented new procedures to capture all penny related expenditures from Rpad
and Bridges Fund to Penny Sale Tax Fund; New Brooklyn and Brookdale Lighting Distrigts:
millage is capped and limited to CPI adjustment under Act 388; Special Educatjon:
appropriations to outside agencies were reduced 15% in FY 2011 to reduce deficit and will be
reviewed again in FY 2012; Edisto Sewer Capital Projects: County has performed rate studyl on
system and will make adjustments as required.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG SOUTH,CAROLINA
- SCHEDULE.OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
20109 Edisto Sewer USDA Loan
Material Weakness

'Conditions: The County operates a sewer system financed by a USDA Rural Development loan.
User fees are charged to customers to cover operation costs and loan payments. The costs of
operation have increased but fees charged remain the same. Therefore the Fund has accumulated
a deficit. This violates the loan covenant.

Criteria: User fees should cover operational costs of the sewer system.

Effect: Due to user fees not being increased in relation to cost increases, the fund has a deficit
which violates the related loan covenant.

Recommendation: The user fees should be increased to cover,costs and fund deficit.

Response: Review of user fees was.cqmpleted but further Stildies are -peeded.' Adjustments will -

be performed once additional studies are completed.

2010-10 Accounts Payable
Material Weakness

Conditions: A check run dated and issued 7/1/10 was incorrectly posted to the 2010 year against
accounts payable. This effected five funds and two component units for a total of $587,182.
Misstatements by fund were: General Fund $408,668; Roads and Bridges $892; Heritage
Corridor Expansion $150,000; Sales tax I $8;834; Solid Waste $3,841; Fire Service Component
Unit $10,490; and Detention Center Component Unit $4,457. P

During testing of accounts payable, we noted a prior year payabie in the PRT Fund for $9,440
was not reversed resulting in the prior year expenditure being recorded as current year

expenditures. Also, a payable of $62,325 was incurred at June 30, 2010 but was not accrued in
the Capital Sales Tax II Fund.

Criteria: Internal controls over recording of expenditures and accounts payable are lacking.

Effect: Accounts payable were misstated in several funds. Therefore, fund balances and
expenditures were misstated.

Recommendation: The accounts payable of each fund should be reviewed to ensure ali payables
have been charged to the proper period and subsequent payment properly recorded.

Response: Efforts have been made to review accounts payable and ensure all payab]es have been
charged to the proper period and subsequent payment properly recorded.
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. ' Material Weakness R : T S L

- ledger. -

: pI‘Q]GCt numbers.

: assets were mlscla551ﬁed asto deprec1able status.

* Assets not completed should be recorded in the “Construction in Process” category yntil

.COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
: SCHEDULE OF. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

- II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC F]NANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS REPORTEII IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS: L

2010-11 Capital Sales Tax Projects Revenue | - conn

'Cdnditions The third quarter sales tax revenue of $2,186, 134 which was dep051ted intq the
County’s 1nvestment account was not recorded in the general ledger ‘

Criteria: The control of reconciling capltal sales tax prOJect reports to the general ledger act Vity .
was not performed . . ‘

t

Effect: . All capital sales tax revenue and investments are not being recorded in the genleral
Recommendation: We recommend the cap:tal project sales tax investments ‘accounty be
reconciled monthiy to the general ledger 1o ensure all data is prOperly recorded. * :

Response: - Monthly reconciliations of capztal sales tax investments accounts have heen
implemented. Account maintenance has been performed to flag all project accounts to require

2010-12 Capital Asset Corrections
Material Weakness -
Conditions: The County purchased $15,827,003 in capital- assets in the fiscal year-ended June

30, 2010. Only $9,227,552 was recorded by the County leaving $6,599,451 of corrections to|the:.
capital asset system to be recorded. :

‘Several assets were misclassified as to depreciable status based on the County’s capitalization -
- policy. The County only records assets over the $2,500 threshold for capitalization purposes|and-

some assets under the threshold for inventory purposes. For June 30, 2010, $67 102 of ca; ital - -

¥

completed and placed in service. At that time, these assets can be transferred to the proper
permanent category and .begin depreciation. The construction in process account -should| be
reviewed to ensure all assets are still “in process.” Several assets had to be reclassed after
auditors requested County review the CIP listing and update.

The capital asset system’s depreciation calculation for existing assets was determined by |the
client to be incorrect again this year so the County made corrections to the system:for asgets
acquired prior to June 30, 2008. The auditors noted the system’s deprecation calctlations for
assets acquired during the fiscal year 2009 included an extra year of deprecation. - The County ‘
corrected the errors and resubmitted the system’s reports to the auditors.
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-+ COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
“SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

AL FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2010-12 Capital Asset Corrections (continued) L 9 -

Criteria: Controls over capital assets should be in place to ensure all capital assets owned by the
County are recorded in the capital asset system. Assets qualifying as depreciable either by cost or
type,,should be depreciated in accordance with reasonable established asset lives. = .-

Effect: The capital assets of the Cohnty were understated.

Recommendation: All capital assets acquired, including those capital project assets which the
County maintains ownership, should be examined for inclusion in the capitaI asset system.

. .Accumulated depreciation should. be verified on depreciable assets.. It is recommended that

‘annually the County’s capital assets be printed by location and the department head for that
location review for any unrecorded disposals or additions and reasonable remaining life.

v

A _’ N . ' ' N . .,
Response: .Extensive work has been performed in this area.. The County’s capital assets will be

printed annually by location for the department head’s review.

! DI ! iF

2010-13 Delinquent Tax Office Segregation of Duties Dy

Material Weakness
Conditions: Presently, the Delinquem Tax Collector assists with col]ections,‘deposits money
recei\_fed in his office, writes checks, signs checks and reconciles bank statements.,

- . Criteria: Segregation of duties provides for. checks and balances as a transaction is processed
andcomp]eted R o , S E o ot

Effect: Lack of segregation of duties provides little assurance errors will be detected.

!‘ =
X

) Recommendatlon We recommend that there be some segrega‘uon of dut1es between the four

employees in the office.

Response: Count}} implemented auditor’s recommended pfoceduree effective July‘ 1, 2009.

-
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II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED

Material Weakness

* assets of the County be reported properly in the financial statements-and the accounts held in

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
' SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

ACCORDAN CE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2010-14 Unrecorded Bank Accounts

Conditions: The County informed the auditors that existing bank accounts in the Sheriff’s o
have not been included in the audited financial statements in prior years. Following procedurt
determine unrecordéd bank accounts, 15 existing bank accounts were discovered that bad
been included in the prior financial statements of the County. Of these 15 bank accounts, 11 y

fice
5 to
not
vere

housed in the Sheriff’s. office, 3 were agency funds of the Clerk of Court’s office and 1 wa$ an

agency fund maintained in the Treasurer’s office. The bank accounts had total June 30, 2
bank balances in each office of $223 382, $25 643 and $4 535 respectwely

Durmg these procedures, it was also dlscovered that the Health Department, which is n
component unit or-part of the County, had their bank account under the County’s feq
identification number which is used to determine the County’s holdings for FDIC coverage
eollateralization

2010

bt a

eral.
and

Crlterla All funds of the County are to be included in the ﬁnancral statements of the primary

government.

Effect: Financial statements omitted the cash and activity of these 15 bank accounts.
Recommendation: We recommend the County implement procedures to verify all activity
County 5 federal 1dent1f cation number be reviewed annually for verification.

Response Meetmgs have been held between the Finance Department and Sheriff’s Departn
concemning this matter. All pertinent Sheriff’s Department accounts will be: held in
Treasurer’s Office effective July 1, 2011. Monthly reconciliations of accounts will be perforn
All efforts will be made to ensure alI actrvrty and assets of the County be properly reported in
financial statements.

2010-15- Deferred Revenue

Materlal Weakness

and
the

lent
the
ed.
the !

Condltlons The County received $300,000 from SCDHEC in the prior year. Each year as thaese N

funds are spent, that portion of the deferred revenue should be recognized as current 3
revenue, An adjustment of $28,232 was needed to reclass and recogmze currént year revenu
the Capltal Improvement Fund. ) '
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
.. For the year ended June-30, 2010

I FINDINGS' RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTE]) IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2010-15 Deferred Revenue (continued)

The County was advanced the entire amount for two multi-year grants and the unearned portion

had to be reclassed to deferred revenue in the amount of $97,957 for COPS Hiring Recovery and
$63,005 for Edward Byrne Memorial Grants. OJP grant was advanced $20,000 which was not
spent at:year end but was not deferred. - : . '

The aboveiadjusﬁneﬁts totaled $209,194. for the Nonmajor F unds.

AL Lt ot

- . Criteria:. Grant revenues should be reviewed to determine earned portion to recognize, .

IR

Effect: The revenues for these Nonmajor Funds were overstated at year end.

Recommendatmn We recommend grant advances be rev1ewed o determme portlon of revenue
earned to date. o e o

Response: Grant advances will be reviewed to determine portion of revenue earned to date.

2010-16 Sherlff’s Ofﬁce Bank Accounts Transactlons
Materla! Weakness | ‘ o '

Condmons The bank accounts maintained by the Sheriff’s office have not been available for
audit in the past-(see Finding 2010-14). Purchases through these accounts during the current and
past fiscal years have not followed County procurement policies and have not been tagged for
inventory in the capital,asset system. Internal controls over deposits and disbursements were not
in place over this activity nor were bank accounts reconciled.

Criteria: All activity, utilizing County fun_cis should aidhére to County policies for procurement
and controls. All capital asset purchases with County funds should be inventoried in the County’s
capital asset system and monitored until the County approves disposal of the asset.

Effect: The potential magnitude of the unrecorded assets and liabilities of the Sheriff’s accounts
activity from prior years is unknown.

Recommendation:  All County funds should be deposited, maintained, and disbursed. in
accordance with County policies and controls. :All funds converted to capltal assets should also

. be inventoried and properly maintained as Connty assets.

Response: Efforts have been made to ensure County Funds are used in accordance with County
policies and controls.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
: For the year ended June 30, 2010

II. . FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL AWARDS - -

- See 2010-6 and 2010-9
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.. COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG; SOUTH CAROLINA
SUlV[MARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
--For the year ended June 30, 2010

Findings — Financial Statements Audit

2009-1 Uncollateralized and 'Unihsured Depositsr

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: The cash on deposit with one financial institution is uncollateralized and uninsured

by $103,786.

Recommendation: We recommend the County review all agreements with financial institutions
for collateral and the current value of the assets held as collateral to make sure the value pledged
is sufficient to cover the deposits of the County.

Current Status: Finding not sustained in current year.

2009-2 Delinquent Tax — Bankruptey Funds ‘

Significant Deficiency

. Conditions: . We also noted that cards are kept on the bankruptcy cases in Delinquent Tax.. A
card is kept which has a balance of the monies being held for payment of taxes for each property..

When the balance due is collected, it is turned over as delinquent tax collections. A separate bank
account is used to hold this money. However, according to the Delinquent Tax Collector, a
reconciliation between the bank account reconciled balance and the total of the card balances is
never done.

Recommendation: We recommend that monthly when the bank account is reconciled that the
cards are totaled and the total is agreed to the reconciled bank balance. This procedure will

. ensure that entries on the cards are made correctly and that all moneys held for bankruptcies are

placed in the proper account. .

Current Status: Finding not sustained in current 'year;

-2009-3 .. Clerk of Court — Uﬁknown Overag‘es and Reéonciliations

SigniﬁcantDeﬁcien'cy

Conditions: Many funds are held by the Clerk of Court’s office with no documentation as to
whom they are due. Also, interest earned on funds not held under trust is to be remitted to the
Treasurer and bank charges are to be reimbursed by the Treasurer. The following is a summary
of unknown overages between reconciled bank balances and supporting documentation: .

Trust account $ 18472
Condemnation account Co 2,775
2 Bond accounts ' i 76,889
Restitution account _ 16,409
Restitution account - . : o 467
Fine account - 593

$115,605
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Findings — Financial Statements Audit

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
 For the year ended June 30, 2010

2009-3  Clerk of Court — Unknown Overages and Reconciliations (continued)

Civil account Lad $2,700 deposit for. filing fees from August 2008 that had never been tu

over to the Treasurer for inclusion in General Fund for County $ portlon and renutted to Stat
State’s portlon o -

Reconc1]1at10ns were performed on all the bank accounts but the reconciliations did not ing

med -

for

ude

outstanding deposits or checks. - The bank statements should be reconciled to the actual ook

activity during the month.

of these funds and reconcile monthly the cash held to the listings of funds held. Any
charges should be reimbursed by the Treasurer and interest earned not allocable to the indivi
cases should be remitted to the Treasurer.

Recommendation: We recommend that the office research the accounts to determine the o{gin

Current Status: Sustained in current year. See Finding 2010-1. |

2009-4 Receivables
Significant Deficiency

Conditions: The revenues of the nonmajor funds were overstated by $252,202 due to impr
recording of receivables as follows:

than against the receivable account for several funds. The funds misstated are Legisl
Delegation $126,778, Solid Waste $8,905, and Grant Subfunds consisting of PRT Grant $9
Mapping Grant $24,000, and LEMPG $21,208.

The receipt in the 2009 year of a prior year receivable was recorded ‘as revenue in 2009 r%Eher

The -County has a Hazard Mitigation grant (Grant Subfunds) passed through the SC Emerge
Management Division. The County requested reimbursement of expenditures under the grant

ank
ual

per

ive
84,

ncy
and

received payment of $10,670 in October, 2009. The receivable was not recorded by the County

at June 30, 2009 and the funds were recorded as revenue in F Y2010 when received:

The Comthouse Protection (Grant Subfunds) grant award was $54,409 of which $50 000

received in prior years. A receivable was recorded at June 30, 2009 by the County for the entire

$S4 409 rather than the remaining $4,409.
The County recorded a grant receivable in the OJP grant (Grant Subfunds)-of $21,997 in er

December 2009,
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..~ COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA |
- SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
* For the year ended June 30,2010

Findings — Financial Statements Audit - R S -
2009-4 Receivables (continued) |

, Recommendation: We recommend as receivables are identified by requesting grant

. - reimbursement or by some other means, the receivable be recorded in the correct fund and year.

As the revenue is received, these receivables should be reviewed to determine how to record the
-receipt properly. Accounts should be reviewed for reasonableness.

r(_furrent Status: Sostai_ried'jrl current year. _See’-Fip_ding 20 10-6.
-2009.—5 Improper Cash on Hand/Recelpt

Slgmficant Deﬁclency o o , B . '

Condltlons A check from the State for $279' 02"1 Was recexvea 1rr March 2009 but was not

deposited until after year-end under direction of the payor. The check was secured.in the County -

safe. The cash on hand and deferred revenue were not recorded in the 2009 general fund ledger,
but were recorded when deposited in.the 2010 year.

Recommendation: We recommend all cash held be properly recorded in the County’s financial
statement.

o Current Status: Sustained in current year. See Finding 2010-6,,

.2009-6  Preparation of Financial Statements

'Materialwe«aknes)s - L . , o o .

Conditions: In May 2006, the AICPA issued Statement on Auditin‘gA Standards No. 112,

.Communication .of Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit. This standard,
emphasizes the need for the County to have internal controls over ﬁnanmal reportmg in place that
~will provide . reasonable assurance that the County’s financial statements . are prepared in
accordance with generally.accepted accounting principles (GAAP). In order for these controls to
be effective, County personnel need to receive adequate training to allow them to prepare the
County 5 ﬁnanc1al statements in accordance with GAAP. . A -
Recommeudatlon Appropriate County personnel should Jattend - trammg courses that will
enhance their ability to prepare the County’s annual financial statements and footnote dlsclosures
in accordance with GAAP, . . “r :
& . AL

Current Status: Sustamed in current year. See Finding 2010 7.
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Findings — Financial Statements Audit

. Material Weakness

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

2009-7 Fund Balance Deficits

Conditions: ‘During 2009 expenditures exceeded the revenues in six funds which increased

the

funds’ fund balance deficits: All funds should be reviewed routinely to ensure funds aré available

prior to approval of expenditures. The County should consider means to fund theése deficits
cease increasing them. The funds are listed below:. :

and

2009 Excess June 30, 2009
: of Expenditures ~ Fund ||
Fund T over Revenues Deficit
" Road and Bridges Maintenance $ 57,636 $  (103,806)
New Brooklyn Lighting Tax District : (6,548) (18,683)
Brookdale Lighting Tax District ‘ (4,511) - {(14,448)
Special Education - (495,824) (1,501,982)
Edisto Sewer Capital Projects - - ‘ - C(64,771) - (530,256)
In addition, the Whitaker Lighting Tax District has a fund deficit of $43,046 and the Victin’s
Assistance has'a fund deficit of $85,705 at June 30, 2009. The fund deficits in thesé two funds
did decrease during the 2009 year, but a fund deficit still remains. The Economic Deévelopnjent
Tobacco Fund has no activity during the 2009 year, so the deficit remains at $202,049 at Jung|30,
2009.
Recommendation: We recommend all funds be reviewed before i 1ncurrmg expenditures. Mdans
of fundmg these fund balance deficits need to be addressed.
Current Status: Sustained in current year. See Finding 2010-8.
2009-8 . Allocation to Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center
Material Weakness
Conditions:  Orangeburg and Calhoun Counties fund the Orangeburg-Calhoun Regignal
. Detention Center (LEC) based on a split percentage of the actual expenditures of the LEC. [The
LEC’s activity is recorded through the County’s géneral ledger system in a separate fund. The -
County bills Calhoun County for its share of the LEC expenditures quarterly. Due to imprdper
cutoff dates of reports used to calculate the billings to Calhoun County, $80,951 was |pot

requested from Calhoun County. Also, the County bases its appropriation to the LEC on budiget

rather than actual. Due to large budget overages, at year-end, Orangeburg County was $704,
short in paying its share of the LEC expenditures.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SUN[MARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Findings — Financial Statements Audit

2009-8 Allocation to Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center (continued})
Recommendation: We recommend the County adopt a reasonable budget based on actual
expenditures of the LEC and monitor budget variances monthly to contro! excessive spending.
County appropriations should cover the actual expenditures of the LEC. Also, the reports used to
generate Calhoun County’s billings should reflect total actual expenditures.

C urrent Status: Finding not sustained in current j}éar. 7

2009-9 T1.and Sale not Recorded

Material Weakness

* Conditions: The County sold real property for $100,000 during the fiscal year of which part was
.financed by the County. A deposit for $6,699 was -received and recorded as miscellaneous

income in the OCCIP Capital Projects Fund at c]osmg This represents $10,000 payment from

~ the buyer less $3,301 closing costs. The balance of the selling price was financed by the County

by issuance of a note receivable of $90,000. This note receivable was ‘not recorded in the general
ledger and the property sold was not disposed from the capital asset system.

Recommendation: The financial statements should be reviewed to make sure all assets owned
by the County.are properly recorded.

Current Status: Finding not sustained in current year.

2009-10 Edisto Sewer USDA Loan

Material Weakness

Conditions: The County operates a sewer system financed by a USDA Rural Development loan.
User fees are charged to customers to cover operation costs and loan payments. The costs of
operation have increased but fees charged remain the same. Therefore, the Fund has accumulated
a deficit. This violates the loan covenant.

' Recommendation: The user fees should be increased to bo_ve; costs and fund deficit.

~ Current Status: Sustained in current year. See F inding 2_016-9.
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Findings — Financial Statements Audit
- recorded as a payable at June 30, 2009 but was actually not incurred until the 2010 fiscal

* adjustment of $575,575 was necessary to correct the: ﬁnancml statements.

" Current Status: Sustained in current year. See Finding 2010-10.

Recommendatlon: We recommend the capital project sales tax funds and related project rep

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended June 30,2010

2009-11 Accounts Payable
Material Weakness
Conditions: During testing of accounts payable, we noted one invoice for $637,897

Also, a payable of $62,322 was incurred at June 30, 2009 but was not accrued. The

Recommendation: The accounts payable of each fund should be rev1ewed to ensure all payarples

have been paid and properly recorded.

2009-12 Capital Sales Tax Projects
Material Weakness -

Conditions: The County maintains prbjcct reports for each project under the Capital Sales T
and II Funds through a module of the general Jedger computer system. The individual pre

Each entry in the general ledger system must be coded with a project number in order for the
be captured by the project reports. Some activity in other funds was a[so coded to these Ca
Sales Tax Fund prOJect reports.

reports did not agree with the activities posted in the Capital Sales Tax Funds® general -ledai:rs:

be reconciléd monthly to ensure all data is properly recorded. -

Current Status: Finding not sustained in current year.

2309-13 Netting Revenues agamst Expendltures
Matenal Weakness

Condltmus: The C,ounty recorded $300,000 revenue receipt in an expenditure account-in
Capital Improvements Fund. This understated both revenues and expenditures for the fund.

'Was
ear.
net

ax [
ject

ital

pris .

the
In

the Legislative Delegation Fund, expenditures of $144,016 were netted against revenue raher -

than being recorded in an expenditure account.

Recommendatmn We recommend the County follow generally accepted accounting princiy
in the recording of revenues.

Current Status: Finding not sustained in current year.
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. - COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SUMNIARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Findings — Financial Statements Audit
2009-14 Capital Asset Corrections
Material Weakness

- Conditions: County purchased $11,284.851 in capital assets in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009. Only $5,575,161 was recorded by the- County leavmg $6,009,690 of corrections to the
. capital-asset system to be recorded. » o

Numereus assets under the County"s capitalization threshold of $2,500 were being depreciated.
The County only records these items for-inventory purposes and only the items over.the $2,500
threshold should be marked for depreciating. = - K : .

. Assets totaling $116,570 were sold or disposed but not disposed in the capital-asset system. All
sales information should be sent to Finance and matched with assets in the system for proper
disposition.

The capital asset system’s depreciation calculation for existing assets was determined by the
client to be incorrect again this year so the County prepared an Excel spreadsheet for the
depreciation on existing assets. The system’s calculation of depreciation on asset additions was
- deemed to be correct. The auditors noted the spreadsheet contained several errors in the formulas
. mainly for assets that fully depreciated out in the prior year or during the current year. For these
assets, another full year of depreciation was calculated. again for the 2009 year. The County

. corrected the errors and resubmitted the spreadsheet

Recommendation: All capltal assets acqu1red, including those capital project assets which the
County maintains ownership, should be examined for inclusion in‘the capital asset system. As

. capital assets are. disposed, they should be noted as such in the capital asset system. Accumulated
depreciation should be verified on depreciable assets. It.is recommended that annually the
County’s capital assets be printed by location and the department head for that location review for
any unrecorded disposals or additions and reasonable remaining life. .

~ Current Status: Sustained in current year. See Finding 2010-12.

12009-15 Delinquent Tax Office Segregation of Duties
Material 'Weakness

‘Condiﬁd.ns._: Presently, the Delinquent Tax Collector assists with collections, deposits money
received in his office, writes checks, signs checks and reconciles bank statements. - ~

. Recommendation: We recommend that there be some segregation of duties between the four
employees in the office.

Current Status: Sustained in current year. See Finding 2010-13.
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FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL AWARDS

See 2009-10

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG SOUTH CAROLINA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended June 30, 2010
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~ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center
Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of the Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center (the
LEC), component unit of Orangeburg County, South Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2010, which collectively comprise the LEC’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the LEC’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each
major fund of the LEC as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. ' :

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 25,
2011, on our consideration of the LEC’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL COLUMBIA

1130 Boulevard Street | (803) 259-1163 (803) 787-0003

Orangeburg, SC 29115 | fax (803) 259-5469 fax (BO3) 787-2299
1 (803) 536-1015

fax (803) 536-1020 wWww.megregorcpa.com





Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of
funding progress for the retiree heaith plan on page 26 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statement. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

The LEC has not presented Management’s Discussion and Analysis that the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America have determined is necessary to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. Qur opinion on the basic financial statements is not
affected by this missing information.

%éug««afmw“’”

Orangeburg, South Carolina
March 25, 2011
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ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30,2010
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS :
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 3 56,967 § 56,967
Intergovernmental receivable_s - 507,612 - 507,612
Other receivables 991 ‘ 21,183 22,174
Total assets S 508,603 ' 78,150 586,753
LIABILITIES ‘ 7
Due to primary government 330,906 - 330,906
. Accounts payable _ 62,000 - 62,000
Accrued salaries 109,153 - 109,153.
Compensated absences: ' -
Due within one year ' 76,473 ‘ - 76,473
Due in more than one year ' . 110,047 - 110,047
Net OPEB obligation - Note 6 . 885,871 - 885,871
Total liabilitiés L 1,574,450 - 1,574,450
NET ASSETS -
Unrestricted (deficit) - general fund (1,065,847) ) - (1,065,847)
Unrestricted (deficit) - proprietary fund - } 78,150 78,150
Total net assets 8§ (1,065847) S 78,150  § (987,697)

- The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUND

ASSETS
Intergovernmental receivables
Other receivables

Total assets

JUNE 30, 2010

LIABILITTES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries
Due to primary government

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCE
Unreserved, undesignated {deficit)

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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General Fund/
Total

$ 507,612
991

$ 508,603

$ 62,000
109,153
330,906

502,059

6,544

6,544

$ 508,603






ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30,2010

Total fund balance (deficity - Governmental fund b 6,544

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

Compensated absences ‘ (186,520)
- OPEB obligation ' (885,871)
Net assets of governmental activities B ' £ (1,065,847)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.





ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

. General Fund/
» " Total

REVENUES .

Intergovernmental - $ - 57245928
Total revenues . ’ 5,245,928
EXPENDITURES

Salaries and benefits ) ' : 3,789,463
Medical and health services _ 487,390
Utilities and telephone : 166,209
Juvenile subsistence 38,730
Supplies - 67,014
Food supplies : 361,012
Office and copying _ 23,038
Prisoner care 54,304
Building maintenance 130,755
Travel and meetings : 7,610
Insurance 56,729
Other _ 2,844
Vehicle expenditures 26,606
Capital expenditures - Note 9 27,680
Total expenditures 5,239,384
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 6,544
Net change in fund balance 6,544
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year ' ‘ _ -
Fund balance (deficit), end of year : b 6,544

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOYERNMENTAL
' FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Net change in fund balance - Total governmental fund ‘ $ 6,544

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Change in compensated absence . _ (5,849)
Change in OPEB obligation -(440,815)

Change in net assets of governmental activities . (440,120)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
8





REVENUE
Intergovernmental

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Sataries and benefits
Medical and health services
Utilities and telephone
Juvenile subsistence
Supplies
Food supplies
Office and copying
Prisoner care
Building and equipment maintenance
Travel and meetings
Insurance
Other
Vehicle expenditures
Capital expenditures

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
{under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Teansfer in from Proprietary Fund

Net other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

GAAP to

Encumbrances for supplies or services ordered but not received is reported in the
year the orders are placed for budgetary purposes, but are reported in the year
the supplies or services are received for GAAP purposes

Prior year encumbrances
Current year encumbrances

Variance with
Budget Actnal Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Differences Budgetary Favorable

Original Final GAAP Basis Over(Under) Basis {Unfavorable}
$ 5,205,542 5,205,542 5245928 8§ - $ 5245928 % 40,386
5,203,542 5,205,542 5,245,928 - 5,245928 40,386
3548742 3,548,742 3,789,463 - 3,789,463 (240.721)
650,000 650,000 487,390 - 487,390 162,610

189,500 192,300 166,209 - 166,209 26,091
50,000 50,000 38,730 - 38,730 11,270
84,500 70,258 67.014 - 67,014 3,244
450,000 450,000 361,012 - 361,012 88,988
21,000 24,237 23,038 - 23,038 1,199

55,000 55,000 54,304 (316) 53,988 1,012

125,000 135,535 130,755 (9.325) £21,430 14,105

14,500 13,770 7,610 - 7,610 6,160
54,500 54,500 56,729 - 56,729 (2,229)
1,000 1,790 2,844 - 2,844 (1,054}

31,000 31,000 26,606 - 26,606 4,354

30,400 28,410 27,680 27,680 730

5,305,542 5,305,542 5,239,384 (9,641) 5,228,743 75,799

{100,000) {100,000) 6,544 9,641 16,185 116,185
100,000 100,000 - - - (100,000}
100,000 100,000 - - - (100,000)

5 - - 6,544 9,641 16,185 & 16,185

- (9,641) -
6544 % - § 16,183
$ 9,641
$ 9,641

Net increase in fund balance - GAAP to budget

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2010
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
- Proprietary fund receivables
Total assets
NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
10

Canteen Fund/
Total Proprietary
Fund

$ 56,967
21,183

78,150

78,150

$ 78,150






ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Canteen Fund/
Total Proprietary
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Canteen sales $ 58,468
Telephone revenue ) 40,430
Miscellaneous revenue 6,737
Total revenues 105,635
OPERATING EXPENSES
Work release 23,591
Administration 27,515
Benefit for inmates ‘ 38,553
Capital expenditures 1,250
Total operating expenses ' 90,905
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 14,726
Change in net assets 14,726
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 63,424
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 78,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Canteen Fund/
Total Proprietary
, Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 104,200
Cash paid to suppliers . (89,659)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 14,541
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14,541
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 42,426
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 7 $ 56,967

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income $ 14,726
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used by) operating activities;
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (185)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3 14,541

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
12





ORANGEBURG - CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - AGENCY FUND

JUNE 39,2010
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 37,766
Total assets $ 37,766
LIABILITIES
Due to others A 37,766
Total liabilities $ 37,766

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
' 13





NOTE 1 -

ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center (the LEC) was incorporated in 1982
to operate a jail which houses prisoners from Orangeburg and Calhoun counties in South
Carolina. The LEC is governed by a seven-member board. Five board members are
appointed by the Orangeburg County Council, and two board members are appointed by
the Calhoun County Council. The LEC’s budget must be approved by Orangeburg County
Council. Both Orangeburg and Calhoun counties make annual appropriations to operate
the LEC.

A. Reporting Entity

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has established basic criteria for
determining the scope of the reporting entity for financial statement presentation. The
GASB has determined that if a governmental unit’s elected officials have oversight
responsibility for an organization, the larger government must incorporate the
organization’s financial statements with its own. Oversight responsibility is derived from
the governmental unit’s power and includes, but is not limited to:

Financial interdependency

Selection of governing authority

Ability to significantly influence operations
Accountability for fiscal matters

Since Orangeburg County provides the Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center
(the LEC) with an annual appropriation which approximates the majority of the LEC’s
operating revenue, since Orangeburg County Council appoints members of the LEC’s
board, and since the LEC is required to submit its budget to Orangeburg County Council
for approval, the LEC is considered to be a component unit of Orangeburg County. Its
financial position and results of operations have been reported in the financial statements of
Orangeburg County.

The accompanying financial statements present the financial position and results of

- operations of the LEC only and do not include any financial information for the County or

any other component unit of Orangeburg County.
B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the LEC are presented in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to state and local
governmental units as recommended by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

The LEC’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net assets and a statement of activities, fund financial statements, which
provide a more detailed level of financial information, and notes to the basic financial

statements.
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NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1. Government-wide financial statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
LEC as a whole. These statements include the financial aciivities of the LEC, except for
fiduciary funds. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from
the statements. The statements distinguish between those activities of the LEC that are
governmental and those that are considered business-type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental activities
and business-type activities for the LEC at year-end. The statement of activities presents a
comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of
the LEC’s governmental and business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program or department and, therefore, clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the
recipient for the goods and services offered by the program, grants, and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational and capital requirements of a particular program
and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program.

Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues
of the LEC, with certain limited exemptions. The comparison of direct expenses with
program revenues identified the extent to which each governmental function is self-
financing or draws from the general revenues of the LEC.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus, All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the LEC are

included on the statement_of net assets.

2. Fund financial statements

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when measurable and available. The LEC considers all revenues reported in the
governmental funds to be available if the revenuves are collected within sixty days after
year-end. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are considered
to be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments,
and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt acquisitions under capital leases are reported as
other financial sources. This approach differs from the manner'in which the governmental
activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund
financial statements therefore include reconciliation with brief explanations to better
identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for
governmental funds.

15





NOTE 1 -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a
flow of economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated
with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net assets. The statement
of changes in fund net assets presents increases (i.c., revenues) and decreases (i.e.,
expenses) in net total assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how
the LEC finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.
C. Basis of Presentation

Fund accounting

The accounts of the LEC are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate

set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenue and
expenditures, as appropriate. LEC resources are allocated to and accounted for in

individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by
which spending activities are controlled. LEC reports the following major funds:

Governmental Fund Type

General Fund — to account for all financial resources, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund or account group.

Proprietary Fund Type

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. In accordance
with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 20, the government applies
all FASB statements and interpretations issued prior to November 30, 1989 in accounting
and reporting for its proprietary operations. The LEC uses one proprietary fund type,
enterprise.

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business or where the board has decided that the determination
of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management
accountability.

The Canteen fund is the single enterprise fund maintained by the LEC. It is operated at
the LEC to sell various snacks and personal hygiene items to the inmates. lts primary
source of revenue is sales to inmates, through a private outside company and telephone

commission,
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NOTE1 -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

LEC reports the following other fund types:

Fiduciary Fund Type

Fiduciary'funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an
agent on behalf of others. Trust funds account for assets held by the government under the
terms of a formal trust agreement. The fiduciary fund used by the LEC is as follows:

The agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have a
measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. This fund is used to account for assets that the government holds for others in

an agency capacity.
D. Basis of accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.
Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the
recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of
expenses versus expenditures.

Expenses/expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations
of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental
funds. '

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General
Fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances
and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be
reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.

Compensated absences

Vacation pay that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources
is reported as an expenditure in the governmental fund when it is paid.

17





NOTE 1 -

NOTE 2-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

The LEC’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Receivables
All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.
Capital assets

All capital assets of the LEC are owned by Orangeburg County pursuant to the County
ordinance which created the LEC. Capital assets as reflected on the records of Orangeburg
County, held for the benefit of the LEC totaled $11,125,491 at June 30, 2010.

Net assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the LEC or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, laws, or regulations of other governments.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

BUDGET

Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the LEC’s commission adopts an annual budget for
all general fund expenditures. This budget request is forwarded to Orangeburg County
Council. Based on the budget, the Orangeburg County Council approves an annual LEC
appropriation.

The LEC’s annual budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is
a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America for the general fund. Overall budgetary control for revenues and appropriations is
maintained at the level of Orangeburg County. Budgetary control is maintained at the line-
item level at the LEC, and all changes to the budget must be approved by the LEC’s Board
of Trustees and Orangeburg County Council. Budget amounts reflected in the
accompanying financial statements represent the original budget and any revisions.
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NOTE 3 -

NOTE 4 -

CASH AND DEPOSITS

The LEC’s investment policies are governed by state statute. Permissible investments
include direct obligations of the U.S. Government and agencies thereof, general obligations
of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units, certificates of deposit, savings
accounts and repurchase agreements. Collateral is required for demand deposits,
certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements in excess of amounts covered by federal
deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral consist of obligations of
the United States and its agencies and obligations of the State and its subdivisions.

The LEC’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a
bank failure, the Commission’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Commission does
not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2010, the carrying amount of
the LEC’s deposits was $94,733 and the bank balance was $104,651. All of the LEC’s
deposits at year-end were covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held in
the pledging financial institution’s trust department in the County’s name.

Amounts per Financial Statements are as follows:

- Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary Fund, page 10 $ 56,967
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets, page 13 37.766
$94,733

RISK MANAGEMENT

The LEC is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, job-related illnesses and injuries, and errors and omissions. The LEC
is insured against such risks by the County. The County purchases tort, property and
casualty and automobile coverage from the South Carolina Accident Fund. The County
purchases workmen’s compensation insurance from a public entity risk pool. The public
entity risk pool and the State Accident Fund promise to pay to or on behalf of the insured
for covered economic losses sustained during the policy period in accord with insurance
policy and benefit program limits. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to
preclude any significant uninsured losses for the covered risks. There has been no
significant reduction in coverage and amounts of settlements have not exceeded coverage
in any of the last three years.
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NOTE 5-

PENSION PLAN

LEC employees participate in the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) or the South
Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), depending on their particular duties.
Both plans are classified as cost-sharing multiple-employers defined benefit pension plans
and are administered by the South Carolina Retirement Systems. SCRS and PORS provide
retirement and disability benefits, group life insurance and survivor benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions for SCRS and PORS are established under
Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws. The South Carolina Retirement System issues a publicly

" available stand-alone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report containing financial

statements and required supplementary information which may be obtained by writing to
South Carolina Retirement System, Post Office Box 11960, Columbia, South Carolina
29211 or on the website @www.retirement.sc.gov.

Generally all employees are required to participate in the SCRS or PORS as a condition of
employment.

Under South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), employees are eligible for normal
retirement with no reduction of benefits upon reaching age 65 or completion of 28 years
credited service regardless of age. The benefit formula for the System is 1.82% of an
employee’s average final compensation multiplied by the number of years of credited
service. Employees are vested after 5 years service. An early retirement option with
reduced benefits is available as early as age 55. A group life benefit equal to an
employee’s annual rate of compensation is payable upon the death of an employee with a
minimum of one year of credited service. Employees are required to contribute 6.5% of
their earnable compensation for the years ended June 30, 2010, June 30, 2009, and June 30,
2008. LEC is required to contribute 9.24% of employees’ compensation for the year ended
June 30, 2010 (9.24% and 9.06% for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008) on their
behalf and .15% of earnable compensation for group life insurance.

Police Officers Retirement System (PORS) employees are eligible for normal retirement
with no reduction of benefits upon reaching 55 or completion of 25 years of service
regardless of age. There is not an early retirement option. The benefit formula for PORS is
2.14% of an employee’s average final compensation times years of service credited.
Employees are vested after 5 years of service. A group-life insurance benefit equal to an
employee’s annual rate of compensation is payable upon the death of an employee with a
minimum of one year of credited service. The accidental death benefit provides 50% of
earnable compensation at the time of accidental death in line of duty as an annuity to the
surviving spouse, children, or parents. Participating employees contribute 6.5% of their
annual covered earnable compensation. LEC contributes on their behalf 10.65% in 2010
(10.65% in 2009 and 10.3% in 2008) of annual payroll plus an additional .2% of earnable
compensation for group life and .2% of earnable compensation to provide accidental death
benefits.
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NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN (continued)

NOTE 6 -

The Pension Plans provide death and group life as well as retirement benefits. Both
employees and employers are required to contribute to the Plan at rates established under
authority of Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws. Contribution information for the year ended
June 30, 2010 and the two years prior is as follows:

Employee " Employer
SCRS/PORS ' Amount Amount Total
June 30, 2010 $ 190,176 $302,515 $ 492,691
June 30, 2009 192,140 317,800 509,940
June 30, 2008 171,818 275,963 447,781

These contributions equaled 100% of the LEC’s required contributions.

The LEC employees may participate in the 457 and/or 401(k) deferred compensation plans,
which are available to state and local governmental employees and administered by a state-
approved nongovernmental third party. The plans, available to all LEC employees, permit
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the plan is
optional. The deferred compensation plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforesecable emergency. There are no employer

~ contributions made by LEC to these plans. Employee contributions were $6,435 in 2010.

Employees eligible for service retirement may participate in the Teacher and Retiree
Incentive Program (TERI). TERI participants may retire and begin accumulating
retirement benefits ‘on a deferred basis without terminating employment for up to five
years. Upon termination of employment or at the end of the TERI period, whichever is
earlier, participants will begin receiving monthly service retirement benefits which will
include any cost of living adjustments granted during the TERI period. Because
participants are considered retired during the TERI period, they do not make SCRS
Contributions, do not earn service credit, and are ineligible to receive group life insurance
benefits or disability retirement benefits. Effective July 1, 2006, TERI participants who
entered the program after July 1, 2005 are required to pay the same pre-tax contribution to
the SCRS during the TERI period, but do not earn service credit.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS

Background

Beginning in fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the LEC implemented prospectively
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45 for other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) offered to retirees. This standard addresses how local
governments should account for and report their costs related to postemployment health
care and other non-pension benefits, such as the LLEC’s retiree health benefit subsidy,
Historically, the LEC’s subsidy was funded on a pay-as-you-go basis but GASB 45
requires that the LEC accrue the cost of the retiree health subsidy and other
postemployment benefits during the period of employees’ active employment, while the
benefits are being earned, and disclose the unfunded actuarial accrued liability in order to
accurately account for the total future cost of postemployment benefits and the financial
impact on the LEC.
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NOTE 6 -

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS (continued)

Plan Description

The County of Orangeburg’s postemployment benefit plan in which the LEC partlmpates
is a single employer defined plan that is self-funded.

Other postemployment benefits provided under the plan include a retiree health and dental
insurance premium contribution plan that covers retirees.

An employee must meet the following criteria to be eligible for retiree health and dental
insurance. The employee must have 15 years of service with the LEC and must qualify for
retirement under the South Carolina Retirement System or Police Office Retirement
System guidelines. For any employee retiring with less than 15 years of service with the
LEC, no health and dental retirement benefits will be provided.

The LEC will pay the fult cost of single retiree medical and dental insurance premium
costs. Coverage for the spouse is the responsibility of the retiree.

Funding Policy

The LEC has elected not to pre-fund OPEB liabilities and to fund healthcare benefits on a
pay as you go basis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The annual cost of other postemployment benefits (OPEB) under GASB 45 is called the
annual required contribution or ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year plus an amount to amortize
any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
thirty years. The current employer contribution rate for the LEC is 1%.

The LEC’s annual OPEB cost and the net OPEB obligation is calculated using a 4.0%
discount rate, which is based upon the anticipated long-term rate of return of the general
funds of the employer used to pay the plan benefits and an annual heaithcare cost trend rate
of 10% reduced by decrements of .5% to an ultimate rate of 6% and amortizing the
unfunded actuarial liability over 30 years using the level dollar method is as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 452,330
Interest on net OPEB obligation 14,884
Adjustment to annual required contribution (21,909}

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 445,305
Estimated pay-as-you-go annual '

employer contributions (4.490)

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 440,815
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year . 445.056
Net OPEB obligation, end of year 3 885871
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NOTE 6 -

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS (continued})

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employee and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The Projected Unit Credit, Level Dollar actuarial cost method has been used to calculate
the GASB ARC for this valuation. Using the plan benefits, the present health and dental
premiums and a set of actuarial assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected.
The projected unit credit method then provides for a systematic funding for these
anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of benefits being
earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued
liability. The unfunded liability is amortized over thirty years using the level dollar method
which divides the liability into equal dollar amounts over the selected number of years;
each payment is part interest, part principal. This is both an accepted and reasonable cost
method. -

Trend Information:

The LEC’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

Perceniage
of Annual
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ending OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2009 $ 449,546 1% $ 445,056
June 30, 2010 $ 445,305 1% $ 885,871

Funded Status and Funding Progress:

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date,
was as follows:

Detention
Center

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 3,642,019
Actuarial value of plan assets - -
Unfunded Actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $3,642.019
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets (AAL) 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $1.407.634
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll . 258.7%
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NOTE 6 -

NOTE 7 -

NOTE 8-

NOTE 9-

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS (continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revisions as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported
as long-term debt:

Accrued compensated absences, beginning of year $ 180,670
Additions 127,493
Subtractions (121.643)
Accrued compensation absences, end of year 3 186,520
Estimated amounts due within one year $ 76473

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As discussed in Note 1, the LEC receives approximately 85 percent of its general fund
revenue from Orangeburg County, of which it is a component unit. During the year ended
June 30, 2010, this appropriation was $4,374,387. The LEC owes Orangeburg County
$330,906 at June 30, 2010.

Additionally it receives approximately 14 percent of its general fund revenue from Calhoun
County. During the year ended June 30, 2010, this appropriation was $725,155. The
amount receivable from Calhoun County is $462,466 at June 30, 2010.

Orangeburg County provides accounting, payroll and cash management services to the
LEC at no charge. As part of these services, the LEC’s general fund cash is managed by
the Orangeburg County Treasurer.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Orangeburg County owns and reports the capital assets of the LEC in excess of $2,500,
therefore, the payment for these items is included in the LEC’s operating activities rather
than reporting the capital assets and debt service in the LEC’s financial statements. (See
Note 1) The following activity summarizes the reimbursement to Orangeburg County for
these transactions:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
Capital assets (in excess of $2,500) $5,598 § -

24





NOTE 10 -

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are several lawsuits against the LEC pending with each involving inmates at the
Detention Center. In all cases, the legal proceedings are ongoing and are being handled by
the Office of Insurance Reserve Fund whose position is to defend the LEC’s case
vigorously. It is too early in the proceedings to determine any potential outcome but all
should be covered by the Insurance Reserve Fund.

Additionally, the County received notice that certain persons working at the Detention
Center may be due compensation for what is commonly referred to as “Off the Clock” time
under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). The County has assisted the LEC in
reviewing the matter.

At this time it appears that the FLSA claims are limited to two types and involves 13
employees over a period of two years. The current calculations, which are subject to
change, are as follows: (1) $28,225 for one type of claim; and (2) approximately $87,000
for the other type of claim. An amount for attorneys’ fees is expected to be demanded;
however, a specific dollar demand for same has not yet been received. Asto (2), as long as
the employees are working for the LEC, this claim can be resolved via compensatory time
off or in cash.

On March 22, 2011, the LEC voted to pay out the $28,225 and to have counsel for the
relevant parties review the calculations and work on a resolution of the second type of
claim as well as attorneys fees. As these amounts are an estimate and subject to change, an
amount has not been accrued or recorded on the financial statements as of June 30, 2010.
The estimated range of loss as discussed above is $28,225 - $87,000.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
~ Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center
Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
and each major fund of Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center (LEC), a component unit of
Orangeburg County, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the
LEC’s basic financial statements and have issned our report thereon dated March 25, 2011. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the Standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government  Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention
Center’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the LEC’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the LEC’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and therefore, there
can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL COLUMBIA
1120 Boulevard Street (803) 259-1163 (803) 787-0003
Orangeburg, S5C 29115 fax (803) 259-5469 fax (803) 787-2299
27 (803) 536-1015 :
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses, 2010-5 through 2010-8, to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompany schedule of findings and
responses, 2010-1 through 2010-4 to be significant deficiencies.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention
Center’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, reguiations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional
Detention Center in a separate letter dated March 25, 2011.

LEC’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses. We did not audit LEC’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinton
on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the
organization and Board of Trustees and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other

than these specified parties.
Mg +loopaog L

Orangeburg, South Carolina
March 25, 2011
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ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For the year ended June 30, 2010

FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2010-1 Meetings of the Board of Commissioners
Significant Deficiency

Conditions: The meetings of the board of commissioners were not held monthly or on a periodic
basis. Meetings were consistently canceled throughout the first part of the fiscal year, although
were held on a more consistent basis in the latter part of the fiscal year. In the review of the
minutes of the meetings which were held, it remained difficult to tell whether items on the agenda
are being discussed as information provided to the commissioners or whether the commissioners
have approved the items. There were some actions documented as approved by the
commissioners.

Criteria: Meetings should be held as stated in the County ordinance. Minutes should contain
evidence of a motion to approve an item on the agenda and the result of board action — whether
approved, postponed for further discussion, or denied.

Effect: It is unclear as to whether agenda items considered by the board were approved.

Recommendation: As noted above.

Response: Agree with the recommendation of the auditor.

2010-2 Cash — (Fiduciary Fund)
Significant Deficiency

Conditions: The inmate fund cash recorded in the fiduciary fund is not reconciled to the check
book balance or to a subsidiary report which reflects the amount of cash held for the inmates. A
reconciliation report is prepared but is reconciled to an incorrect checkbook balance as
outstanding checks from closed inmate accounts are not deducted as outstanding checks on the
reconciliation. The reconciliation also does not reconcile to the resident balance report as the
outstanding checks need to be added back to the resident balance report as voided if not deducted
on the cash reconciliation.

Criteria: A bank reconciliation should be prepared to reconcile the balance in the bank with the
corrected balance per the checkbook. This should also be reconciled to the resident balance
report.

Effect: The bank balance provided by the client for the fiduciary fund was not accurate.
Recommendation: As stated above.

Response: The Detention Center accountant and Swanson Services are working together to
install system software that would generate the correct balance reports.
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ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For the year ended June 30, 2010

2010-3 Numerous Audit Adjustments
Significant Deficiency

Conditions: Orangeburg County provides accounting, payroll, and cash management services
for the LEC. Although not material, several adjustments were made at the request of the
accounting personnel when account balances were discovered to contain misstatements.

Criteria: The testing of accounts revealed that the account payable balance was not corrected for
a prior year adjustment, the accounts payable detail was not reconciled to general ledger, and
unrecorded receivables in the proprietary fund and general fund.

Effect: Accounts payable are not reconciled to the detailed supporting information. Revenues are
understated, and expenditures are overstated.

Recommendation: Accounts payable recorded on the ledger should be reconciled to the detailed
reports and corrections made when necessary. The LEC should inform the County’s accounting
personnel of amounts billed for services such as Federal Housing so that amounts billed for the
year can be recorded in the appropriate period. Collections in the subsequent period should be
reviewed to determine if they should be recorded as a receivable in the current period.

Response: Agree with the Auditor’s recommendation.

2010-4 Emergency Dental Care
Significant Deficiency

Conditions: The LEC has established polices governing providing emergency dental care to
inmates. We noted that the LEC is not retaining the completed “request for dental care™ form as
required by the policy nor is there a written agreement with the dental care providers as required
by the policy. The policies governing the providing of emergency dental service is not clear as to
what dental services should be provided and what dental services are considered emergency.

Criteria: Policies established by the LEC governing providing emergency dental care should be
followed.

Effect: Dental care costs for inmates are not properly documented as to need and approval.

Recommendation: We recommerd that the policy be amended to clarify which dental services
and to what extent dental services are to be provided to inmates. Additionally, we recommend
that procedures already established under the policy be followed by obtaining a written agreement
with dental care providers. Additionally, the “inmate request for dental services” form should be
completed by the inmate, the nurse, and the dentist and retained in the inmate’s medical file.

Response: Dental policy will be reviewed and changed as deemed necessary and a written

agreement will be obtained from the dental care provider. All inmate dental care is considered a
medical necessity.
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ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For the year ended June 30, 2010

2010-5 Preparation of Financial Statements
Material Weakness

Conditions: The AICPA has issued Statement on Auditing Standards No. 115, Communicating
Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit. This standard, emphasizes the need for
the LEC to have internal controls over financial reporting in place that will provide reasonable
assurance that the LEC’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). In order for these controls to be effective, LEC personnel need to
receive adequate training to allow them to prepare the LEC’s financial statements in accordance
with GAAP.

Criteria: Internal controls over financial reporting should be in place to provide reasonable
assurance that financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Effect: Because LEC personnel have not received adequate training in preparing financial
statements in accordance with GAAP, a material misstatement to the LEC’s financial statements
could occur and not be prevented or detected by the LEC’s internal controls over financial
reporting.

Recommendation: Appropriate LEC personnel should attend training courses that will enhance
their ability to prepare the LLEC’s annual financial statements and footnote disclosures in
accordance with GAAP.

Response: The Law Enforcement Commission will get with the County’s Finance Department
on items and seek the necessary recommendation from them that is deemed appropriate.

2010-6 Capital Expenditures
Material Weakness

Conditions: The LEC has “financed” some capital purchases through the company providing the
telephone services whereby monthly payments for the purchases are being deducted from the
monthly commission payments to the LLEC, These purchases are not reported to the County and
therefore, have not been added into the County’s capital asset records.

Criteria: Capital assets of the LEC are owned by Orangeburg County. The purchase of the
assets are recorded as an expenditure on the LEC’s ledger and capitalized on the County of
Orangeburg’s capital assets ledger. The County inventories assets over an established dollar level
- $300 for computer equipment, $2,500 for all others.

Effect: Capital expenditures in excess of the established doMar levels purchased from the
proprietary funds are not recorded in the County’s capital assets records. Telephone commission
revenue in the proprietary fund is understated by the amounts withheld for the capital purchase

payments.
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ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For the year ended June 30, 2010

2010-6 Capital Expenditures {continued)

Recommendation: The capital purchases from the proprietary fund, which fit the capitalization
criteria, should be reported to the County so that the County can inventory them. The telephone
commission revenue should be reported at the gross amount with the amount withheld reported in
expenditures of the proprietary fund.

Response: We will adhere to the County’s policy regarding capital item purchases, and report all
expenditures to the County, as required.

2010-7 Budgeting Process
Material Weakness

Conditions: The LEC’s expenditures for salaries and benefits exceed the budgeted amount by
$240,721. Although the director requested actual projected expenditures for salaries and benefits,
the amount approved in the budget was substantially less than the actual amounts requested or the
amounts incurred in prior years. The LEC has not cut staff positions so that salaries, benefits, or
other expenditures would be in compliance with the amount approved. A contingency account
was approved in the budget of $200,000 to reduce the possibility that expenditures would exceed
appropriation, though the contingency was actually to provide for medical services.

Criteria: The budget should include all approved and projected expenditures based upon actual
salary and benefits projections and other projected expenditures. If the projections exceed the
amounts approved, then the LEC should eliminate staff positions and other expenditures which
will exceed the budget. If the County intends to pay the requested salaries and expenditures, then
the budget should be developed and approved accordingly.

Effect: The budget is an ineffective tool for monitoring individual line item budgeted
expenditures in compliance with the budget.

Recommendation: The budget should be developed and approved based upon actual
projections.

Response: Agree with the recommendation of the auditor.
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ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For the year ended June 30, 2010

2010-8 Intergovernmental Receivable and Revenue — Calhoun County
Material Weakness

Conditions: Orangeburg County provides accounting, payroll and cash management services for
LEC. The collection of the 2010 fourth quarter appropriations and supplemental or adjustment to
the 2010 billings were recorded on the ledger as revenues in 2011 rather than recorded as a
receivable or revenues in 2010. Additionally, the amounts billed for a portion of the prior years’
agreed upon adjustment to the appropriations for Calhoun County’s share of costs exceeding the
budget were recorded in revenue in 2010. These amounts have already been recorded and
recognized in prior years.

Criteria: The revenue recorded on the ledger should be recognized when measurable and
available and should apply to the appropriate period.

Effect: Intergovernmental revenue is incorrect.

Recommendation: The County and the commission should establish a consistent procedure to
bill and record Calhoun County for the amount appropriated by Calhoun County plus any agreed
upon adjustments to the appropriation for Calhoun County’s portion of actual costs in excess or

under the budgeted expenditures.

Response: Agree with recommendation.
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ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

2009-1 Meetings of the Board of Commissioners

Significant Deficiency

Conditions and Criteria: The meetings of the board of commissioners were not held monthly or
on a periodic basis. Meetings were consistently canceled throughout the year. In the review of
the minutes of the meetings which were held, it was difficult to tell whether items on the agenda
are being discussed as information provided to the commissioners or whether the commissioners
have approved the items. Meetings should be held periodically or as stated in the County
ordinance. Minutes should contain evidence of a motion to approve an item on the agenda and the
result of board action — whether approved, postponed for further discussion, or denied.

Corrective Action Taken: The Board of Commissioners began meeting on a more regular basis
in 2010. No changes noted on evidence of motions and actions approved by the Board of
Commission. See 2010-1,

20092 Cash - (Fiduciary Fund)
Significant Deficiency

Conditions and Criteria; The inmate fund cash recorded in the fiduciary fund is not reconciled
to the check book balance or to a subsidiary report which reflects the amount of cash held for the
inmates. A reconciliation report is prepared but is reconciled to an incorrect checkbook balance
and is not reconciled to the resident balance report. A bank reconciliation should be prepared to
reconcile the balance in the bank with the corrected balance per the checkbook. This should also
be reconciled to the resident balance report.

Corrective Action Taken: A reconciliation is being prepared which balances to a “checkbook
balance report” developed by the programmer for the current account. The outstanding items
from the accounts which have been closed and deposited into the new account are not accounted
for in the reconciliation therefore the cash reconciliation does not reconcile to the resident balance
report. See 2010-2.

2009-3 Numerous Audit Adjustments
Significant Deficiency

Conditions and Criteria: Although not material, numerous adjustments were made at the
request of management when account balances were discovered to contain misstatements. The
combination of control deficiencies in effective designs and operations of internal control and
inadequate monitoring by those charged with governance indicate a significant deficiency even
though adjustment may not be material to the financial statements. The testing of accounts
revealed some exceptions as to account classifications, an unrecorded accounts payable, account
payable balance not corrected for a prior year adjustment, accounts payable detail not reconciled
to general ledger, and unrecorded receivables in the proprietary fund and general fund.

Corrective Action Taken: Invoices were posted to proper expenditure accounts. Other
conditions discussed above still exist in 2010, see 2010-3.
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ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

2009-4 Preparation of Financial Statements
Significant Deficiency Considered a Material Weakness

Conditions and Criteria: The LEC should have internal controls over financial reporting in
place that will provide reasonable assurances that the LEC’s financial statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Personnel need to receive
adequate training to allow them to prepare the LEC’s financial statements in accordance with
GAAP. The LEC did not prepare its own financial statements and note disclosures. Preparation
of financial statements would aid in detecting material misstatements.

Corrective Action Taken: No action taken, see 2010-5.

2009-5 Capital Expenditures
Significant Deficiency Considered a Material Weakness

Conditions and Criteria: The LEC has paid for capital expenditures which are considered to
benefit the inmates from the proprietary fund cash. Additionally, some capital purchases have
been “financed” by contracting with the company providing the telephone services with monthly
payments being deducted from the monthly commission payments to the LEC. These purchases
are not reported to the. County and therefore, have not been added into the County’s capital asset
records. The LEC has also incorrectly posted capital items paid through the County purchasing
system to repair and maintenance accounts. Capital assets of the LEC are owned by Orangeburg
County. The purchase of the assets are recorded as an expenditure on the LEC’s ledger and
capitalized on the County of Orangeburg’s capital assets ledger. The County inventories assets
over an established dollar level - $300 for computer equipment, $2,500 for all others.

Corrective Action Taken: Capital expenditures paid from the general fund were posted to the
appropriate expenditures accounts in 2010 and properly recorded by the County. No action has
been taken to correct or change the accounting treatment of capital purchases “financed” by the
proprietary fund, see 2010-6.
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ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended June 30, 2010

2009-6 Operating Deficit
Significant Deficiency Considered a2 Material Wealkness

Conditions and Criteria: The LEC’s expenditures exceeded the original appropriations and
other budgeted revenue by the Orangeburg County Council and the Calhoun County Council by
$660,425 in 2009. Although the director requested actual projected expenditures, the
expenditures approved in the budget were substantially less than the actual amounts requested or
the amounts incurred in prior years. The LEC has not cut expenditures or staff positions so that
salaries, benefits, or other expenditures would be in compliance with the amount approved. The
budget should include all approved and projected expenditures based upon actual salary and
benefits projections and other projected expenditures. If the projections exceed the amounts
approved, then the LEC should eliminate staff positions and other expenditures which will exceed
the budget. If the County intends to pay the requested salaries and expenditures, then the budget
should be developed and approved accordingly and appropriation from both counties made to
cover increased expenditures when the appropriated revenue is less than actual expenditures
incurred a deficit in the LEC’s fund balance results.

Corrective Action Taken: The budget approved contained a contingency amount of $200,000 in
order to reduce the potential for expenditures to exceed appropriated revenues. The budget for
most expenditures more closely approximated actual than in prior years, although the salary and

fringe budget was much less than actual and prior year actual with new temporary staff position
approved for 2010. See 2010-7.

2009-7 Intergovernmental Receivable and Revenue — Calhoun County
Significant Deficiency Considered a Material Weakness

Conditions and Criteria: The collection of the 2008 fourth quarter appropriations and

- supplemental billing for Calhoun were recorded on the ledger as revenues in 2009 and not applied

to the receivable. Additionally, the amount that was billed for 2009 was incorrect. Quarterly
billings were prepared using differing reports cut-off dates which did not capture all costs through
the closing of the quarters. The revenue recorded on the ledger should be recognized when
measurable and available.

Corrective Action Taken: The quarterly billings were corrected to capture actual costs through
the closing of the quarters, although by year end the billings were adjusted back to the budgeted
appropriation amount. The fourth quarter billing and adjustment was not properly reflected in the
ledger for 2010. See 2010-8.

36







ORANGEBURG COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT
REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
: JUNE 30, 2010

SECEIVED |
FER 28701

FFrEnee
Direcior






ORANGEBURG COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT
ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2010

CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet — Governmental Fund — General Fund
Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balance
Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance — Governmental Fund — General Fund
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
of Governmental Fund to the Statement of Activities
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — General Fund
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Funding Progress for the Retiree Health Plan (Unaudited)
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCTAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Page
1-2

(%]

10-20

21

22-23

24

25





McGregor & company..

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS | SINCE 1830

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS + SOUTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCQUNTANTS
PARTNERS ASSOCIATES
C.C. McGregor, CPA W.C. Stevenson, CPA D.L. Richardson, CPA D.K. Strickland,CPA VK. Laroche, CPA S. we, CPA
1906—-1968 B.T. Kight, CPA E.C. Inabinet, CPA J.P. McGuire, CPA G.N. Mundy, CFA G.A. Farmer, CPA
G.D. Skippar, CPA $.5. Luoma, CPA L.H. Kelly, CPA M.L. Layman, CPA C.0. Hinchee, CPA
L.R. Leaphart, Jr, CPA T.M. McCali, Cpa P.A. Betette, Ir, CPA J.R. Matthews, Il, CPA
M.]. Binnicker, CPA H.C. Brawn, Ir. CPA
WM. Frandis, CPA L.B. Salley, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Orangeburg County Fire District
Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each
major fund of the Orangeburg County Fire District (the District), a component unit of Orangeburg
County, South Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the District’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. '

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activitics and each major fund of the District as of
June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position thereof and the respective comparison
for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 7,
2011, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL COLUMBIA
1190 Boulevard Street (803) 255-1163 {803) 787-0003
Orangeburg, SC 29115 fax (B03) 259-5469 fax (803) 787-2299
1 (503) 526-1015
fax {BO3} 536-1020 WWW.MCQregorcpa.com





Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of
funding progress for the retiree health plan, on page 21, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statement in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

The District has not presented Management’s Discussion and Analysis that the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America have determined is necessary to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not

affected by this missing information.

Orangeburg, South Carolina
February 7, 2011
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2010
Governmental
Activities/Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 500
Property taxes receivable - net 177,870
Due from primary government 476,680
Total assets 655,050
LIABILITIES
Accountis payable : 34,410
Accrued salaries and benefits 8,400
Compensated absences:
Due within one year 15,435
Due in more th'ar_l one year 14,248
Net OPEB obligation - Note 6 58,106
Total liabilities 130,599
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 524 451
Total net assets $ 524 451

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements,
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2010

ASSETS
Cash
Property taxes receivable - net .
Due from primary government

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Deferred revenue - taxes

Total liabilities
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved, undesignated

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

General
Fund/Total

$ 500
177,870
476,680

$ 655,050

$ 34,410
8,400
158,380

201,190

42,062
411,798

453,860

$ 655,050






ORANGEBURG COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010

Total fund balance - Governmental fund $ 453,860

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Some revenues will be collected after year-end but are
not available soon enough to pay for the current period's
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.
Property taxes 158,380

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

Compensated absences (29,683)
OPEB obligation (58,106)
70,591
Net assets of governmental activities $ 524,451

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT

. GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

REVENUES
Property taxes
Interest

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current
Salaries and benefits
Contracted services
Operating expenses - Note 9
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCEF, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

General
Fund/Total

$

2,336,356
4,633

2,340,989

323,482
61,392
2,198,463

2,583,337

(242,348)

(242,348)

696,208

$

453,860






ORANGEBURG COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

Net change in fund balance - Total governmental fund $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Some revenues will not be collected for several months after the
County’s fiscal year ends, they are not considered "available" revenues
and are deferred in the governmental funds. Deferred property tax revenues
increased by this amount this year.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.
Change in compensated absence
Change in OPER obligation

(242,348)

9,752

1,990
(28,915)

Change in net assets of government activities $ - (259,521)

“The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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NOTE1-

ORANGEBURG COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Orangeburg County Fire District (the District) was created by Orangeburg County
under the South Carolina Code of Laws 4-19-10 and incorporated in 1997 to consolidate
and coordinate countywide fire protection services. The District contracts with the
County’s twenty-three volunteer fire departments and Santee Fire Service District to
provide fire protection services. The District has the authority to purchase and sell personal
and real property as shall be appropriate to provide fire protection services, however, real
property cannot be transferred or sold without prior consent of the Orangeburg County
Council. The District has purchased the equipment and vehicles previously owned by the
various fire departments and is leasing a building from one fire department. Although titled
to the District, all real estate and equipment is considered owned by Orangeburg County
which is also responsible for all the District’s debt. The District is governed by a seven-
member board, the members of which are appointed by Orangeburg County Council.
Orangeburg County Council must approve the District’s budget and its property tax millage
rate.

A. Reporting Entity

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has established basic criteria for
determining the scope of the reporting entity for financial statement presentation. The
GASB has determined that if a governmental uvnit’s elected officials have oversight
responsibility for an organization, the larger government must incorporate the
organization’s financial statements with its own. Oversight responsibility is derived from
the governmental unit’s power and includes, but is not limited to:

Financial interdependency

Selection of governing authority

Ability to significantly influence operations
Accountability for fiscal matters

Since QOrangeburg County Council appoints members of the District’s board and approves
the District’s budget and millage rate, and since the County is considered the owner of all
District capital assets and is responsibie for all District debt, the District is considered to be
a component unit of Orangeburg County. Its financial position and results of operations
have been reported in the financial statements of Orangeburg County.

The accompanying financial statements present the financial position and results of
operations of the District only and do not include any financial information for the County
or any other component unit of Orangeburg County.

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the District are presented in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to state and locai
governmental units as recommended by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
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NOTE 1~

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

The District’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including
a statement of net assets and a statement of activities, fund financial statements, which
provide a more detailed level of financial information, and notes to the basic financial
statements.

1. Government-wide financial statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the District.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the
statements.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental
activities for the District at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison
between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the
District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a service, program or department and, therefore, clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Program revenues include charges paid to the recipient for the
goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program and interest
earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program.

Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues of the District, with certain limited exemptions. The comparison of direct
expenses with program revenues identified the extent to which each governmental
function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the
District are included on the statement of net assets.

2. Fund financial statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.c., revenues and
other financial sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current

+ financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental

activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental
fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to
better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the
" statements for governmental funds. ‘
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NOTE 1-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. Basis of Presentation
Fund accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
equity, revenue and expenditures, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and
the means by which spending activities are controlled as follows:

Governmental Fund

General Fund — to account for all financial resources, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

D. Basis of accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise
in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of
expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues — exchange and non-exchange transactions
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives

essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On
a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are

measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected

within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means expected
to be received within sixty days of fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving
equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which
the District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis.
On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be
available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at year-end: delinquent taxes and grants.
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NOTE1-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria
have been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2010, but which
were levied to finance fiscal year 2011 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenue.
Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met are also
recorded as deferred revenue. On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that
will not be collected within the available period have also been reported as deferred
revenue.

Expenses/expenditures
On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources {(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations
of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental

funds.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General
Fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances
and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be
reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.

Compensated absences

Vacation pay that is liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as
an expenditure of the governmental fund when it is paid.

Capital assets

All capital assets of the District are owned by Orangeburg County pursuant to the County
ordinance which created the District. Accordingly, capital assets and the related long-term
liabilities are not reported in the accompanying financial statements. Capital assets as
reflected on the records of Orangeburg County, held for the benefit and use of the District,
totaled $11,178,806 before accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2010.

Interest incurred and reported in expenditures related to the purchase of capital assets was
$48,265 in 2010.
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NOTE 1 -

. NOTE2 -~

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Net assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets are reported
when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation
adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws,
or regulations of other governments.

The District applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property tax revenues are recognized when due or past due and collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter (defined as sixty days) to pay liabilities of the
current period. '

The County bills and collects property taxes for the District.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.
Taxes on real property are assessed as of January 1, levied the following September, due
January 15, and become delinquent March 15. Liens attach to the property at the time the
taxes are levied. The levy date for motor vehicles taxes is the first day of the month in
which the motor vehicle license expires. These taxes are due by the last day of the same

month.

Deferred revenue (property taxes) represents that portion of property taxes which is deemed
not available to pay current expenditures. Allowances for uncollectible taxes receivable as

of June 30, 2010 was $19,763.

A receivable is recorded when an enforceable legal claim for property taxes has arisen, and
revenue is recognized when the resources are available. Prior to this change, a receivable
and revenue were recognized only for the portion of taxes collected within the current

period or within sixty days after year-end.
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NOTE 3 -

NOTE 4 -

NOTE 5 -

BUDGET

Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the District’s Commission adopts an annual budget
for all general fund expenditures. This budget request is forwarded to Orangeburg County
Council. Based on the budget, the Orangeburg County Council approves an annual millage
for the District.

The District’s annual budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting which
is a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America for the general fund. Overall budgetary control for revenues and appropriations is
maintained at the level of Orangeburg County. Budgetary control is maintained at the line-
item level at the District, and all changes to the budget must be approved by the District’s
Commission and Orangeburg County Council. Budget amounts reflected in the
accompanying financial statements represent the original budget and any revisions.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, job-related illnesses and injuries, and errors and omissions. The
District is insured against such risks by the County. The County purchases tort, property
and casualty and automobile coverage from the South Carolina Accident Fund. The
County purchases workmen’s compensation insurance from a public entity risk pool. The
public entity risk pool and the State Accident Fund promise to pay to or on behalf of the
insured for covered economic losses sustained during the policy period in accordance with
insurance policy and benefit program limits. Management believes such coverage is
sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses for the covered risks. There has been
no significant reduction in coverage and amounts of settlements have not exceeded
coverage in any of the last three years.

PENSION PLAN

District employees participate in the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) or the
South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), depending on their particular
duties. Both plans are classified as cost-sharing multiple-employers defined benefit plans
and are administered by the South Carolina Retirement System. SCRS and PORS provide
retirement and disability benefits, group life insurance and survivor benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions for SCRS and PORS are established under
Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws. The South Carolina Retirement System issues a publicly
available stand-alone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report containing financial
statements and required supplementary information which may be obtained by writing to
South Carolina Retirement System, Post Office Box 11960, Columbia, South Carolina
29211 or on the website @ www.retirement.sc.gov.

Generally, all employees are required to participate in the SCRS or PORS as a condition of
employment.

15






NOTE 5-

PENSION PLAN (continued)

Under the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), employees are eligible for normal
retirement with no reduction of benefits upon reaching age 65 or completion of 28 years
credited service regardless of age. The benefit formula for the System is 1.82% of an
employee’s average final compensation multiplied by the number of years of credited
service. An early retirement option with reduced benefits is available as early as age 55.
Employees are vested after 5 years service. A group-life insurance benefit equal to an
employee’s annual rate of compensation is payable upon the death of an employee with a
minimum of one year of credited service. Employees are required to contribute 6.5% of
their earnable compensation for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008. The
District is required to contribute 9.24% for the year ended June 30, 2010 (9.24% and 9.06%
for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively) of employees’ earnable
compensation on their behalf plus .15% of earnable compensation for group life insurance.

Under the Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), employees are eligible for normal
retirement with no reduction of benefits upon reaching 55 or completion of 25 years of
service regardless of age. There is not an early retirement option. The benefit formula for
the PORS is 2.14% of an employees average final compensation times years of service
credited. Employees are vested after 5 years of service. A group-life insurance benefit
equal to an employee’s annual rate of compensation is payable upon the death of an
employee with a minimum of one year of credited service. The accidental death benefit
provides 50% of earnable compensation at the time of accidental death in the line of duty as
an annuity to the serving spouse, children, or parents. Participating employees contribute
6.5% of their annual covered earnable compensation. The District contributes on their
behalf 10.65% for the year ended June 30, 2010 (10.65% for the year ended June 30, 2009
and 10.3% for the year ended June 30, 2008) of annual earnable compensation plus an
additional .2% of earnable compensation for group life and .2% of earnable compensation
to provide accidental death benefits.

The Pension Plans provide death and group life as well as retirement benefits. Both
employees and employers are required to contribute to the Plan at rates established under
authority of Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws. Contribution information for the year ended
June 30, 2010 and the two years prior is as follows:

SCRS/PORS Employee Employer
June 30, 2010 $13,729 $22,783
June 30, 2009 14,562 24,172
June 30, 2008 12,571 20,291

These contributions equaled 100% of the District’s required contributions.
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NOTE 5-

NOTE 6 -

PENSION PLAN (contimied)

The District’s employees may participate in 457 and/or 401(k) deferred compensation
plans, which are available to state and local governmental employees and administered by a
state-approved nongovernmental third party. The plans, available to all District employees,
permit them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the plan is
optional. The deferred compensation plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforesceable emergency. There are no employer
contributions made by the District to these plans. Employee contributions were $6,935 in
2010.

Employees eligible for service retirement may participate in the Teacher and Retiree
Incentive Program (TERI). TERI participants may retire and begin accumulating
retirement benefits on a deferred basis without terminating employment for up to five
years. Upon termination of employment or at the end of the TERI period, whichever is
earlier, participants will begin receiving monthly service retirement benefits which will
include any cost of living adjustments granted during the TERI period. Because
participants are considered retired during the TERI period, they do not earn service credit,
and are ineligible to receive group life insurance benefits or disability retirement benefits.
Effective July 1, 2006, TERI participants who entered the program after July 1, 2005 are
required to pay the same pre-tax contribution to the SCRS during the TERI pericd, but do
not earn service credit. None of the District’s employees have elected to be covered under
the optional retirement plan as of June 30, 2010.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS

Background

Beginning in fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Orangeburg County Fire District
implemented prospectively Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 45 for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) offered to retirees. This standard
addresses how local governments should account for and report their costs related to
postemployment health care and other non-pension benefits, such as the District’s retiree
health benefit subsidy. Historically, the District’s subsidy was funded on a pay-as-you-go
basis but GASB 45 requires that the District accrue the cost of the retiree health subsidy
and other postemployment benefits during the period of employees’ active employment,
while the benefits are being earned, and disclose the unfunded actuarial accrued liability in
order to accurately account for the total future cost of postemployment benefits and the
financial impact on the District.

Plan Description

The County of Orangeburg’s postemployment benefit plan in which the District
participates, is a single employer defined plan that is seli-funded.

Other postemployment benefits provided under the plan include a retiree health and dental
insurance premium contribution plan that covers retirees.
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NOTE 6 -

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS (continued)

An employee must meet the following criteria to be eligible for retiree health and dental
insurance. The employee must have 15 years of service with the District and must qualify
for retirement under the South Carolina Retirement System or Police Office Retirement
System guidelines. For any employee retiring with less than 15 years of service with the
District, no health and dental retirement benefits will be provided.

The District will pay the full cost of single retiree medical and dental insurance premium
costs. Coverage for the spouse is the responsibility of the retiree.

Funding Policy

The District has elected not to pre-fund OPEB liabilities and to fund healthcare benefits on
a pay-as-you-go basis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net QPEB Obligation

The annual cost of other postemployment benefits (OPEB) under GASB 45 is called the
annual required contribution or ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year plus an amount to amortize
any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
thirty years. The current employer contribution rate for the District is 0%.

The District’s annual OPEB cost and the net OPEB obligation is calculated using a 4.0%
discount rate, which is based upon the anticipated long-term rate of return of the general
funds of the employer used to pay the plan benefits and an annual healthcare cost trend rate
of 10% reduced by decrements of .5% to an ultimate rate of 6% and amortizing the
unfunded actuarial liability over 30 years using the level dollar method is as follows:

Annual required contribution $29372
Interest on net OPEB obligation 966
Adjustment to annual required contribution (1.423)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 28,915
Estimated contributions made -
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 28,915
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 29,191
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $58,106

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employee and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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NOTE 6 -

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS (continued)

The Projected Unit Credit, Level Dollar actuarial cost method has been used to calculate
the GASB ARC for this valuation. Using the plan benefits, the present health and dental
premiums and a set of actuarial assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected.
The projected unit credit method then provides for a systematic funding for these
anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of benefits being
‘earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued
liability. The unfunded liability is amortized over thirty years using the level dollar method
which divides the liability into equal dollar amounts over the selected number of years;
each payment is part interest, part principal. This is both an accepted and reasonable cost
method.

Trend Information:

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2010 were as
follows:

Percentage
of Annual
. Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2009 $29,191 0% $29,191
June 30, 2010 $28915 0% $ 58,106

Funded Status and Funding Progress:

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date,
was as follows: ‘

Fire
Commission

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 236,495
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded Actuarial accrued

liability (UAAL) $236,495
Funded ratio (actuarial value

of plan assets (AAL) 0%
Covered payroll (active plan

members) $£91.405
UAAL as a percentage of

covered payroll 258.7%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost
trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revisions as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
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NOTE 7 -

NOTE 8 -

NOTE 9 -

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported
as long-term debt:

Accrued compensated absences, beginning of year $ 31,672
Additions 8,459
Subtractions (10,448)
Accrued compensation absences, end of year $ 29683
Estimated amounts due within one year $ 14,248

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Orangeburg County provides accounting, payroll, tax collection and cash management
services to the District at no charge. As part of these services, the District’s general fund
cash is managed by the Orangeburg County Treasurer. The amount of District cash held by
Orangeburg County at June 30, 2010 was $476,680 and is reported on the statement of net
assets as “due from primary government.”

CAPITAL ASSETS AND RELATED DEBT

Orangeburg County owns and reports all capital assets of the District and related debt,
therefore the payment for these items is included in the District’s operating activities rather
than reporting the capital assets and debt service in the Districts financial statement. (See
Note 1)

The following activity summarizes the reimbursement to Orangeburg County for these
transactions:

Principal $ 220,000

Interest ’ 48.265

268,265

Capital assets 937,569

Total $1.205.834
20
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Orangeburg County Fire District
Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of
Orangeburg County Fire District (the District), a component unit of Orangeburg County, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2010, which coliectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated February 7, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and therefore, there
can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we
identified a certain deficiency in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be a
material weakness.

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL COLUMBIA
1190 Boulevard Street {803) 259-1163 (803) 787-0003
Orangeburg, SC 28115 fax (803) 259-5469 fax (803) 787-2299
22 (803) 536-1015
fax (803) 536-1020 www.mcogregorcpa.com






A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses, 2010-1, to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. We did not audit the District’s response and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the
organization and the commission members and is not intended to be and should not used by anyone
other than these specified parties. '

Wﬁ'é’uﬁw o+ éw;od/a/ Lk

Orangeburg, South Carolina
February 7, 2011
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2010-1 Preparation of Financial Statements
Material Weakness

Conditions: The AICPA issued Statement on Auditing Standards No. 115, Communicating
Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit. This standard, emphasizes the need for
the District to have internal controls over financial reporting in place that will provide reasonable
assurance that the District’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). In order for these controls to be effective, District
personnel need to receive adequate training to allow them to prepare the District’s financial
statements in accordance with GAAP.

Criteria: Internal controls over financial reporting should be in place to provide reasonable
assurance that financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Effect: Because District personnel have not received adequate training in preparing financial
statements in accordance with GAAP, a material misstatement to the District’s financial
statements could occur and not be prevented or detected by the District’s internal controls over
financial reporting.

Recommendation: Appropriate District personnel should attend training courses that will
enhance their ability to prepare the District’s annual financial statements and footnote disclosures
in accordance with GAAP.

Response: Heretofore, the County has maintained and updated the accounting records. The
District does not have access to the County records for accounting and updating. To train the
District personnel to prepare financial statements necessitates that the District have access to
accounting records which are now not available to the District.
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

2009-1 Capital Expenditures
Significant Deficiency

Conditions and Criteria: Orangeburg County is considered to own the assets of the District.
The account maintained for construction costs contains capital expenditures and repair and
maintenance expenditures. The capital expenditures in excess of $2,500 included in this account
have not been added to the County’s capital assets. Orangeburg County’s policy is to capitalize
all fixed assets with a cost of $2,500 or greater. The County inventories these assets and in
addition, inventories computer equipment with a cost in excess of $300. Capital assets purchased
should have a purchase order and be coded to ledger account number’s 7000 to 8000. -

Corrective action taken: New general ledger accounts were set up in the 7000 range for
construction costs considered capital improvements in 2010. Expenditures with a cost of $2,500
or greater were charged to this account. Items with a cost of $2,500 or greater charged to these
accounts are to be inventoried by the County.

2009-2 Preparation of Financial Statements
Significant Deficiency Considered a Material Weakness

Conditions and Criteria: The District should have internal controls over financial reporting in
place that will provide reasonable assurances that the District’s financial statements are prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Personnel need to receive
adequate training to allow them to prepare the District’s financial statements in accordance with
GAAP. The District did not prepare its own financial statements and note disclosures.
Preparation of financial statements would aid in detecting material misstatements.

Corrective action taken: None.
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To the Commissioners
Orangeburg County Fire District
Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of
Orangeburg County Fire District for the year ended June 30, 2010. Professional standards require that
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards
and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated July 14, 2010.
Professional standards also require that we provide you with the following information related to our

audit.
Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Orangeburg County Fire District are described in Note | to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2010. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial. statements and- because .of the . possibility -that- future events- affecting. them- may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible taxes receivable is based on
historical loss levels and an analysis of the collectibility of individual accounts. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance in determining
that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
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Management’s estimate of the net OPEB obligation and expense is based on an actuarial
study done by the contracted firm. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the OPEB obligation and expense in determining that they are reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit. ~ '

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identifted during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a
result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the
aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to ounr satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated February 7, 2011.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountanis

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about anditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. ‘
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Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were

not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Commissioners and management of Orangeburg
County Fire District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

Very truly yours,

THe g + vty 11

February 7, 2011
Orangeburg, South Carolina
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Orangeburg County Library
Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each
major fund of the Orangeburg County Library (the Library), a component unit of Orangeburg County,
South Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the Library’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Library’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our andit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Library as of
June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated January 20,
2011, on our consideration of the Library’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL COLUMBIA
1190 Boulevard Street (803 259:1163 (803) 787-0003
Orangeburg, $C 29115 fax (803) 259-5469 fax (803) 7B7-2299
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of
funding progress for the retiree health plan on page 20 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

The Library has not presented Management’s Discussion and Analysis that the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America have determined is necessary to supplement,
although not required to be part of, the basic financial statements.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Library’s financial statements as a whole. The schedule of revenues and
expenditures by source of revenues is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. The schedule of revenues and expenditures by source of
revenue is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as whole.

“W]e gufw» + Oonpasy Lt

Orangeburg, South Carclina
January 20, 2011





BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS





ASSETS
Cash
Due from primary government

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Compensated absences:
Due within one year

Due in more than one year
Net OPEB obligation - Note 7

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

The accompanying notes are a integral part of these basic financial statements.

ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010

3

Governmental
Activities/ Total

$ 160,980
53,750

214,730

10,267

23,425
29,814
296,672

360,178

(145,448)

$ (145,448)
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
' JUNE 30, 2010
General
Fund/Total
ASSETS 7
Cash $ 160,980
Due from primary government : . 53,750
Total assets , 7 ' . $ 214,730
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities )
Accounts payable b 10,267
Total liabilities ‘ 10,267
FUND BALANCE
Unreserved, undesignated 204,463
Total fund balance 204, 463
Total liabilities and fund balance b 214,730

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements. -





ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET .
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010 o

Total fund balance - Governmental fund $ 204,463

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

Compensated absences (53,239)
OPEB obligation (296,672)
Net assets of governmental activities $ (145,448)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY

GOVERN‘MENTAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

REVENUES

State aid - operating
Stabilization funds
County appropriation
Fines

Interest

Gifts

Refunds - Net

Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and benefits

Books

Utilities and telephone
Periodicals

Library and andio-visual supplies
Postage

Maintenance

Office supplies and copying
Computer software, maintenance and supplies
Professional fees

Travel and meetings

Building insurance

Vehicle expense

Dues

Printing and binding
Miscellaneous

Small capital items

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out - Note 10

‘Net other financing sources (uses)
Net change in-fund balance
Fund balance, begiuﬁing of year

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

General
Fund/Total

$

120,888
38,464
900,931
25,283
178
6,200
20,688
11,269

1,123,901

811,245
149,562
39,881
16,088
11,774
8,050
47,678
22,017
47,602
52,782
2,173
6,850
4,879
2,504
627
5,093
4,764

1,233,569

(109,668)

{9,149)

(9,149)

(118,817)

323,280

$

204,463






ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YFAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Net change in fund balance - Total governmental fund $ (118,817)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Change in compensated absences (2,577)
Change in OPEB obligation (143,440)
Change in net assets of government activities $ (264,834)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3, 2010

REVENUES
State aid - operating
Stabilization funds
County appropriation
Fines
Interest
Gifis
Refunds - Net
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Salaries and benefits
Books
Utilities and telephone
Periodicals
Library and audio-visual supplies
Postage
Maintenance
Office supplies and copying
Branches
Computer software, maintenance and supplies
Professional fees
Travel and meetings
Building insurance -
Vehicle expense
Dues
Printing and binding
Miscellaneous
Small capital items

Taotal expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out - Nete 10

Net other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Budget- Budget- Variance-
Original Final Favorable
Actual (Unfavorable)}
$ 132,794 b 132,794 $ 120,888 ¢ (11,506)
- - 38,464 38,464
500,931 900,931 900,931 -
22,200 22,200 25,283 3,083
- - 178 178
- - 6,200 6,200
- - 20,688 20,688
- - 11,269 11,269
1,055,925 1,055,925 1,123,901 67,976
769,053 769,053 811,245 (42,192)
150,000 150,000 149,562 438
38,866 38,866 39,881 (1,015)
- - 16,088 (16,088)
28,338 28,338 11,774 16,564
7,430 7,430 8,050 {(620)
48,409 48,909 47,678 1,231
8,040 8,040 22,017 (13,977)
36,000 36,000 - 36,000
51,312 51,312 47,602 3,710
49,500 49,900 52,782 (2,882)
2,473 2,473 2173 300
6,990 6,990 6,850 140
6,049 5,549 4,879 670
2,665 2,665 2,504 161
400 400 627 (227
- - 5,093 (5,093)
- - 4,764 (4,764)
1,205,925 1,205,925 1,233,569 {27,644)
{150,000) (150,000) (109,668) 40,332
- - (9,149) {9,149)
- - (9,149) (9,145)
$§ (50,0000 3 (150,000} (118,817) % 31,183
323,280
$ 204,463

'The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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NOTE1 -

ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Orangeburg County Library (the Library) is a component unit of Orangeburg County,
South Carolina. Orangeburg County Council enacted the ordinance #79-6-11 for the
establishment of Orangeburg County Public Library Commission on July 1, 1979.

A. Reporting Entity

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has established basic criteria for
determining the scope of the reporting entity for financial statement presentation. The
GASB has determined that if a governmental unit’s elected officials have oversight
respon51b111ty for an organization, the larger government must incorporate the
organization’s financial statements with its own. Oversight responsibility is derived from
the governmental unit’s power and includes, but is not limited to:

Financial interdependency

Selection of governing authority

Ability to significantly influence operations
Accountability for fiscal matters

Orangeburg County provides the Orangeburg County Library (the Library) with an annual
appropriation which approximates the majority of the Library’s operating revenue.
Orangeburg County Council appoints members of the L1brary s Board of Trustees, which is
the Library’s governing authority, and the Library is required to submit its budget to
Orangeburg County Council for approval. Accordingly, the Library is considered to be a
component unit of Orangeburg County and its financial position and results of operations
have been reported in the financial statements of Orangeburg County.

The accompanying financial statements present the financial position and results of
operations of the Library only and do not include any financial ‘information for the County
or any other component unit of Orangeburg County.

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Library are presented in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to state and local
governmental units as recommended by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

The Library’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements,
including a statement of net assets and a statement of activities, fund financial
statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial information, and notes to
the basic financial statements.

1. Government-wide financial statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
Library as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the Library.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the

statements.
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NOTE1 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental
activities for the Library at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison
between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the
Library’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a service, program or department and, therefore, clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Program revenues inciude charges paid to the recipient for the
goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program and interest
earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program.

Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues of the Library, with certain limited exemptions. The comparison of direct
expenses with program revenues identified the extent to which each governmental
function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the Library.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the
Library are included on the statement of net assets.

2. Fund financial statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and
other financial sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current
financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental
activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental
fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to
better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the
statements for governmental funds.

C. Basis of Presentation

Fund accounting

The accounts of the Library are organized on the basis of funds each of which is considered
a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate
set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, and revenue
and expenditures, as appropriate. Library resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by
which spending activities are controlled as follows:

Governmental Fund

General Fund — to account for all financial resources, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

11





NOTE 1 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Basis of accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise
in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of
expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues — exchange and non-exchange transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On
a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are
measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected
within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafier to be
used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the Library, available means expected
to be received within sixty days of fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the Library receives value without directly giving
equal value in return, include appropriations, grants, entitlements and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which
the Library must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are provided to the Library on a reimbursement basis.
On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be
available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the foliowing revenue source is considered to be both
measurable and available at year-end: grants.

Expenses/expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations
of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental
funds.

12





NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General
Fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances
and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be
reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year. The Library had no outstanding
encumbrances as of June 30, 2010,

Compensated absences

Vacation pay that is liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as
an expenditure in the governmental fund when it is paid.

Capital assets

All capital assets of the Library are owned by Orangeburg County pursuant to the County
ordinance which created the Library. Accordingly, capital assets are not reported in the
accompanying financial statements. Capital assets as reflected on the records of
Orangeburg County, held for the benefit and use of the Library, were $1,553,494 at
June 30, 2010.

Library books

Because almost all of the Library’s books are in circulation, their estimated useful lives are
limited. Accordingly, the Library has chosen to expense all books as they are acquired.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Net assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the Library or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, laws, or regulations of other governments.
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NOTE 2 -

NOTE 3 -

NOTE 4 -

BUDGET

Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the Library’s Board of Trustees adopts an annual
budget for all general fund expenditures, This budget request is forwarded to Orangeburg
County Council and to the State Library. The State Library Board of Trustees appropriates
an amount to the Library appropriation which includes expenditures from State Library
funds. If either the County or the State amends its appropriations to the Library, the Board
amends expenditures accordingly.

The Library’s annual budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting which
is consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
for the general fund. Federal revenue and expenditures are not included in the budget.
Overall budgetary contro! for revenues and appropriations is maintained at the level of
Orangeburg County. Budgetary control is maintained at the line-item level at the Library,
and all changes to the budget must be approved by the Library’s Board of Trustees.

The General Fund expenditures exceeded appropriations by $36,793 for the year ended
June 30, 2010,

CASH AND DEPOSITS

The Library’s investment policies are governed by state statute. Permissible investments
include direct obligations of the U.S. Government and agencies thereof, general obligations
of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units, certificates of deposit, savings
accounts and repurchase agreements. Collateral is required for demand deposits,
certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements in excess of amounts covered by federal
deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral consist of obligations of
the United States and its agencies and obligations of the State and its subdivisions.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the Library’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Library does not have a
deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2010, the carrying amount of the
Library’s deposits was $160,980 and the bank balance was $174,137. All of the Library’s
deposits at year-end were covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held in
the pledging financial institution’s trust departments in the County’s name.

Operating Leases

The Library has entered into several operating leases for office equipment. Lease payments
including maintenance and equipment were $11,962 in 2010.

Future minimum rental payments for the lease under noncancelable lease terms are as
follows:

2011 $ 5,630
2012 6,565
2013 5,422
2014 1,994
2015 _ 1994
321,605
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NOTE 5 -

NOTE 6 -

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Library is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, job-related illnesses and injuries, and errors and omissions. The
Library is insured against such risks by the County. The County purchases tort, property
and casualty and automobile coverage from the South Carolina Accident Fund. The
County purchases workmen’s compensation insurance from a public entity risk pool. The
public entity risk pool and the State Accident Fund promise to pay to or on behalf of the
insured for covered economic losses sustained during the policy period in accord with
insurance policy and benefit program limits. Management believes such coverage is
sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses for the covered risks. There has been
no significant reduction in coverage and amounts of settlements have not exceeded
coverage in any of the last three years.

PENSION PLAN

Library employees participate in the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS). The plan
is administered by the South Carolina Retirement System and is classified as a cost-sharing
multiple-employers defined benefit plan. SCRS provides retirement and disability benefits,
group life insurance and survivor benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit
provisions for SCRS are established under Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.
The South Carolina Retirement System issues a publicly available stand-alone
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report containing financial statements and required
supplementary information which may be obtained by writing to South Carolina Retirement
System, Post Office Box 11960, Columbia, South Carolina 29211 or on the website @
www.retirement.sc.gov.

Generally, all employees are required to participate in the SCRS as a condition of
employment.

Under the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), employees are eligible for normal
retirement with no reduction of benefits upon reaching age 65 or completion of 28 years
credited service regardless of age. The benefit formula for the System is 1.82% of an
employee’s average final compensation multiplied by the number of years of credited
service. An early retirement option with reduced benefits is available as early as age 55.
Employees are vested after 5 years service. A group-life insurance benefit equal to an
employee’s annual rate of compensation is payable upon the death of an employee with a
minimum of one year of credited service. Employees are required to contribute 6.5% of
their earnable compensation for the year ended June 30, 2010 (6.5% for the years ended
June 30, 2009 and 2008). The Library is required to contribute 9.24% of employees’
earnable compensation for the year ended June 30, 2010 (9.24% for the year ended June 30,
2009 and 9.06% for the year ended June 30, 2008).

Employee Employer

Amount Amount Total
2010 $ 40,987 $ 57,832 $ 98,819
2009 42,108 59,482 101,550
2008 37,250 50,839 88,089

The contributions equaled 100% of the Library’s required contributions.
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NOTE 6 -

NOTE 7 -

PENSION PLAN (continued)

The Library’s employees may participate in 457 and/or 401(k) deferred compensation
plans, which are available to state and local governmental employees and administered by a
state-approved nongovernmental third party. The plans, available to all employees, permit
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the plan is
optional. The deferred compensation plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. There are no employer
contributions made by the Library to these plans. Employee contributions were $21,513.

Employees eligible for service retirement may participate in the Teacher and Retiree
Incentive Program (TERI). TERI participants may retire and begin accumulating
retirement benefits on a deferred basis without terminating employment for up to five
years. Upoen termination of employment or at the end of the TERI period, whichever is
earlier, participants will begin receiving monthly service retirement benefits which will
include any cost of living adjustments granted during the TERI period. Because
participants are considered retired during the TERI period, they do not make SCRS
Contributions, do not earn service credit, and are ineligible to receive group life insurance
benefits or disability retirement benefits. Effective July 1, 2006, TERI participants who
entered the program after July 1, 2005 are required to pay the same pre-tax contribution to
the SCRS during the TERI period, but do not earn service credit.

None of the Library’s employees have elected to be covered under the optional retirement
plans as of June 30, 2010.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS

Background

Beginning in fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Orangeburg County Library implemented
prospectively Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45 for
other postemployment benefits (OPEB) offered to retirees. This standard addresses how
local governments should account for and report their costs related to postemployment
health care and other non-pension benefits, such as the Library’s retiree health benefit
subsidy. Historically, the Library’s subsidy was funded on a pay-as-you-go basis but
GASB 45 requires that the Library accrue the cost of the retiree health subsidy and other
postemployment benefits during the period of employees’ active employment, while the
benefits are being earned, and disclose the unfunded actuarial accrued liability in order to
accurately account for the total future cost of postemployment benefits and the financial

impact on the Library.

Plan Description

The County of Orangeburg’s postemployment benefit plan in which the Library
participates, is a single employer defined plan that is self-funded.

Other postemployment benefits provided under the plan include a retiree health and dental
insurance premium contribution plan that covers retirees.

16





NOTE 7 -

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS (continued)

An employee must meet the following criteria to be eligible for retiree health and dental
insurance. The employee must have 15 years of service with the Library and must qualify
for retirement under the South Carolina Retirement System guidelines. For any employee
retiring with less than 15 years of service with the Library, no health and dental retirement
benefits will be provided.

The Library will pay the full cost of single retiree medical and dental insurance premium
costs. Coverage for the spouse is the responsibility of the retiree.

Funding Policy

The Library has elected not to pre-fund OPEB liabilities and to fund healthcare benefits on
a pay-as-you-go basis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The annual cost of other postemployment benefits (OPEB) under GASB 45 is called the
annual required contribution or ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year plus an amount to amortize
any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
thirty years. The current employer contribution rate for the Library is 8.1%.

The Library’s annual OPEB cost and the net OPEB obligation is calculated using a 4.0%
discount rate, which is based upon the anticipated long-term rate of return of the general
funds of the employer used to pay the plan benefits and an annual healthcare cost trend rate
of 10% reduced by decrements of .5% to an ultimate rate of 6% and amortizing the
unfunded actuarial liability over 30 years using the level dollar method is as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 158,609
Interest on net OPEB obligation _ 5,219
Adjustment to annual required contribution , (7.682)

Annual OPEB cost {expense) 156,146
Estimated pay-as-you-go annual

employer contributions (12,706)

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 143,440
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 153,232
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $296,672

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employee and plan members to that peint, The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the caiculations.
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NOTE 7 -

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS (continued)

The Projected Unit Credit, Level Dollar actuarial cost method has been used to calculate
the GASB ARC for this valuation, Using the plan benefits, the present health and dental
premiums and a set of actuarial assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected.
The projected unit credit method then provides for a systematic funding for these
anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of benefits being
earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued
liability. The unfunded liability is amortized over thirty years using the level dollar method
which divides the liability into equal dollar amounts over the selected number of years;
each payment is part interest, part principal. This is both an accepted and reasonable cost
method.

Trend Information:

The Library’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2010 were as
follows:

Percentage

of Annual
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ending OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2009 $ 157,633 2.9% $ 153,232
June 30, 2010 $ 156,146 8.1% $ 296,672

Funded Status and Funding Progress:

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date,
was as follows:

Library

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 1,277,072
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded Actuarial accrued

liability (UAAL) $ 1,277,072
Funded ratio {actuarial value

of plan assets (AAL) 0%
Covered payroll (active plan

members) $493,586
UAAL as a percentage of

covered payroll 258.7%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost
trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revisions as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
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NOTE 8- CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported
as long-term debt:

Accrued compensated absences, beginning of year $ 50,662
Subtractions (29,358)
Additions 31,935

Accrued compensated absences, end of year $53,239

Estimated amounts due within one year $23.425

NOTE 9— RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

As discussed in Note 1, the Library received approximately 89 percent of its revenue from
Orangeburg County, of which it is a component unit. During the year ended June 30, 2010,
this appropriation totaled $900,931. The County owes the Library $53,750 of funds
appropriated at June 30, 2010.

Orangeburg County provides accounting, payroll and cash management services at no
charge. As part of these services, a portion of the Library’s general fund cash is managed
by the Orangeburg County Treasurer.

NOTE 10 - TRANSFERS TO PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The transfer to primary government represents the purchase of capital assets, meeting the
County’s capitalization threshold, recorded on Orangeburg County’s ledger of $9,149.
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY
, OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES BY SOURCE OF REVENUES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

State Stabilization
Local County Aid Funds Total
Revenues . . .
State aid - operating h - $ - $ 120,888 b3 - $ 120,888
Stabilization funds . . - - 38,464 38,464
County appropriation - 900,931 ’ - - 900,931
Fines 25,283 - - - 25,283
Interest 178 - - - 178
Gifis 6,200 ‘ 6,200
Refunds ‘ 20,688 - - - 20,688
Other 11,269 - - - 11,269
Total revenues : $ 63.618 3 900,931 $ 120,888 5 38464 3§ 1,123901
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 5 - $ 705,913 $ 105332 $ - 3 811,245
Books 126,916 - 15,253 7,393 149,562
Utilities and telephone - 35,881 - - 39.881
Periodicals 15,785 - 303 - 16,088
Library and audio-visual supplies 11,774 - - - 11,774
Postage - 8,050 “ - 8,050
Maintenance - 47,678 - - T - 47,678
Office supplies and copying - 11,991 - 10,026 22,017
Computer software, maintenance and supplies 16,223 - 18,422 - 12,957 47,602
Professional fees 2,829 49,953 - - 52,782
Travel and meetings - 2,173 - - 2,173
Building insurance - 6,850 - - 6,850
Vehicle expense - 4,879 - - 4,879
Dues - 2,504 - - 2,504
Printing and binding - 627 - - 627
Miscellaneous . 4,373 720 - - 5,093
Small capital items - 1,290 - 3,474 4,764
Total expenditures 177,900 900,931 120,888 33850 1,233,569
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out _ 4,535 - .- 4,614 9,149
Total expenditures and other financing
sources {uses) $ 182,435 $ 200,931 $ 120,888 5 38,464 $  1,242718
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Orangeburg County Library
Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of
Orangeburg County Library (the Library), a component unit of Orangeburg County, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the Library’s basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated January 20, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Library’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Library’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Library’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses therefore, there can
be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses, 2010-1 — 2010-3, to be material weaknesses.

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL COLUMBIA

1190 Beulevard Street (803) 259-1163 (803) 787-0003
Orangeburg, SC 29115 fax {803) 259-5469 fax (803) 787-2299
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
govemance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Library’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Library in a separate letter
dated January 20, 2011.

The Library’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. We did not audit the Library’s responses and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the
organization and the Board of Trustees and is not intended to be and should not used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

e busgn + Cmpay P

Orangeburg, South Carolina
January 20, 2011
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2010-1 Preparation of Financial Statements

Material Weakness

Conditions: The AICPA has issued Statement on Auditing Standards No. 115, Communicating
Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit. This standard, emphasizes the need for
the Library to have internal controls over financial reporting in place that will provide reasonable
assurance that the Library’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). In order for these controls to be effective, Library
personnel need to receive adequate training to allow them to prepare the Library’s financial
statements in accordance with GAAP.

Criteria: Internal controls over financial reporting should be in place to provide reasonable
assurance that financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Effect: Although, the Library’s inability to prepare financial statements and note disclosures
does not reflect the Library’s ability to maintain accounting records and subsidiary ledgers, a
material misstatement to the Library’s financial statements and disclosures can occur and not be
prevented or detected by the Library’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Recommendation: Library accounting personnel should attend training courses that will
enhance their ability to prepare the Library’s annual financial statements and footnote disclosures

in accordance with GAAP,

Response: The accountant is continuing to develop financial reports which aid in preparation of
financial statements. She is attending training classes designed to further her knowledge in these

aregas.

2010-2 Excess of Salary and Benefits Expenditures over Budgeted Amounts

Material Weakness

Conditions: As the Library did not prepare reasonable budgets based on anticipated
expenditures or budget amendments, the actual salaries and benefits paid exceeded the amount
approved in the budget by County Council. The Library did not cut expenditures nor staff
positions so that salaries, benefits, or other expenditures would be in compliance with the

approved budget.

Criteria: The County appropriations are calculated based upon budgeted expenses less other
budgeted revenue resources. In 2010, there was a budgeted operating deficit for 2010. The
budget should be prepared based upon actual salary and benefit projections and other projected
expenditures. Once approved, expenditures should be made in accordance with the approved
budget. Actual expenditures should be compared to the budgeted amounts on a monthly basis to
monitor and maintain compliance with the budget. Budget amendments should be requested
when necessary in accordance with the County policy.
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

2010-2 Excess of Salary and Benefits Expenditures over Budgeted Amounts (continued)

Effect: The excess of expenditures over the budgeted amounts increased the budgeted operating
deficit in 2010.

Recommendation: The budget should include all approved and projected expenditures based
upon actual salary and benefit projections and other projected expenditures. If the projections
exceed the amount approved, then the Library should eliminate staff positions and other
expenditures which will exceed the budget. If the County intends to pay the requested salaries
and expenditures, then the budget should be developed and approved accordingly.

Response: Historically the County administrator has determined the final amount that will be
provided for salaries in the budget. Several meetings with the County administrator, financial
director, and Library director have not resulted in setting accurate salary figures. The accountant
plans to create a statement just for salaries to monitor and to be used as documentation for further
discussions with County administration. The next step would be for the director and Library
board to meet with County Council to discuss the continued discrepancies and need for adequate
salary funding.

2010-3 Calculation of County Appropriations

Material Weakness

Conditions: The County appropriation for the Library recorded at June 30, 2010 is incorrect.
Criteria: In 2010, the Library began recording the County appropriations by recording the
Library expenditures paid directly by the County less actual State aid received. In prior years this
method would have resulted in the correct appropriation recorded. In 2010, the County
appropriation was calculated based upon budgeted expenditures, less budgeted other revenues,
with a budgeted operating deficit of $150,000.

Effect: Due to the change of the appropriation calculation, the amount recorded was incorrect.

Recommendation: The Library should adjust the amount recorded to the final appropriations
calculation prior to closing.

Response: Prior to closing, we will determine the final appropriation to record.
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Findings — financial statements audit
2009-1 Purchase orders not obtained for all purchases for which would be required

Significant Deficiency

Conditions and Criteria: We performed a test of twenty-five disbursements. Of the twenty-five
items tested, ten should have had a purchase order prepared and approved by the director; one of
those ten purchases did not have a purchase order; six of those nine prepared purchase orders
were not approved by the director. The purchasing procedures require purchase orders approved
by the director to be attached for purchases of books, supplies, etc.

Corrective Action Taken: Revised the purchase order approval procedures to specify that all
are to be signed by director as evidence of approval.

2009-2 Preparation of Financial Statements
Significant Deficiency Considered a Material Weakness

Conditions and Criteria: The Library should have internal controls over financial reporting in
place that will provide reasonable assurances that the Library’s financial statements are prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Personnel need to receive
adequate training to allow them to prepare the Library’s financial statements in accordance with
GAAP. The Library did not prepare its own financial statements and note disclosures.
Preparation of financial statements would aid in detecting material misstatements.

Corrective Action Taken: The accounting system consultant is working with the accountant to
develop financial reports that will satisfy the reporting needs.

2009-3 Operating Deficit
Significant Deﬁciencj’ Considered a Material Weakness

Conditions and Criteria: The actual salaries paid exceeded the amount approved in the budget
by County Council. Additionally, the budget amounts included in the operating general ledger
maintained by the Library did not agree with the approved budgeted operating expenditures. The
Library did not cut expenditures nor staff positions so that salaries, benefits, or other expenditures
would be in compliance with the approved budget. The budget should be prepared based upon
actual salary and benefit projections and other projected expenditures. Once approved,
expenditures should be made in accordance with the approved budget. Actual expenditures
should be compared to the budgeted amounts on a monthly basis to monitor and maintain
compliance with the budget. Budget amendments should be requested when necessary in
accordance with the County policy.

Corrective Action Taken: As discussed below, the Library began recording expenditures for
salaries, benefits and other items paid directly by the County on its ledger. A Director’s Budget
report is being developed to assist the Director in monitoring expenditures in compliance with the

budget.
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY LIBRARY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

2009-4 Capital expenditures
Significant Deficiency Considered 2 Material Weakness

Conditions and Criteria: Capital expenditures purchased from the Library checking account
have not been capitalized by the County. Orangeburg County owns all capital assets of the
Orangeburg County Library. Orangeburg County’s policy is to capitalize all capital assets with a
cost of $2,500 and over. The County inventories those assets and in addition, inventories
computer equipment with a cost in excess of $300.

Corrective Action Taken: Procedures have been established to provide the County with
information regarding the capital assets purchased from the Library checking account which fall
within the County criteria to be capitalized.

2009-5 Calculation of County Appropriations
Significant Deficiency Considered a Material Weakness

Conditions and Criteria: The County appropriation for the Library recorded at June 30, 2009 is
incorrect. The County appropriation is calculated based upon budgeted expenditures less actual
state library aid received. :

Corrective Action Taken: The Library began recording expenditures on its ledger quarterly, for
salaries, benefits, and other items paid directly by the County, net of State aid collected by the
County as the County appropriation. This method more closely approximates the County
appropriation for the fiscal year.
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January 20, 2011

Board of Trustees
Orangeburg County Library
County of Orangeburg, South Carolina

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Orangeburg County Library (the
Library), for the year ended June 30, 2010, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, we considered the Library’s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures: for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Library’s internal control. :

However, during our audit, we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening
internal control and increasing operating efficiency. The following summarizes our comments and
suggestions regarding those matters. We previously reported on the Library’s internal control in our
report dated January 20, 2011. This letter does not affect our report dated January 20, 2011, on the
financial statements of the Library.

Capital Assets

Capital assets of the Library are owned and inventoried by the County and reported in the
County’s financial statements as the primary government’s capital assets. Orangeburg County’s
policy is to capitalize all capital assets with a cost of $2,500 and over. The County inventories
these assets and in addition, inventories computer equipment with a cost of $300 and over. The
Library has developed a procedure to report assets to the County within the above criteria.

We noted that all assets which met the above criteria were not reported to the County.

We recommend that general ledger accounts be setup to post small capital purchases (items less
than $2,500) and large capital purchases (greater than or equal to- $2,500). The sheets used to
report the capital purchases to the County should be retained and reconciled to the general ledger
capital accounts.
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Purchasing

In the process of vouching the expenditures, we noted that two of nine expenditures tested,
(where applicable) did not have purchase orders completed.

We recommend that the policy governing purchase order requirements already in place be
followed.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, and

others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.
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To the Board of Trustees

Orangeburg County Library
Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of
Orangeburg County Library for the year ended June 30, 2010. Professional standards require that we
provide you with information about our responsibilities urider generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing
of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated July 22, 2010.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our
audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Orangeburg County Library are described in Note I to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2010. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and -current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was:

Management’s estimate of the net OPEB obligation and expense is based on an actuarial
study done by the contracted firm. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the OPEB obligation and expense in determining that they are reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. The following material misstatement detected as a
result of audit procedures was corrected by management.

Net Effect
on Fund
Balance
Increase

{Decrease)

To adjust County appropriations §27.114)
Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated January 20, 2011.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
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Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were
not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Commissioners and management of Orangeburg
County Library and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified

parties.

Very truly yours,

Helyaglonporg "

January 20, 2011
Orangeburg, South Carolina





